
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council  Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
September 28, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council  Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, September 28, 2021 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public may participate by emailing 

comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us and, if desired, specifically requesting that their comments 
be read into the record.  Emailed comments must be received no later than thirty minutes before the 
meeting.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public 

record must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public 
comment at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 

teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Aquino, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming October 2021 as National Arts and 
Humanities Month 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Approval of August 24, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

3. Ordinance No. 1317 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 16.16.120(D) of the 
Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps (Second Reading 
and Adoption) 

4. Resolution No. 10702 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Contracts with 
Motorola Solutions and Delta Wireless in an amount not to exceed $190,000 to Add Encryption 
Capabilities to City of Folsom Radios 

5. Resolution No. 10703 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Superior Automotive Group for the Purchase of Three Ford Police Vehicles 

6. Resolution No. 10704 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Joint 
Community Facilities Agreement with the Sacramento Municipal Utility District (SMUD)to allow 
for the Financing of SMUD Facilities under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 in 
Community Facilities District No. 23 

7. Resolution No. 10705 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design and Engineering Services During Construction for 
the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1   

8. Resolution No. 10706 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision 
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A 
Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision 

9. Resolution No. 10710 – A Resolution Authorizing the Police Department to Accept a Selective 
Traffic Enforcement Program Grant in the Amount of $63,000 from the State of California Office 
of Traffic Safety and Appropriation of Funds 

10. Resolution No. 10711 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Caldwell Country Chevrolet for the Purchase of Three Chevrolet Police Vehicles 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

11. Resolution No. 10708 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving the 
Issuance by the California Public Finance Authority of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds in an 
Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $34,000,000 for the Purpose of Financing or 
Refinancing the Acquisition and Construction of Mangini Place Apartments and Certain Other 
Matters Relating Thereto 

12. Resolution No. 10709 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving the 
Issuance of the California Municipal Finance Authority Revenue Bonds in an Aggregate Principal 
Amount not to Exceed $20,000,000 to Finance a 111-unit Affordable Rental Housing Facility for 

Page 3



4 

Low-income and Very Low-income Seniors, for the Benefit of an Entity to be Created by USA 
Properties Fund, Inc., or an Affiliate, and Other Certain Matters Relating Thereto 

OLD BUSINESS: 

13. Resolution No. 10707 – A Resolution of the City Council Establishing a Temporary Residential 
Permit Parking Program in the Folsom Historic District 

NEW BUSINESS: 

14. Resolution No. 10712 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Rescinding Resolution No. 10583, 
Approving an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount up to $2,750,000 from the City’s Housing 
Fund to Folsom 670, L.P., and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Loan Agreement and 
Related Documents for the Construction of 111 Affordable Senior Housing Units at the Sage at 
Folsom Multifamily Affordable Housing Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council's next regular meeting is scheduled for October 12, 2021. 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


5 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5

https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank.  

Page 6



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

PROCI.AMATION
OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM

PROCI.AIMING OCTOBER ZOZI
as

NATIONAL ARTS AI\D HUI\,IANITIES MONTH

the coronavirus has had a devastating impact on America's arts sector, with g9%

of producing and presenting organizations having canceled events; yet the arts
have helped collectively lead us throughout the darkest times of the pandemic-
lifting our spirits, unifying communities, and jump-starting the economy; and

the City Council recognizes that arts and cultural activities benefit the residents
and visitors of Folsom, and they are a significant contributor to Folsom's quality of
life; and

the nation's 120,000 nonprofit arts organizations, the National Endowment forthe
Arts, the National Endowment for the Humanities, the nation's 4,500 local arts
agencies, and the arts and humanities councils of the 50 states and the six U.S.
jurisdictions have regularly issued official proclamations on an annual basis
designating October as NationalArts and Humanities Month; and

the arts and humanities enhance and enrich the lives of many residents; and

the arts and humanities play a unique role in the lives of our families, our
communities, and our country; and

the Arts and Culture Commission works with the community to increase public
awareness of, understanding of, and participation in the humanities and the arts;
and

Folsom has a diverse and vibrant arts scene with local organizations providing
opportunities for the public to celebrate and participate in performances, exhibits
and events throughout the year to embrace arts and humanities.

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

NOW, THEREFORE, l, MICHAEL KOZLOWSKI, Mayorof the City of Folsom, do hereby proclaim
October 2Q21 as Arts and Humanities Month in the City of Folsom and invite our residents to
recognize the contributions of the arts to the community and attend these special cultural
activities.

PROCLAIMED this 28th day of September 2021

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR Attest: Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Page 7

09/28/2021 Item No.1.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 8

09/28/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 108
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021

Gity Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, August 24,20216:10 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 6:10 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent:

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.9(d)(1): Greg Soliz v. City of Folsom, Workers' Compensation Appeals
Board Case Nos. ADJ4448329, ADJ10984219, and 4DJ7275523

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to Glosed Session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued fu the Ciry Council.
Page 9

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 109
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:31 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not oficial antil approued fot the Ciry ConnciL Page 10

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 110
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021

Gity Council Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, August 24,20216:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at632 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake
Parks and Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione.
Community Development Director Pam Johns
Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni
Fire Chief Ken Cusano
Police Commander Mark Schanrock

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle announced that item 15 would be moved to a future City Council
meeting, item 23 had an additional information, and item 24 is moved to the end of the meeting.

DRAFT - Not oficial until approuad fui the Ci4t Counc'il.
Page 11

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 111
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

None

SCHEDU LED PRESENTATIONS

L Resolution of Commendation Honoring Jeff and Becky Boone for Their Years of
Volunteer Service with the Friends of the Zoo Sanctuary

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez presented the Resolution of Commendation to Jeff and
Becky Boone.

2. Presentation on the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 2

Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake made a presentation and
responded to questions from the City Council.

3. Presentation on the City's Stage 3 Water Warning Conservation Stage

Environmental and Water Resources Director Marcus Yasutake made a presentation and
responded to questions from the City Council with additional information provided by Parks and
Recreation Director Lorraine Poggione.

4. Historic District Parking Solutions Quarterly Update

Mayor Mike Kozlowski explained that this is a presentation and that no action would be taken on
this item tonight. Community Development Director Pam Johns made a presentation and
responded to questions from the City Council.

GONSENT CALENDAR:

5. Approval of July 13,2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

6. Approval of July 27,2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

7. Designation of Primary and Alternate Voting Delegates for the League of California Cities
2021 Annual Conference Business Meeting

8. Nomination of the Joint Representative for the Cities of Folsom, lsleton, and Galt to the
Sacramento Environmental Commission

9. Resolution No. 10675 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Amend the 2018
Contract Between the City of Folsom and the Sacramento Society for the Prevention of
Cruelty to Animals for Shelter Services and Appropriation of Funds

10. Resolution No. 10676 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Folsom Lake Ford for the Purchase of Six Ford Police Vehicles

1 1. Resolution No. 10677 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Purchase Agreement with RedSky Emergency Vehicles for Four Type I Ambulances

DRAFT - Not oficial nntil approued b1 the Ciry Coundl.
Page 12

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



,3,::h'3,?T;ffi
August 24,2021

12. Resolution No. 10678 - A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order
DES-07-20 lssued by the Director of Emergency Services

13. Resolution No. 10679 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
Change Order with Sierra National Construction, lnc. for the Neighborhood Sidewalk
Replacement Fiscal Year 2020-21 Project No. PW180 and Appropriation of Funds

14. Resolution No. 10680 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with TYMCO, lnc. for the Purchase of a Street Sweeper

15. Resolution No. 10681 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Design
Consulting Services Agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Mangini Ranch
Trails Project in the Folsom Plan Area (Gontinued to future meeting.)

16. Resolution No. 10682 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program
Supplement Agreement 000000X28 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-
5288521 for the Natoma Street Drainage lmprovement Project Phase 2, Project No.

PW1901, State Project No. 5288(047)

17. Resolution No. 10683 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Program
Supplement Agreement X30 to Administering Agency-State Agreement 03-5288521 for
the lron Point Median lmprovement Project, Project No. PW2102, State Project No.

5288(048)

18. Resolution No. 10685 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Dokken Engineering, lnc. for the Green Valley Road Permanent
Easement Acquisition, Project No. PW0804

19. Resolution No. 10686 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 5 to the Agreement (Contract No. 174-21 13-052) with Superion, LLC
(now known as Centralsquare Technologies) to lncrease the Number of User Licenses,
Migrate Additional Project Data to the New Permitting System, and Develop a Custom
Land Management lntegration

20. Resolution No. 10687 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Master
Agreement Adm i nisteri ng Agency-State Agreement for State-Fu nded Projects,
Agreement No. 03-5288521 and any Amendments Thereto with the California
Department of Transportation

21 . Resolution No. 10688 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
Change Order with Goodfellow Brothers, LLC (Contract No. 174-21 20-060) for the
Capital Southeast Connector Segment D3(A), Project No. PW1607, Federal Project No.

5288(046)

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve ltems 5 - 14 and 16 - 21 of the Consent Galendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

DRAFT -Not fficial antil approued fui the Ci4t Council.
Page 13

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 1 13
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021

PUBLIC EARING:

22. UCD Health Sciences Campus Development Agreement Amendment - Northwest Corner
of East Bidwell Street and Street B (PN 21-153)

i. Ordinance No. 1316 - An Uncodified Ordinance of the City of Folsom Approving
Amendment No. 2 to the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement
between the City of Folsom and the Regents of the University of California Davis Relative
to the UCD Health Sciences Campus Project (lntroduction and First Reading)

Principal Planner Steve Banks made a presentation and responded to questions from the City
Council. UCD representatives Matt Dolsage, Mark Ruthheiser and Creed Kampa responded to
additional questions from the City Council.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing at 8:32 p.m. Hearing no public comments, the
public hearing was closed.

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
introduce and conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1316.

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

23. City of Folsom 2021 Housing Element Update, Empire Ranch Specific Plan Amendment
and Related Actions

i. Resolution No. 10689 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Adopting
an Addendum to the Folsom 2035 General Plan Final Environmental lmpact Report for
the Housing Element Update and Amending the General Plan By Adopting Updates to
the Housing Element, Land Use Element, Safety and Noise Element and lmplementation
Element

ii. Resolution No. 10690 - A Resolution to Amend the Empire Ranch Specific Plan to
Expand the Regional Commercial Center (RCC) Land Use Designation to Allow for
Multifamily Residential as a Permitted Use in Conjunction with the Folsom Housing
Element Update

Community Development Director Pam Johns introduced the item, and Chelsea Payne,
Director of Urban Design and Planning with Ascent, made a presentation and responded to
questions from the City Council. Ms, Payne and Ms. Johns provided additional information to
the City Council.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing at 9:16 p.m. Hearing no public comments, the
public hearing was closed.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to

DRAFT - Not oficial until approued fui the Ciry Council.
Page 14

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 114
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021

approve Resolution No. 10689.

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Kerri Howellto
approve Resolution No. 10690.

AYES: Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

NEW BUSINESS:

24. Resolution No. 10684 - A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to
Execute an Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the City Manager

Item moved to end of meeting.

25. Consideration of Expenditure of Funds from the American Rescue Plan Act and Direction
to Staff

Finance Director/CFO Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to questions from
the City Council.

The following speakers addressed the City Council:
1. Judy Alexander
2. Will Kempton
3. Lisa Tudor, Director of Twin Lakes Food Bank
4. Mary Carrera
5. Joe Gagliardi
6. Loretta Hettinger

The following speaker addressed the City Council via teleconference:

1. Heidi Kaiser

City Clerk Christa Freemantle read written comments from the following

1. Larry Moore
2. Robert Goss

Each of the Councilmembers shared their ideas and discussed the use of the funds.

Motion by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino, second by Councilmember Kerri Howell to direct the
Finance Director to appropriate $2,195,500 of the City's American Rescue Plan Act

DRAFT - Not ffic'ial antil approued fui the Ciry CounciL
Page 15

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 115
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021
allocation to the General Fund under the allowable use category Provision of
Government Services to be used for the specific purposes listed below.

HVAC system/roof replacement for City Hall - $850,000
Police fleet vehicles - $497,000
Public Safety equipment and training needs - $350,000
Gity facility upgrades and painting - $230,500
Park maintenance - $150,000
ADA improvements - $110,000
Rapid COVID-l9 Testing Unit - $8,000

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s): Howell, Aquino, Kozlowski
Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Ghalamcherla
Gouncilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

26. Resolution No. 10691 - A Resolution of the City Council Confirming Emergency Order
DES-01-21 lssued by the Director of Emergency Services

City Manager Elaine Andersen introduced the item. Fire Chief Ken Cusano provided an
overview of the order, and Police Commander Mark Schanrock discussed enforcement.

Motion by Mayor Mike Kozlowski, second by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino to
approve Resolution No. 10691.

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Rodriguez, Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

New Business ltem taken out of order:

24, Resolution No. 10684 - A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to
Execute an Amendment to the Employment Agreement for the City Manager

City Attorney Steve Wang explained the amendment process and Mayor Mike Kozlowski
summarized the action being taken.

The City Council provided comments regarding the amendment to the City Manager's
employment agreement and the process by which the City Manager's performance is reviewed
by the City Council.

Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino to approve
Resolution No. 10684.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

DRAFT - Not oficial antil approued b1 the Ci4t Coanc'il.
Page 16

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 116
Folsom City Council

August 24,2021
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s): Howell, Aquino, Kozlowski
Councilmember(s): Rodriguez, Chalamcherla
Councilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): None

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen spoke of the traffic accident involving Galt police officers. She
thanked Folsom fire and police personnel for their help with the California fires. She spoke of
the upcoming 9/11 ceremony and Community Service Day.

COUNCIL GOMMENTS:

Councilmember Kerri Howell announced tomorrow's Regional Sanitation meeting she will be
attending. She shared her appreciation for our fire and police personnel for helping with the
recent fires and she encouraged everyone to drive safely.

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino commented regarding the City Manager employment agreement and
commended the City Manager for her work.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla spoke of the SeeClickFix program and about his recent
meeting with a group of residents regarding an unpaved PG&E road near their homes. He
acknowledged Vice Mayor Aquino's comments regarding the City Manager employment
agreement.

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez expressed her heartfelt sympathy for victims of the recent
fires. She responded to Vice Mayor Aquino's comments regarding the City Manager
employment agreement.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski commended City Manager Elaine Andersen for her work during a
challenging year.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski
adjourned the meeting at 11:01 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ofidal until approued fu the Ci4t Coundl.
Page 17

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 18

09/28/2021 Item No.2.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 912812021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1317- An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code
Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps (Second
Reading and Adoption)

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to adopt Ordinance No. 1317 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending section
I6.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision
Maps.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On August 27,2021, Elliott Homes submiued an application for a code amendment to modifu
Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code to make it consistent with State law
relative to map extensions. State law allows local jurisdictions to extend subdivision maps up
to six years from the date of approval, while the Folsom Municipal Code limits the extension
to three years.

On September 14, 2021, the City Council reviewed the proposal by Elliott Homes for code
amendment relative to map extensions. After holding a public hearing, the City Council
unanimously voted to introduce and conduct first reading of the code amendment to allow map
extensions for up to six years consistent with State law. No changes have been made to the
ordinance since first reading.

POLICY / RULE

Pursuant to Section 2.I2 of the City Charter, enactment of, or amendments to, an ordinance is
a legislative act requiring approval by the City Council.

I

Page 19

09/28/2021 Item No.3.



ANALYSIS

Prior to 1996, Government Code Section 66452.6(e) permitted map extensions for a period or
periods not exceeding atotal ofthree years. Folsom Municipal Code sectionl6.l6.l20, which
implements Government Code section 66a52.6(e), has not been updated since the 1996
amendment that allows map extension for up to six years. As a result, while State law presently
allows the City to grant up to six years of extensions, the Folsom Municipal Code limits the
City to granting up to three years.

Proposed Revision

16.16.120D Time Limit of Extensions. The time at which the tentative mqp expires may be

extended by the planning commissionfor a period not exceeding a total of 3 fyears.

The Subdivision Map Act, specifically California Government Code Section 66452.6(e),
allows the City, upon application by the subdivider, to extend the life of a tentative map for a
period or periods not exceeding a total ofsix years:

(e) Upon application of the subdivider filed prior to the expiration of the approved or
conditionally approved tentative map, the time at which the map expires pursuant to
subdivision (a) may be extended by the legislative body or by an advisory agency authorized
to approve or conditionally approve tentative maps for a period or periods not exceeding a total
of six years. . .

The purpose of this update is to conform Folsom Municipal Code section 16.16.120(D) to the
current version of Govemment Code section 66452.6(e). Staff has been approached by
multiple members of the development community who have stated that Folsom's limitation to
one three-year extension puts them at a competitive disadvantage to development in adjacent
jurisdictions which allow up to six years of extension, consistent with State law.

Should the proposed code amendment be approved, individual applicant's wishing to extend
their subdivision maps will still go through a public process which will require both Planning
Commission and City Council approval to extend the life of a subdivision map.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

No financial impact is anticipated with approval of the Code Amendment.

ENVIRONMENTAL RTVIEW

The action is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to section
1 5061 (bX3) (Review for Exemption).

2
Page 20

09/28/2021 Item No.3.



ATTACHMENT

Ordinance No. 1317 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 16.16.120(D)
of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps
(Second Reading and Adoption)

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

a
J

Page 21

09/28/2021 Item No.3.



ORDINANCE NO. 1317

AN ORDINANCE OX'THE CITY OF FOLSOM AMENDING
SECTION 16.16.120(D) OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE

PERTAINING TO EXTENSION OF TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAPS

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom
Municipal Code to conform with the Subdivision Map Act (Government Code Section
66452.6(e)) that, upon application of the subdivider filed prior to the expiration of the approved
or conditionally approved tentative map, the time at which the map expires may be extended by
the legislative body or by an advisory agency authorized to approve or conditionally approve
tentative maps for a period or periods not exceeding a total of six years.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

16.16.120 Extensions.

D. Time Limit of Extensions. The time at which the tentative map expires may be extended

by the planning commission for a period not exceeding a total of 6 years.

SECTION 3 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 4 NO MANDATORY DUTY OF CARE

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given effect in a manner
that imposes upon the City or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory duty of care towards
persons and property within or without the City, so as to provide a basis of civil liability for
damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

SECTION 5 SEVERABILITY

Ifany section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each
section irrespective of the factthat any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase
be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

Ordinance No. 1317
Page I of2

Page 22

09/28/2021 Item No.3.



SECTION 6 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This Ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on September 14,2021, and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on September 28,202I.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing Ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the

City of Folsom, State of California, this _ day of
vote:

2021by the following roll-call

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1317
Page2 of2

Page 23

09/28/2021 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 24

09/28/2021 Item No.3.



r.'{-rL s Llsr

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 91812021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10702 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Agreements with Motorola Solutions and
Delta Wireless in an amount not to exceed $190,000 to Add
Encryption Capabilities to City of Folsom Radios

FROM: Police Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 10702 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Agreements with Motorola Solutions and Delta
Wireless in an amount not to exceed $190,000 to Add Encryption Capabilities to City of
Folsom Radios.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
On 1011212020, the California Justice Information Services Division of the California
Department of Justice (Califomia Law Enforcement Telecommunication System (CLETS)
Administration Section) issued an information bulletin to all CLETS subscribing agencies.
The purpose of the bulletin was to advise each agency they must adhere to the requirements
detailed in CLETS Policies, Practices, and Procedures as well as those found in the Federal
Bureau of Investigation (FBI) Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS) Security Policy to
ensure the confidentiality and integrity of certain Criminal Justice Information and Personally
Identifiable Information. In essence this covers all information obtained via a CLETS terminal.
The bulletin stated radio transmissions containing the above information are considered
confidential and must be transmitted over encrypted radio channels. The Department of Justice
provided no funding to comply with this mandate.

Personal identiSing information was defined as information that can be used to distinguish an
individual's identity, such as first name or initial, and last name in combination with any of the
following:

Social Security number
Passport number

1

Page 25

09/28/2021 Item No.4.



Military ID number
Other unique ID number issued on a government document

To include driver license / identification card number

All agencies that were not in compliance with the requirements outlined were directed to
submit an implementation plan to the Califomia Department of Justice CLETS Administration
Section no later than 1213112020. The Folsom Police Department submitted the required
implementation plan to the Department of Justice stating we would comply by the end of the
2021 calendar year.

POLICY / RULE
Folsom Municipal Code section 2.36.080 requires City Council approval of contracts
exceeding the City Manager's signing authority. The sum of these contracts exceeds that dollar
amount.

ANALYSIS
The City of Folsom and the Folsom Police Department are committed to providing law
enforcement services to our citizens. Part of these services involves utilizing the CLETS
system to query subjects to determine if they are wanted or under codified restrictions due to
prior violations of the law. The transmission of personal identifring information through radio
transmissions is part of this process.

An audit was conducted of City of Folsom radios to determine what actions needed to be taken
to comply with the Department of Justice mandate. It was determined some radios require
replacement, others to have functions added, and all to be programmed differently. The fleet
of radios is operated over the Sacramento Regional Radio Communication System managed
by Sacramento County. This system was designed and tested to work with Motorola Solutions
equipment. Most agencies operating on the system use Delta Wireless for their radio
programming needs. Our radios are currently built and supplied by Motorola Solutions. The
local Motorola Solutions representative has advised Delta Wireless is the authorized Motorola
provider in our area for purchasing/programming the radios.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
The combined cost of the agreement required to meet the Department of Justice's mandate
shall not exceed $190,000. Funding for this project was approved in the Fiscal Year 202I-22
Police Department budget in the General Fund (Fund 010) and those funds are currently
available.

ATTACHMENTS
Resolution No. 10702 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Agreements
with Motorola Solutions and Delta Wireless in an amount not to exceed $190,000 to Add
Encryption Capabilities to City of Folsom Radios.

2

Submi

D. Hillman, Chief of Police

Page 26

09/28/2021 Item No.4.



RESOLUTION NO. IO7O2

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE
AGREEMENTS WITH MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS AND DELTA WIRELESS IN AN

AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $190,000 TO ADD ENCRYPTION CAPABABILITES TO
CITY OF F'OLSOM RADIOS

WHEREAS, in October of 2020 the Department of Justice issued a bulletin to all agencies using
the CaliforniaLaw Enforcement Telecommunication System (CLETS) advising each agency they must
adhere to the requirements detailed in CLETS Policies, Practices, and Procedures as well as those found in
the Federal Bureau of Investigation Criminal Justice Information Services Security Policy; and

WHEREAS, these policies ensure the confidentiality and integrity of certain criminal justice and

personally identifiable information; and

WHEREAS, to adhere to these policies, radio transmissions containing criminal justice and
personally identifiable information are required to be transmitted over encrypted radio channels; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom is currently out of compliance as we transmit CLETS information
over non encrypted radios channels during standard daily operations; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Justice was notified of the City's intent to comply with this
unfunded mandate by the end of 2021; and

WHEREAS, Motorola Solutions serves as the radio provider for the City of Folsom, and Delta
Wireless services radios for the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, funding for this project is currently budgeted and available within the General Fund
(Fund 010) in the Police Department's Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED thatthe City Council ofthe City ofFolsom authorizes
the City Manager to execute agreements with Motorola Solutions and Delta Wireless in an amount not to
exceed $190,000 to add encryption capabilities to City of Folsom radios.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28 day of September 2021, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):
NOES: Councilmember(s):
ABSENT: Councilmember(s):
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10702
Page I of I Page 27

09/28/2021 Item No.4.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 28

09/28/2021 Item No.4.



I t j ,i .:{ {-} t\11

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 91281202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10703 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Superior Automotive
Group for the Purchase of Three Ford Police Vehicles

FROM: Police Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10703 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Superior Automotive Group for
the Purchase of Three Ford Police Vehicles.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom strives to provide police officers with mechanically sound and safe marked
patrol vehicles capable of emergency responses. The Service Delivery Plan adopted by the
City Council calls for the replacement of marked police cars at 75,000 miles. The Police
Department is currently utilizing 17 vehicles with mileage exceeding 75,000 miles; eleven of
them are marked patrol vehicles. 8 vehicles have been ordered, but the 2021 Ford, ordered
months ago, has been converted to a2022 order by the Ford Motor Corporation, because they
were not able to begin building it this year.

Nationwide, the supply of vehicles is limited. This is disproportionately affecting SUV's,
including vehicles for police service. We have been incredibly fortunate to frnd three 2021
Ford Explorer Police package vehicles, available for upfitting and delivery right away.

1

POLICY / RULE

Page 29

09/28/2021 Item No.5.



Section 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code requires that contracts in excess of $62,657
be awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements
for the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service or construction with one or more
public procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the
participants. Such cooperative purchasing may include, but is not limited to, joint or multiparty
contracts between public procurement units and open-ended state public procurement unit
contracts which are made available to the City.

ANALYSIS

Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs) have become an industry standard for law enforcement use since
their introduction in20l3. Ford Explorers use hybrid technology to reduce fuel consumption,
especially during idling during traffrc stops and fixed post assignments where the use of
emergency lighting required constant engine use.

This purchase of three Ford Explorer police vehicles will reduce the number of marked patrol
vehicles exceeding 75,000 miles to eight, with 7 more on order for next year from prior
authorized purchases.

SOLE SOURCE

The last vendor for Ford Explorers was Folsom Lake Ford, who was unable to provide the
vehicle this year because of delays by the factory. We have tried to find vehicles from prior
vendors to no avail. We also utilized City Fleet Manager Scotty Borror, who reached out to
manufacturing representatives and was unable to locate any 2021Ford Explorers available for
purchase. These three vehicles are the last Ford Explorers in Superior Automotive Group's
available inventory.

The cost of these vehicles is $54,745.53 each. Our currently open purchase order from Folsom
Lake Ford for a similar vehicle (But not equipped with an overhead light bar or rear seat cage)
was $54,102.49. When the price comparison is adjusted for the additional equipment, the
Vehicles from Superior Automotive group are priced below the state bid obtained for the prior
vehicle purchase (resolution 10676.)

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Fiscal Year 2021-22 Budget was recently amended to include an additional $497,000 of
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding for the purchase of police vehicles. The cost to
purchase three Ford police vehicles is $164,236.59. Once these new vehicles are placed in
service, three police vehicles will be disposed of in accordance with City Policy.

2

ATTACHMENT

Page 30

09/28/2021 Item No.5.



Resolution No. 10703 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Superior Automotive Group for the Purchase of Three Ford Police Vehicles

Submitted,

Chief of Police

J Page 31

09/28/2021 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10703

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH SUPERIOR AUTOMOTIVE GROUP FOR THE

PURCHASE OF'THREE FORD POLICE VEHICLES

WHEREAS, the City has elected to purchase three Ford police vehicles for the
Folsom Police Department; and

WHEREAS, funding for the purchase of police vehicles will come from the
American Rescue Plan Act of 202I; ar:d

WHEREAS, this purchase is through Superior Automotive Group, the only
vendor able to supply these vehicles.

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a format acceptable to the City Attorney.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Folsom hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement with
Superior Automotive Group for the purchase of three Ford police vehicles in the amount
of $164,236.59.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September 2021, by the
following roll call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers (s)

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No 10703
Page 1 of I Page 32

09/28/2021 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

It is recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 10704 - A Resolution
Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Joint Community Facilities Agreement with the
Sacramento Municipal Utility District ("SMUD") to allow for the Financing of SMUD
Facilities under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 in Community Facilities
DistrictNo.23.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Community Facilities District No. 23 ("CFD No. 23") was formed by the City Council by
Resolution No. 10435 on May 26,2020. A list of Authorized Facilities was attached as an
exhibit to Resolution No. 10435. This list included facilities designed to meet the needs of
development within CFD No. 23, and includes those certain facilities relating to electrical
utilities, including joint trenches, underground utilities and undergrounding of existing
utilities, and dry utilities and appurtenances, as well as the cost of planning and designing these
facilities (collectively, the "SMUD Facilities") The SMUD Facilities will become the property
of and be operated and maintained by SMUD.

The City Council approved Resolution No. 10535 on October 13;2020, which authorized the
issuance of CFD No. 23 Improvement Area 1 ("CFD No. 23 IA1") Special Tax Bonds, which
were subsequently issued in an amount of $12,925,000 on October 30,2020. These bonds did

1

MEETING DATE: 912812021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10704 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Joint Community Facilities Agreement with
the Sacramento Municipal Utility District ("SMUD") to allow for
the Financing of SMUD Facilities under the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982 in Community Facilities
District No. 23

FROM: Finance Department

Page 33

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



not finance any SMUD Facilities since under the Mello Roos Community Facilities Act, a

community facilities district cannot finance improvements belonging to another public agency

until there is a joint community facilities agreement relating to those improvements. Currently
no such agreement is in place. The City must execute this Joint Community Facilities
Financing Agreement with SMUD to have the ability to finance SMUD Facilities with future
bond issuances within CFD No. 23.

POLICY / RULE

Chapter 5 of the Folsom Plan Area Public Facilities Financing Plan authorizes the formation
of community facilities districts (each a ooCFD") to finance the construction, acquisition, and

servicing of FPA backbone infrastructure and public facilities

Section 2.5.3 of the First Amended and Restated Tier I Development Agreement authorizes
the formation of infrastructure CFDs.

Resolution No. 9282 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
Goals and Policies for Community Facilities Districts

Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982

ANALYSIS

The City Council has determined that electrical utilities are necessary to meet the needs of
development within CFD No. 23. Currently, the City is unable to reimburse developers for
constructing the SMUD Facilities to provide electrical utilities within CFD No. 23. A joint
community facilities agreement must be executed prior to the issuance of bonds in the future
to enable the City to use the proceeds from those issuances to reimburse the developers. Once

such an agreement is in place, and the City has received confirmation from SMUD that the
SMUD Facilities are complete and ready for acceptance by SMUD within an Improvement
Area, the costs of those SMUD Facilities will then become an authorized cost within that
Improvement Area, and eligible to be reimbursed from bond proceeds issued on behalf of the
Improvement Area.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

There is no direct General Fund impact on the City of Folsom. The CFD No. 23 formation,
bonded indebtedness, and expenses are solely the responsibility of CFD No. 23.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Folsom Plan Area
Backbone Infrastructure Project were previously prepared for, and adopted by the City Council
on February 24, 2015, in accordance with the requirements of the California Environmental

Quality Act.

2
Page 34

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10704 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Joint
Community Facilities Agreement with the Sacramento Municipal Utility District
("SMUD") to allow for the Financing of SMUD Facilities under the Mello-Roos
Community Facilities Act of 1982 in Community Facilities District No. 23

2. Joint Community Facilities Financing Agreement - City of Folsom Community Facilities
District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch)

Submitted,

Tamagni
Finance Director

J
Page 35

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 36

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. IO7O4

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MAIIAGER TO EXECUTE A JOINT
COMMUNITY FACILITIES AGREEMENT WITH THE SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL

UTTLITY DISTRTCT ("SMUD") TO ALLOW FOR THE FINAIICING OF SMUD
FACILITIES UNDER THE MELLO-ROOS COMMUNITY FACILITIES ACT OF 1982 IN

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 23

WHEREAS, Community Facilities District No. 23 ("CFD No. 23") and various Improvement
areas therein were established by the City Council on May 26,2020; and

WHERBAS, the City proposes to finance the design, construction, and installation of certain
capital facilities within CFD No. 23 and its Improvement Areas (the "Authorized Facilities"), including
those certain facilities relating to electrical utilities, including joint trenches, underground utilities and

undergrounding of existing utilities and dry utilities and appurtenances that will become the property
of and will be operated and maintained by the Sacramento Municipal Utility District, excluding
substations (collectively, the ooSMUD Facilities"); and

WHEREAS, the City completed proceedings pursuant to the Act authorizing CFD No. 23 to
incur bonded indebtedness to finance the Authorized Facilities as set forth by Resolution No. 10435,

the Resolution of Formation; and

WHEREAS, the City called and conducted special elections within CFD No. 23 for each
Improvement Area and determined that the measures to: authorize the levy of Special Taxes within
each Improvement Area; authorize the issuance of special tax bonds or other indebtedness on behalf
of CFD No. 23; establish an appropriations limitation for each Improvementarea, were passed by the
unanimous vote of the qualified landowner-voter electors within each Improvement Area; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey;

NOW' THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute the Joint Community Facilities Financing Agreement with
SMUD to finance the SMUD Facilities through the CFD No. 23 Special Taxes.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September, 202I, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No, 10704

Page I of 1
Page 37

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 38

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



JOINT COMMUNITY FACILITIES F'INANCING AGREEMENT

City of Folsom
Community Facilities District No. 23

(Folsom Ranch)

THIS JOINT COMMLINITY FACILITIES FINANCING AGREEMENT (the

"Agreement") is effective as of the _ day of 2021, between the CITY OF
FOLSOM, a municipal corporation of the State of California (the "City"), acting for
itself and the City of Folsom Community Facilities District No. 23 (Folsom Ranch) (the

"CX'D"), and the SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT, a political
subdivision of the State of California ("SMUD" and, together with the City, the
"Parties").

RECITALS:

A. The City Council (the "Council") of the City has established the CFD and
designated various improvement areas therein pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982, in Califomia Govemment Code, Title 5, Division 2, Part l,
Chapter 2.5 (beginning with Section 53311) (the "Act"). The City proposes to finance
the design, construction and installation of certain capital facilities within the CFD
(collectively, the "Authorized Facilities"), including those certain facilities relating to
electrical utilities, including joint trenches, underground utilities and the
undergrounding of existing utilities and dry utilities and appurtenances that will
become the property of and will be operated and maintained by SMUD, but excluding
substations (the "SMUD Facilities").

B. On May 26,2020, the Council completed proceedings pursuant to the Act
for establishing the CFD, designating various improvement areas within the CFD (each

an oolmprovement Area" and collectively, the "Improvement Areas") and authorizing
the CFD to incur bonded indebtedness not exceeding $76,000,000 for Improvement Area
No. 1, $36,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 2, $124,000,000 for Improvement Area
No. 3, $64,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 4, $105,000,000 for Improvement Area
No. 5 and $17,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 6 to finance the Authorized Facilities
as set forth in the Resolution of Formation, Resolution No. 10435, including, but not
limited to, the SMUD Facilities.

C. On the same date, the Council called and conducted special elections
within the CFD for each Improvement Area and determined that the measures to (a)
authorize the levy of the special taxes within each Improvement Area (the "Special
Taxes"), (b) authorize the issuance of special tax bonds or other indebtedness on behalf
of the CFD in a principal amount not to exceed $76,000,000 for Improvement Area No.
1, $36,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 2, $124,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 3,

$64,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 4, $105,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 5

Page 39

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



and $17,000,000 for Improvement Area No. 6 (collectively, the "Indebtedness") and (c)

establish an appropriations limitation for each Improvement Area, was passed by the

unanimous vote of the qualified landowner-voter electors within each Improvement Area.

D. This Agreement constitutes a joint community facilities financing
agreement entered into pursuant to California Government Code Section 53316.2, which
authorizes the City to finance the SMUD Facilities through the Special Taxes pursuant to
such an agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the preceding recitals and the mutual
covenants hereinafter contained, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Authorized Facilities - The Council has conducted proceedings under the

Act to form the CFD, to designate the Improvement Areas within the CFD and to
authorize the financing of the Authorized Facilities, including the SMUD Facilities.

2. Administration of CFD - The City shall administer the CFD, including
employing and paying all consultants, annually levying the special tax and all aspects of
paying and administering the Indebtedness, and complying with all state and federal
requirements appertaining to the proceedings establishing the CFD, designating the

Improvement Areas and issuing and using the proceeds of the Indebtedness and, if
applicable, including the requirements of the United States Intemal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended.

3. Issuance of the Bonds - The Council, as the legislative body of the CFD,
has authorized the issuance and sale of Indebtedness relating to Improvement Area No. 1

in the original outstanding principal amount of $12,925,000 to finance certain Authorized
Facilities (the "Prior Indebtedness"). The Prior Indebtedness did not finance any

SMUD Facilities. The Council is expected to authorize, from time to time, the issuance

and sale of additional Indebtedness (the ooBonds") to finance Authorized Facilities,
including, but not limited, to the SMUD Facilities. The City will issue and sell the Bonds
when it determines, in its sole discretion, that the conditions, which must be satisfied to
issue and sell the Bonds including, without limitation, the requirements of Govemment
Code Section 53345.8, have been satisfied. In making the determination, the City shall
be advised by its bond counsel, disclosure counsel, municipal advisor and bond
underwriter.

4. Responsibilities to the Bonds SMUD has no obligation or
responsibility whatsoever with respect to the issuance and sale of the Bonds, any

disclosure document related to the Bonds, for the payments on the Bonds, or for the levy
of the special tax. The City shall assume the defense of, indemni$ and save harmless,

SMUD, its officers, employees and agents, and each and every one of them, from and

against all actions, damages, claims, losses or expenses of every type and description to
which they may be subjected or put, by reason of or resulting from, any act or omission
of the City with respect to this Agreement, the issuance of the Bonds, any alleged
misstatements of fact or alleged omission of a material fact made by the City in a

disclosure document related to the Bonds; provided, however, that the City shall not be

Page 40

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



required to indemniff any person or entity as to damages resulting from negligence or
willful misconduct of such person or entity or their officers, agents or employees.

5. Allocation of Bond Proceeds - The City shall be responsible for the Bond
proceeds including, without limitation, investing and expending the proceeds, and all
other matters relating to the Bond proceeds; provided that the Parties acknowledge that
the City intends to utilize the services of a corporate trustee pursuant to one or more
Indentures for such purposes. The City expects to utilize a portion of the Bond proceeds

to finance the cost and expense of the Authorized Facilities to the extent possible.

Solely from Bond proceeds (the "Available Amount"), and upon receipt
of written confirmation from SMUD that SMUD has determined that the SMUD
Facilities are complete and ready for acceptance by SMUD, the City will pay to the
developer of such SMUD Facilities (each a "Developer") the lesser of such Developer's
actual construction costs pertaining to the related SMUD Facilities or the Available
Amount (in each case, the "SMUD Facilities Acquisition Price"). This Agreement does

not lessen or modifu any Developer's obligations to SMUD in any way, and if such
Developer's actual construction costs pertaining to the related SMUD Facilities exceed
the Available Amount, such Developer shall be obligated to pay the additional cost,
subject to any different anangement entered into between SMUD and such Developer.
SMUD shall have the right to enter into a separate acquisition agreement or similar
agreement to govern the construction of the SMUD Facilities by a Developer and the
conditions for the payment of the SMUD Facilities Acquisition Price.

Solely from the Available Amount, the City will reimburse SMUD for the eligible
costs of any SMUD Facilities constructed by SMUD (the "SMUD Reimbursement
Amount").

6. Responsibilities Related to the SMUD Facilities - Consistent with
SMUD's procedures for the acceptance of developer-built facilities (described more
particularly on SMUD's website at https://www.smud.org/construction, under the
heading Electric service requirements) ("SMUD Acceptance Procedures"), SMUD is
responsible for the following with respect to any SMUD Facilities to be constructed by
a Developer: (a) providing to each Developer the design and location of the SMUD
Facilities, (b) final inspection and approval of each Developer's construction, and
installation of the SMUD Facilities, and (c) notifuing the City in writing when SMUD
has determined that the SMUD Facilities are complete and ready for acceptance by
SMUD, which will in turn cause the City to pay the SMUD Facilities Acquisition Price
to the applicable Developer.

With respect to any SMUD Facilities to be constructed by SMUD,
SMUD is responsible for notiffing the City in writing when SMUD has determined
that such SMUD Facilities are complete, which will in turn cause the City to pay the
SMUD Reimbursement Amount to SMUD.

The City's sole responsibility respecting the SMUD Facilities shall be to
pay or direct its bond trustee to pay each SMUD Facilities Acquisition Price to the

Page 41

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



applicable Developer or each SMUD Reimbursement Amount to SMUD, as applicable,
from the Available Amount upon receipt of the written notification of SMUD specified in
the foregoing paragraphs of this Section 6.

7. Rights Related to the SMUD Facilities - The Parties acknowledge and
agree that any reimbursement or payment by the City or the CFD to a Developer
hereunder for the costs of any SMUD Facilities advanced by such Developer andlor
constructed by such Developer and transferred to SMUD, or any payment by the City or
the CFD to SMUD hereunder in connection with SMUD's construction or acceptance of
any SMUD Facilities, shall not give the City or the CFD any right, title or interest in the
SMUD Facilities, including without limitation, any right of ownership, control or use of
the SMUD Facilities.

8. Records of Proceedings - The City agrees to have prepared, and keep
available to SMUD, records of all proceedings of the CFD, including but not limited to
(a) disbursements of special tax and proceeds of the Bonds, if any, and (b) the
administration of the various funds and accounts to be established with respect to the
CFD for the management of special tax proceeds, bond sale proceeds, and the investment
earnings on both.

9. Entire Agreement: Effective Date - This Agreement contains the entire
agreement between the Parties respecting the matters provided for herein. It
supersedes all prior agreements and negotiations between the Parties respecting the
subject matter of this Agreement.

This Agreement shall not be effective until all the following conditions
precedent have been satisfied: (a) all parties, by their authorized representatives,
approve and sign this Agreement; and (b) the Council authorizes the issuance of
Bonds.

10. Amendment - This Agreement may be amended by a writing signed by
the Parties, except that no amendment may be made after the issuance of Bonds, if any,
that would be detrimental to the interests of the bondholders without complying with
all of the bondholder consent provisions for the amendment of the bond resolutions,
bond indentures or like instruments governing the issuance, delivery and administration
of all outstanding bonds.

1 1. Termination - This Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest
occurrence of either of the following events: (a) the dissolution of the CFD pursuant to
section 53338.5 of the Act or (b) the written agreement of the Parties to terminate this
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect for as long as any Bonds, if any, are outstanding.

12. Beneficiaries - No person or entity shall be deemed a third party
beneficiary of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is
intended to confer or impose upon any person or entity, other than the Parties, any
rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities.

Page 42

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



13. Counterparts - This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each

of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute but one
agreement.

Page 43

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be

executed by their authorized representatives as ofthe effective date stated above.

CITY OF'F'OLSOM

Name

Title: Citv Manager

SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY
DISTRICT

By

Name:

Title

By

Page 44

09/28/2021 Item No.6.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10705 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design and Engineering Services During
Construction for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Environmental and Water Resources Department has developed a water and wastewater
infrastructure rehabilitation and replacement (R & R) program through water and wastewater
master plans and ongoing condition assessment programs. Through these efforts, portions of
the water and wastewater system in the City have been identified as needing rehabilitation or
replacement. A comprehensive plan has been developed for the R & R of these aging systems,
and much of this work has been completed in recent years. The projects identified and included
within the Water System Improvements Project No. 1 include the replacement of the waterline
serving Negro Bar State Park, replacing the upstream slide gate on the Willow Hill Dam, and
rehabilitating the waterline on Rainbow Bridge.

In 2018, the Environmental and Water Resources Department completed a pre-qualification
process for consultants for design and construction management services. The consulting firm
Water Works Engineers, LLC was one of six design firms selected to provide design and

1

MEETING DATE: 9t2812021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10705 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Water Works Engineers,
LLC for Design and Engineering Services During Construction
for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1

F'ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 45

09/28/2021 Item No.7.



construction management services for various types of projects through the pre-qualification
process. EWR staff evaluated the consultant submittals based on relevant project experience,
the consultant's understanding of the background and requirements of the project,
qualifications and experience of the consultant's design team, and previous work with
municipalities. In addition, the Willow Hill Reservoir Valve Replacement Project included
unique requirements of underwater diving services and the design of atemporary dam that will
be needed for construction. Of the six consultants pre-qualified for design and construction
management services, Water Works Engineers, LLC was selected because they have the only
project team that can provide the underwater diving services and temporary dam design that
are unique to this project.

This contract is for design and engineering services during construction related to the Willow
Hill Reservoir Valve Replacement Project only. No additional cost for design or construction
management services is being requested for the Negro Bar Waterline Rehabilitation Project,
or the Rainbow Bridge Waterline Rehabilitation Project. These projects have been designed
and constructed to date.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Water Works
Engineers, LLC for design and engineering services during construction for the Water System
Rehabilitation Project No. I for a not-to-exceed amount of $225,339.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 ofthe Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,
and construction with a value of $62,014 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

The engineering services for this project will be to develop bid documents to replace the
existing slide gate on the upstream side of the dam at the Willow Hill Reservoir, which is
required by the Division of Safety of Dams (DSOD). DSOD requires two working valves on
the outlet pipe of the reservoir, one on both sides of the reservoir. Currently, the downstream
valve on the outlet pipe is in working condition. However, the existing valve on the upstream
side of the outlet pipe is no longer functional and needs to be replaced.

After further discussion between the City, Water Works Engineers, LLC, and DSOD, a design
concept was agreed upon. This design will involve replacing the existing upstream valve in the
current location. City staff is recommending the following scope of work:

o Coordination/Meetings with City
o Develop 30yo, 60yo, 90Yo plans and specifications for review by the City and

DSOD

2
Page 46

09/28/2021 Item No.7.



o Final Bid Package (plans, specifications, bid quantities, final cost estimate)

o Bid Support
o Submittal Reviews/RFl Responses

This resolution will authoize the City Manager to execute an Agreement with Water Works
Engineers, LLC for design and engineering services during construction for the Water System

Rehabilitation Project No. 1 for a not-to-exceed amount of $225,339.

F'ISCAL IMPACT

The Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1 is included in the FY 2021-22 Capital
Improvement Plan in the amount of $2,345,138. Sufficient funds have been budgeted for and

are available in the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An environmental opportunities and constraints analysis will be performed as part of the design
process to ensure DSOD environmental compliance. The analysis will include a general

approach to the environmental compliance process, including a recommendation for any

California Environmental Quality Act documentation and identification, identification of
potentially required regulatory permits, and a general mitigation strategy and cost estimate.

ATTACHMENT

ResolutionNo. 10705 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design and Engineering Services During Construction
Administration Services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J
Page 47

09/28/2021 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10705

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH WATER WORKS ENGINEERSN LLC FOR DESIGN AND

ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR THE WATER SYSTEM
REHABILITATION PROJECT NO. 1

WHEREAS, the City identifies projects that are critical to ensuring the delivery of
adequate and high quality water supply to all residents and businesses; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom has identified the Willow Hill Reservoir Valve
Replacement Project as a priority to maintain integrity and operation of the raw water system;

and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom will incorporate comments provided by the Division of
Safety of Dams (DSOD) into the final design and environmental review; and

WHEREAS, Water Works Engineers, LLC by reason of their past experience and

abilities for performing these types of services, are qualified to perform the required consulting
services; and

WHEREAS, the agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC will be in the amount of
$225,339; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey:

NOW' THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC for
design and construction administration services for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No.
1 for an amount not-to-exceed$225,339.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28ft day of September 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10705
Page I of I Page 48

09/28/2021 Item No.7.



l {-r.1.:r L) i\::[
! ,1lielr.t I r IlTl ta

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt:

Resolution No 10706 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Russell Ranch Phase 3,{
Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3.A' Subdivision.

BACKGROUND/ISSUE

The Amended Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A subdivision
was approved by the City Council on June 28,2016.

The action for consideration by the City Council is the approval of the Final Map and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement for the Russell Ranch Phase 3,A' subdivision. The Final
Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3,A. subdivision will create a total of 132 single-family (SF)

and single-family high-density (SFHD) residential lots. With the approval of the Final Map, the
subdivision process for this project will be complete.

The Russell Ranch Phase 3,A subdivision is located on the north side of Alder Creek Parkway
east of Placerville Road, south of US Highway 50 and west of the future Folsom Heights
Subdivision in the Folsom Plan Area (FPA) (see below).

MEETING DATE: 91281202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10706 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept
Offers of Dedication for the Russell Ranch Phase 3,A. Subdivision,
and Approval of the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 34'
Subdivision

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 49

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



rrn' ul'fclt$il|

u.s. HIGHWAY 50 z.o
9I

=tl@t
o
t
E
IJJT
E
fi
dlt

glt

rlltFr

CT'T f,F 
'IlI..sT

POLICY/RULE

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of California and the City's Subdivision Ordinance
require that the City Council approve Final Maps and Subdivision Improvement Agreements.

ANALYSIS

The Final Map and conditions of approval for the Russell Ranch Phase 34. subdivision have
been reviewed by the Community Development Department and other City departments. The
Final Map has been found to be in substantial compliance with the approved Amended
Tentative Subdivision Map, and all conditions pertaining to the map have been satisfied.

Attached is a table which includes the conditions of approval for the Russell Ranch Phase 34
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map. The tables include information concerning when the
condition is required to be satisfied (e.g. at Final Map, building permit, etc.), which City
department is responsible to verifu that it has been satisfied, and comments or an explanation on
how the condition was satisfied.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Environmental Impact Report was certified for the Russell Ranch Phase 1 subdivision
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines (Russell Ranch EIR, SCH #
2014062018), by the City Council on May 12,2015. No further environmental review is
required for this Final Map.

I
a
a
I
I
I

I
I
I
I
t
I
l
I
I
I
a
I
I
I

-_)

ri

Page 50

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10706 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Russell Ranch Phase 34
Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision

2. Russell Ranch Phase 34. Subdivision Improvement Agreement

3. Russell Ranch Phase 34. Final Map

4. Russell Ranch Phase 3,A. Amended Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

5. Table of Conditions of Approval for the Russell Ranch Phase 3,A. Amended Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map

Submitted,

Pam Johns
Community Development Director

Page 51

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. 10706 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To
Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of
Dedication for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision, and Approval

of the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision

Page 52

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10706

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND ACCEPT OFF'ERS OF
DEDICATION FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A SUBDIVISION, AND
APPROVAL Of,'THE FINAL MAP FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A

SUBDIVISION

WHEREAS, the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3,A. subdivision has been

reviewed and approved by the City Engineer as complying with the approved or conditionally
approved Amended Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Final Map for the Russell Ranch

Phase 3,A. subdivision; and

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to accept, subject to improvement, any and all
offers of dedication as shown on the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A subdivision.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Folsom that the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A subdivision is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to
execute the Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Lennar Homes of California, Inc. in a
form acceptable to the City Attorney and accept the offers of dedication for the Russell Ranch
Phase 3,A, subdivision.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September 2021, by the following ro11-

call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s)

NOES: Councilmember(s)

ABSENT: Councilmember(s)

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s)

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10706
Page I of I

Page 53

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 2

Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision Improvement Agreement

Page 54

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



No Fee Document Pursuant to Government
Gode Section 6103.

RECORDING REOUESTED BY:

City of Folsom

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

NAME

MAILING ADDRESS

CITY, STATE, ZIP CODE

City of Folsom
City Clerk
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

SPACE ABOVE THIS IINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER'S USE

CITY OF FOLSOM

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of 202l,by and

between the City of Folsom, hereinafter referred to as "City", AG Essential HousingCA 4, L.P., a

Delaware Limited Partnership hereinafter referred to a toOwnertt and Lennar Homes of
Californiar lnc.o a California Corporation hereinafter referred to as "Subdivider".

RECITALS

A.

B.

Owner has presented to the City a certain Final Map of a proposed subdivision of land located

within the corporate limits of the City that has been prepared in accordance with the

Subdivision Map Act of the State of California, the subdivision ordinances of the City, and the

Tentative Subdivision Map, if any, of the subdivision previously approved by the City Council

of the City.

Owner is vested with fee title to the proposed subdivision of land commonly known and

described as Russell Ranch Phase 3A and is herein referred to as the "subdivision". Owner

desires Subdivider to construct on said property certain public improvements in connection

with the subdivision.

Owner has requested approval of the Final Map prior to the construction and completion of the

public improvements (as shown on the approved improvement plans and listed in Exhibit A),
including, but not limited to streets, highways, public ways, sidewalks, cutbs, gutters,

bikeways, storm drainage facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, domestic water facilities, public

utility facilities, landscaping, public lighting facilities, park or recreational improvements and

appurtenances thereto, in or required by the Subdivision Map Act, the subdivision ordinances

of the City, the Tentative Subdivision Map and development agreement, if any, approved by

the City. The foregoing improvements, more specifically listed on Exhibit A attached hereto,

C

1

Page 55

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



D

are hereinafter referred to as "the required improvements".

City Council has required as a condition precedent to the approval of the Final Map, the
Subdivider first enters into and executes this subdivision improvement agreement with the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

Performance of Work. Subdivider shall furnish, construct, and install at its own
expense the required improvements as shown on the approved plans and specifications
of the subdivision, a copy of which is on file in the Community Development
Department, and is incorporated herein by reference, along with any changes or
modifications as may be required by the City Engineer due to errors, omissions,
changes in conditions, or changes in facilities as required by the City Engineer. The
approved plans and specifications of the required improvements may be modified by the
Subdivider as the development progresses, provided that any modification is approved
in writing by the City Engineer. The total estimated cost of the required improvements,
as shown on Exhibit A, is FOUR MILLION THREE HUNDRED TWO
THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY THREE AND OO/1OO DOLLARS
($4,302,493.00).

Work Satisfaction of City Engineer. All of the work on the required improvements is
to be done at the places, of the materials, and in the manner and at the grades, all as

shown upon the approved plans and specifications and as required by the City's
Improvement Standards and Standard Construction Specifications and any applicable
City ordinances or state and federal laws, and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer.

Work: Time for Commencement and Performance. Work on the required
improvements shall be completed by the Subdivider on or before twelve (12) months
from the date of this Agreement. At least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the
commencement of such work, the Subdivider shall noti$ the City Engineer in writing
of the date fixed by Subdivider for commencement of the work.

4. Time of Essence: Extension.

a. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. The date for completion of the work
of construction may not be extended, except as provided in Section 16.36.1l0 of
the Folsom Municipal Code.

5 Improvement Security. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, the
Subdivider shall furnish the City:

a. Improvement security in the sum of FOUR MILLION THREE HIINDRED
TWO THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY THREE AND OO/1OO

DOLLARS ($41302,493.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent of the
total estimated cost of constructing the required improvements and the cost of
any other obligation to be performed by Subdivider under this Agreement,
conditioned upon the faithful performance of this Agreement; and

I

2

3

2

Page 56

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



b Separate improvement security in the sum of FOUR MILLION THREE
HUNDRED TWO THOUSAND FOUR HUNDRED NINETY THREE AND
00/100 DOLLARS ($4,302,493.00), which sum is equal to one hundred percent

of the estimated cost of constructing the required improvements, securing

payment to the contractor, subcontractor and to persons furnishing labor,

materials, or equipment to them for the construction of the required

improvements.

c. The Subdivider shall deposit with the City THREE THOUSAND AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($3,000.00) for the Final Map. The deposit may be used at

the discretion of the City to correct deficiencies and conditions caused by the

Subdivider, contractor, or subcontractors that may arise during or after the

construction of the subdivision.

d. The estimated total cost of required improvements includes a ten percent (I0%)
construction cost contingency, the cost of the installation of survey monuments

in the Subdivision to guarantee and secure the placement of such monuments as

provided by Section 66496 of the Government Code of the State of California,

and an estimated utility cost in addition to ensure installation of public utilities.
In lieu of providing the estimate of total utility costs, the Subdivider may

submit, in a form acceptable to the City Engineer, certification from the utility
companies that adequate security has been deposited to ensure installation.

Plan Checkine and Inspection Fees. The Subdivider shall pay to the City fees for the

checking, filing, and processing of improvement plans and specifications, and for
inspecting the construction of the required improvements in the amounts and at the

times established by the City.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless. The Owner and Subdivider shall jointly and and

severally indemnify, protect, defend, save and hold the City harmless from any and all

claims or causes of action for death or injury to persons, or damage to property resulting

from intentional or negligent acts, errors, or omissions of Subdivider or Subdivider's

officers, employees, volunteers, and agents during performance of this Agreement, or in

connection with Subdivider's work, or from any violation of any federal, state, or

municipal law or ordinance, to the extent caused, in whole or in part, by the willful
misconduct, negligent acts, or omissions of Subdivider or its employees, subcontractors,

or agents, or by the quality or character of Subdivider's work. It is understood that the

duty of Owner and Subdivider to indemnif,i and hold harmless includes the duty to

defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code. Acceptance by City of
insurance certificates and endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve

Owner and Subdivider from liability under this indemnification and hold harmless

clause. This indemnification and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or

claims for damages whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined

to apply, and shall further survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. By

execution of this Agreement, Owner and Subdivider acknowledge and agree to the

provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration. Owner and

3

6

7

Page 57

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



8

Subdivider shall, at their own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or
legal proceedings that may be brought or instituted against the City, its officers and

employees, on any such claim or demand, and pay or satis$ any judgement that may be

rendered against the City in any such actions, suits or legal proceedings, or result
thereof.

lnsurance. Subdivider and any contractors hired by Subdivider to perform any ofthe
Required Improvements shall, at their expense, maintain in effect for the duration of
this Agreement or until the required improvements are accepted by the City, whichever
first occurs, not less than the following coverage and limits of insurance, which shall be

maintained with insurers and under forms of policy satisfactory to the City. The
maintenance by Subdivider and it contractors of the following coverage and limits of
insurance is a material element of this Agreement. The failure of Subdivider or any of
its contractors to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal may be

treated by the City as a material breach of this Agreement.

a. Minimum Limits of Insurance. Subdivider shall maintain limits not less than:

1 Comprehensive General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per

occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.

Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability: Worker's
Compensation limits as required by the Labor Code of the State of
Califomia and Employers Liability limits of $1,000,000 per accident.

b Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions shall be declared to and approved by the City. At the option of the
City, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects to a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related
investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

c. Other Insurance Provisions. The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to
contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages

A. The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to
be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of
activities performed by or on behalf of the Subdivider; products
and completed operations of the Subdivider;premises owned,
leased or used by the Subdivider; or automobiles owned, leased,

hired or borrowed by the Subdivider. The coverage shall contain
no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the

City, its officers, officials, employees or volunteers.

4

2

3

Page 58

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



The Subdivider's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance
as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees and

volunteers. Any insurance of self-insurance maintained by the

City, its officials, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the

Subdivider's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
shall not affect coverage provided to the City, its officers,
offi cials, employees or volunteers.

D The Subdivider's insurance shall apply separately to each insured

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

2. Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage. The insurer

shall agree to waive all rights or subrogation against the City, its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers for losses arising from work
performed by Subdivider for the City.

All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided or
cancelled by either pnty, reduced in coverage or in limits except after

thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's
rating of not less than A: VII.

Verification of Coverage. Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement,

the Subdivider shall furnish the City with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this clause. The endorsements for each insurance policy
are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf. The City feserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies at any time.

9. Title to Improvemertts. Title to and ownership of the required public improvements

constructed under this Agreement by Subdivider shall vest absolutely in the City upon

completion and written acceptance of such improvements by the City Engineer. The City
Engineer shall not accept the required improvements unless Subdivider certifies that such

improvements have been constructed in conformity with the approved plans and specifications,

approved modifications, if any, the approved Final Map, City Improvement Standards and

Standard Construction Specifications, any applicable City Ordinances or State and Federal laws

and after 35 days from the date of filing of a Notice of Completion.

Warrantv Security. Prior to acceptance of the required improvements by the City Engineer, the

Subdivider shall provide security in the amount and in the form as required by the City
Engineer to guarantee the improvements against any defective work or labor done or defective

5

B

C.

J

d.

e

10

Page 59

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



11.

12.

13

t4.

materials used in the performance of the required improvements (Warranty Security)

throughout the warranty security period which shall be the period of one year following

completion and written acceptance of the improvements (Warranty Security Period). The

amount of the Warranty Security shall not be less than 10 percent of the cost of the construction

of the improvements, including the cash deposit required in paragraph 5C of this agreement,

which shall be retained for the Warranty Security Period.

Repair or Reconstruction of Defective Work or Materials. If, within the Warranty Security

F.iioA or the applicable statute of limitations, whichever is longer, any improvement or part of
any improvement furnished and/or installed or constructed by Subdivider or any of the work

done under this Agreement fails to fulfill any of the requirements of the Agreement or the

specifications referred to herein as determined by the City, Subdivider shall without delay and

without any cost to the City, repair, replace, or reconstruct any defective or otherwise

unsatisfactory partor parts of the required improvements. If the Subdivider fails to act

promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or if the exigencies of the situation require

iepaiis or replacements to be made before the Subdivider can be notified, then the City may, at

its option, make the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and

Subdivider shall pay to City the actual cost of such repairs plus f,rfteen percent (15%) within
thirty (30) days olthe date of billing for such work by City. The parties further understand and

agrel that the Warranty Security furnished pursuant to paragraph 10 of this Agreement shall

guarantee and secure the faithful performance and payment of the provisions of this paragraph

during the Warranty Security Period.

Owner/Subdivider Not Agent of City. Neither Owner or Subdivider nor any of their agents or

contractors are or shall be considered to be agents of City in connection with the performance

of Owner's and Subdivider's obligations under this Agreement.

Notice of Breach and Default. If Subdivider refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any part

thereof, with such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified, or any

extension thereof, or fails to complete the work within such time, or if Subdivider should be

adjudged a bankruptcy, or Subdivider should make a general assignment for the benefit of his

.ridito.r, or if a reieiver should be appointed in the event of Subdivider's insolvency, or if
Subdivider or any of Subdivider's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees should

violate any of the provisions of this Agreement and the City may, but is under no obligation to,

serve written notice upon Subdivider and Subdivider's surety, if any, of breach of this

Agreement, or of any portion thereof.

Breach of Agreement: Performance By Surety or City. In the event of any such notice,

Subdivider's surety, if any, shall have the duty to take over and complete the work and the

required improvements; provided, however, that if the surety within fifteen (15) days after the

serving of such notice of breach upon it does not give the City written notice of its intention to

take over the performance thereof within fifteen (15) days after notice to the City of such

election, then the City may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by

contract, or by any other method the City may deem advisable, for the account and at the

expense of the Subdivider, and the Subdivider's surety shall be liable to City for any excess

costs of damages incurred by the City; and in such event, the City, without liability for so

doing, may tale possession of and utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances,

planior other property belonging to Subdivider as may be on the site of the work and necessary

6

Page 60

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



l5

therefor

If the form of improvement security is other than a bond, then the City, after giving notice of
breach of the Agreement, may proceed to collect against the improvement security in the

manner provided by law and by the terms of the security instrument.

Notices. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing, and delivered in person

or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid.

Notices required to be given to City shall be addressed as follows:

City of Folsom
Community Development Department

50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630

ATTN: City Engineer

Notices required to be given to Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Lennar Homes of Californiao Inc.
1025 Creekside Ridge Drive, Suite 240

Roseville, CA 95678
ATTN; Larry Gualco, Vice President

Notices required to be given surety, if any, of Subdivider shall be addressed as follows:

Any party of the surety may change such address by notice in writing to the other party and

thereafter notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

16. Attorney's Fees. In the event any legal action is brought to enforce or interpret this Agreement,

the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, in addition to

any other relief to which the prevailing party may be entitled.

17. Assignment. This Agreement shalt bind and inure to the benefit of the assigns, successors in

interest, heirs, executors, and administrators of the parties, and the parties agree that the City
may cause a copy of this Agreement to be recorded in the Sacramento County Recorder's

Office.

7

Page 61

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



BY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as follows:

SUBDIVIDER

LENNAR HOMES OF CALIFORNIA,INC.' a California Corporation

Print Name

TITLE

DATE:

CITY OF FOLSOM' a Municipal Corporation

D.{TE
Elaine Andersen
CITY MANAGER

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle
CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Pam Johns
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven Wang
CITY ATTORNEY

DATE

DATE

NOTICE: SIGNATURE(S) ON BEHALF OF ..SUBDIVIDER'' MUST BE NOTARIZED
Certificate of Acknowledgement pursuant to Civil Code, Section 1189, must be attached.

SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT - Russell Ranch Phase 3A

8

Page 62

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



BOND # 

-

PREMIUM:

PERFORMANCE BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation in the State of
Califomia, and Lennar Homes of California, Inc., a California Corporation, (hereinafter designated

as "Principal") have entered into an agreement where by principal agrees to install and complete

certain designated public improvements, which said agreement, dated 2021, and identified

as the Russell Ranch Phase 34 Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and

made a part hereof; and,

WHEREAS, Said Principal is required under the terms of said agleement to furnish a bond for
the faithful performance of said agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, We, the PrinciPal, and

,.f",.dt"",th"ctrlrf ',,iJ;:?;t"::l':?$3,iffi]il'll13JH'ffi ;'ffil"iTfr 'f inut"

THOUSAND F',OUR HUNDRED NINETY THREE AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($4,3020493.00),

lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind

ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors , and administrators, jointly and severally firmly by these

presents.

The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, its heirs, executors,

administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep

and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the said agreement and any alteration thereof

made as therein provided, on its part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein

specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemniff and save

hirmless the City, its officers, agents, and employees, as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall

become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefor,

there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees,

incurred by City in successful enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and included in any

judgment rendered.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition

to the terms of the agreement or to the work to be performed thereunder or the specifications

accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive

notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the agreement or to

the work or to the specifications.

Page 63

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety

above named, on ,202I-

(PRINCIPAL)

BY
(PRINCIPAL)

(srJRErY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

BY

Page 64

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



BOND #

LABOR & MATERIALS BOND
for

Subdivision Improvement Agreement

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Folsom, a Municipal Corporation of the State of
California, and Lennar Homes of California, Inc., a California Corporation (hereinafter designated

as "Principal"), have entered into an agreement whereby principal agrees to install and complete

certain designated public improvements, which said agreement, dated 202I, and identified

as the Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision Improvement Agreement is hereby referred to and

made a part hereof; and,

WHEREAS, under the terms of said agreement, principal is required before entering upon the

performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the City of Folsom to secure

ihe claims to which reference is made in Title l5 (commencing with Section 3082) of Part 4 of
Division 3 of the Civil Code of the State of Califomia;

NOW THEREFORE, said principal and the undersigned as corporate surety, are held firmly
bound unto the City of Folsom and all contractors, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen and other

persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement and referred to in the aforesaid Code

otCivit Procedure, in the sum of FOUR MILLION THREE HUNDRED TWO THOUSAND
F'OUR HUNDRED NINETY THREE AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($4,302,493.00) for materials

furnished or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act

with respect to such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding the

amount hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to

the face amount thereof, cost and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's fees,

incurred by City in successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the court, and to

be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered.

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and

all persona, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 15 (commencing with

Section 3032) of Part 4 of Division 3 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their

assigns in any suit brought upon this bond.

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and

void, otherwise it shall be and remain in fulI force and effect.

The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or

addition to the terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any

manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change,

extension, alteration, or addition.

Page 65

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the principal and surety

above named, on ,2021.

(PRINCIPAL)

(PRINCIPAL)

(suRErY)

(ADDRESS)

(CITY, STATE, ZIP)

(TELEPHONE)

APPROVED AS TO FORM

CITY ATTORNEY

BY

BY

BY

Page 66

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Attach Exhibit ooA"

Engineers Estimate signed and stamped by Licensed Civil Engineer

13

Page 67

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FOLSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estimote SummarY

for
Russell Ranch - Phose 3A

Russell Ranch PH3A $

Total

Cost

9,974,949

Cost to

Complete

$ 4,302,493

Subtotal

TOTAL Costs

$

$

s

$

9,974,949

9,974,949

4,302,493

4,?02,499

Page 68

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FOLSOM PIAN AREA
Cost Estimote for

Russell Ronch - Phase 3A

LJnit Prlce

Cost to

complete Complete
%

Item No quantitY Unit Descrlptlon

Slte Preparation & Earthwork

Clearing & Grubbing

Erosion Control

Rough Grade Excavation

Masonry Retahlng Wall

Rockery Retalnlng Wall - lncludes Embedment

wood Retalnlng wall
Basalite Retalnlng Wall

Masonry Sound Wall

s 200.00

I 1,ooo.oo

S 3.so

5 2s.00

35.00

s 3s.00

5 3s.00

5 3s.oo

Subtotal Gradlng & Slte Prep

5 70.00

5 s0.00

5 4,s00.00

$ soo.oo

s 1,000.00

Subtotal Sewer

s 4s.00

s ss.oo

S 60.00

s 8o.oo

s s,000.00

5 7,ooo.oo

5 9,000.00

S 11,ooo.oo

5 2,000.00

S 3,soo.oo

50.00

5 7,s00.00

I 4,s00.00

S ss.oo

5 2,000.00

S soo.oo

S 5,ooo.oo

s 1,000.00

5 3.s00.00

5 soo.00

$ 4.000.00

Total

s 9,040.00 100%

S 45,2oo.oo 100%

100%

775.725.00

s

s

s

s

$

s

5

5

5

1

)

3

4

5

6

7

8

43 AC

45 AC

407,659 CY

31,029 SF

49,722 SF

2,593 SF

18,203 SF

18,635.0 sF

2,639
1,082

r,637
500
s18

93

20

4

3

2

3

3

4ZA

20

18

s

s
s 1,71

25%

90%
OYo

30%

o%

100%

100%

100%

o%

581,793.75
L71,927.OO

90,755.00

445,973.50

652,260.00
25

s

s

5

s

5

s

1

2

3

4

5

9.270.00

s 9o,7s5.oo

S 637,10s.00

S 652,260.00

$ s,3s6,161.s0

s 443.086.00

s 7,44s.00

s 121,s00.00

5 s00.00

Sanitary SewerSystem

6,330

749
27

1

r32

Storm Draln System

LF S" Sanitary Sewer, PVC SDR 25

LF 6" sanitary Sewer, PVC SDR 26

EA 4S"StandardSanitarySewerMH
EA Connection to Existing Sewer Main

EA 4"SanltarySewerService

LF 12" Storm Drain, RCP CL lll

LF 15" Storm Drain, RCP CL lll
LF 18" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

LF 24" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

LF 30" StormDraln,RCPCLlll
LF 36" Storm Draln, RCP CL lll

EA 48" standard storm Drain Manhole

EA 60" Standard Storm Draln Manhole

EA 72" Standard Storm Draln Manhole

EA 84" Storm Drain Manhole

EA Type'F'Drainagelnlet
EA Modiftfled Type'B' Dralnage lnlet

LF 4" Canyon Draln

EA Type GOL-10 (On Grade) Dralnagelnlet

EA Type 6OL-7 (On Grade) Orainage lnlet

s 132,000.00 to0%

) 704,531.00

500,00

500.00

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

17

t2
13

14

15

s 118,732.s0

s s9,482.s0

s 98.220.00

100%

too%
100%

)
5

s

5

s
$

5

s

s
5

5

)
s
5

$

s

65.00 s 32,480.50 100%

70.00 5 36,260.00 100%

5 7,440.00 100%

5 100.000.00 100%

5 28,000.00 100%

5 z7,ooo.oo 1oo%

5 22,000,00 100%

s 6,000.00

s 10,s00.00

s 21,000.00

s 150,000.00

s 81,000.00

so%

OYo

10096

o%

-

0%

3,000.00

10,s00.00

150,000.00

81,000.00

244,500.00Subtotal storm Draln S 798,115.50

Potable Water Dlstrlbution System

tF S" Water Main, PVC C900 CL 200

EA 8" Gate Valve

EA RemoveBlow"OffValve&Connect
EA Flre Hydrant Assembly (6" Lead & Appurtenances)

EA 1" Water Servlce

EA 2"Alr&VacuumReleaseValve
EA Water Sampling Station

EA 3" AIr nelease Valve

1

z

3

4

5

6

7

8

7,069

15

5

15

132
4
2

5

s 388,767.s0

5 3o,ooo.oo

s 2,s00.00

$ 75,ooo.oo

5 132,ooo.oo

$ 1,000.00

s 20,000.00

s 14,000.00 s0%

70%
70%

a%

70%

70%

50%

60%

116,630.25

9,000.00
2,500.00

22,s00.00

39,600.00

7,000.00
500.00

8,000.00

)
s
s

s
$

)
s
s

s

Non-Potable Water Dlstrlbutlon System

SubtotalWater 5 653.267.50 205,730.25

Page 69

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Item No Quantlty Unlt Descrlptlon

980
1

1

3

4

1

Concrete

5,688
8,624

52,468
2,743
3,193

4

LF 8" Non-waterMah, Pvcc900cL200

EA 4" End of Llne Blow'Off Valve

EA 2"Alr&VacuumReleasevalve
EA 8" Gate Valve

EA 2" Water Service

EA RemoveBlow'offValve&Connect

LF TypezVertlcalCurb&Gutter
LF Mountable curb & Gutter

SF Sldewalk (6" PCC)

LF 2'concrete V-Dltch

LF Rock Llned Swale

EA Concrete SUrveY Monument

Non-Potable Water S 81,400.00

FOLSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estlmote far

Russell Rdnch - Phose 3A

Unlt Prlce

5 ss.oo

s 3,s00.00

S 3,soo.oo

5 2,000.00

S g,soo.oo

S soo.oo

Subtotal

3.s00.00

3.500.00

6.000.00

s 14.000,00

s 500.00

Cost to
Complete

5 26,9s0.00

s 3,s00,00

$ 3,soo.oo

s 4,800.00

5 14,000.00

5 s00.00

s

Total
53.900.00

%

complete
50%

o94

o%

209l

o%

o%

t
2

3

4

5

6

s

s

5

1

2

3

4
5

5

I 20.00

S 25.00

s 113,760.00 Ovo

s s.00

s zo.oo

s s.00

s 3oo.o0

subtotal Concrete S 663.716.00

o%

096

o%

o%

o%

s 21s,s92.s0

s 262,338.s0

S s486o.oo

$ 1s,965.00

$ 1,2oo.oo

s s3,2s0.00

113,760,00

21s,592.50
262,338.50

54,850.00
15,965.00

1,200.00

553.716.00

s

$

I
$

$

s

s

Page 70

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Item No quantlty Unlt Descrlptlon

Streetwork

FOTSOM PLAN AREA
Cost Estlmate for

Russell Ranch - Phose 34

Unlt Prlce

s 8o.oo

s 20.00

S s.oo

5 2.oo

S s,ooo.oo

S soo.oo

s s00.00

$ 300.00

S 5oo.oo

S rz.oo

S s,ooo.oo

s 3,000.00

$ 3,ooo.oo

s ls.oo
s 2s.00

Total

s 349,336.00

s 291,114.00

$ r,4ro.oo

5 214.00

S s,ooo.oo

s 3,500,00

5 +,ooo,oo

5 2,4oo,oo

S 11,055,00

S 1,2so.oo

$ 9,068,138.s0

S 906,810.00

o/{ costto
Complete complete

s 3,soo.oo

$ 27,168.00

S s,ooo.oo

s 93,000.00

$ 3,0oo.oo

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

I
9

x0
11

72

13

4,367
14,556

282
!a7

I

7

I
I
7

2,264

L

31

1

Ton AsphaltConcrete{Type'B')

Ton Aggregate Base (Class 2)

SF Pavement Marklngs

LF 12' Llmlt Llne (Stop Slgn)

EA Streetlight Servlce Polnt

EA StopSlSn(R1-1)OnPost

EA Street NameSlgn On Post

EA Mlscellaneous Slgns

EA NoParklngSlgn(R25)OnPost

tF Flber Optlc Condult 7 Pullwlre

EA Streetll8ht Servlce Polnt

EA LED Streetllght

EA 26.5'Plpe Gate

LF Post & Cable Earrler

LF Sldewalk Sarrlcade

Summarv

subtotal streetwork S 788,642.00

o%

0%

0%

0%

0%

o%

0%

a%

0,6

o%

0%

o%

0%

0%

o%

349,336.00
291,114.00

1,410.00

214,00

5,000,00
3,500.00
4,000,00

2,400.00

3,s00.00
27,168.00

5,000.00

93.000.00
3,000.00

(
(

$

s

$
(

$
(

s

$
(

s

$

$

Mlscellaneous

50.0

1

2

737

Slte Preparatlon & Earthwork

Sewer
Storm Draln

Potable watet
Non-Potable water
Concrete

Street$rork
Mlscellaneous
Contlngency

$

Total cost

s 5,356,161.50

S 704,531.00

$ 798,115.50

s 663,267.s0

$ 81,4oo.oo

$ 663,716,00

S 788,642,00

S tz,3os,oo
$ 906,810.00

TOTALS $ g,gZa,gqg,SO

788,642,00

11,055,00
1,250.00

12,30s.00

s 3,911,352,50

$ 391,140.00

S 4,302,492,s0

cost to complete

$ 1,942,7O9.u

$ soo.oo

s 244s00.00

S 2os,73o.zs

$ 53,250.00

$ 563,716.00

$ 78&542,00

s 12,305,00

$ 391,140.00

$ 4302,492.50

s
s

sSubtotal Street Llghts s 12.305.00

TOTAL Subdivlsdlon lmprovements

contlnEencl

Total Cost Estlmate

@

Page 71

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 3

Russell Ranch Phase 3,A. Final Map

Page 72

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



.EEg

OWNER'S STATEMENT

frE UNDERSIGNED DOES HEre8Y STAE TNAT I N BE dLY PNil MVING NY RE@ro Tru
INEREST INffER4 PROPERW INCLUOEDWITHIN THEruNDffiIS OFTHIS FIW WOF'RUSELL
NCH PreE S Sru LOT W'ND DO HEREBY DECWE THE COSEM FROM rc OBER PEreON
lS NECESY, AND I mSilT TO THE PEPmTON ND REmAION tr DIS FIW Wi NO
OFFER FOR DEDIATPN SD DO HEffi8Y DEDISIES PUBLIC RIGHTOFWAYS ND S PUSLIC WILIfl
ffiEMENTS TO BE CIry * FCSOM, PLffiT MVNE DRIW. VIUEROE DRIE.IrcN BIM ORVE,
SCENIC WA ORre, $ENIC VSTA COURI RUSSEI NCH RN. ND UER CREEK PMAY S
SHM HEREON.

W OO HEREBY OEDIqTE fORSPECIFIC PUMGES IHE FOLLffNG:

1. A PUBLIC SEMilT FOR THE flSTMNd ND MAMWCE OF DHN. ffi. SMR ND
WAER PIPES, ND FG UNDERGROUND WIRES ND MDUIS FOR EECMN, BrySPN ND
CfrMINIqTONS SERUCES, TOGflHER WTH N &D U FPURIINCS PEtrANING
IHESO S, OE UNOER NO rcRN ftGE SNIre OF WD SHOWN HEEON ND
DESIGMTED"PUBLE WLW SEMENT (P.U.E.).

2. A PUBLIC NMEM NO RIGHT€F{AY FM THE INSIMTION, REPAIR, RilWA OR
EPrcEMilT OF HDSWTNG TMETHER WITH NY NO AL PPUREWCS PERTANING
THEffiO ON. ryER UNDER ND rcRN THSE ffiIre OF WD SHOWN HEreON NO
oEslGMTEo "UNOswE SEMAr (LE.).

3, A PUBLIC SEMENT FOR ftE INSMTION NO MIMEWCE OF SIDEWM ND PEDESTRN
ACCESS ON, OER N rcRN frOSE ffiIPS OF WD SHOW H€EON ND DESIGME
.PEDESRN Affi SEMEM (PA.E.).

4- APUBTIC SEMEMFMfrE NGRSNDEGRSG CIfr OFFOSMWHICIESON, OWRND
ACROSS TH6E SNFS OF WD $OM HERES ND DESIGMED 'rcCESS ffiEMEM (AE).

5. A PUELIC $ilENT F@ CONSNUfrPN ANO UIIAINING CENTWIZEO MIL DELERY 8OES.
PEDE$N ND SWS TOGffiER WM N ND [L PruffiEWCES PERTAINING ftEFO
INAUDNG PEOEffiN rcCE$ FOR Dilffi ND ffiCEIF OF hL ON, MR NO ffiOSS
SNIPS OF WD FM {5) FEfl N WDN OIGUOUS TO AL RIGffi{F{AYS.

CITY ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

I HEEBY STAE MT I UW WINEO frS Fru MP OF ?U$U NH PffiE S SMLL LOT W'
ND FIND IT TO BE SUNNTruY frE SSE N NE EMATVE W PPRWED 8Y ffE CIry CWNCIL
OF frE CIil OF FO6OM, ND TUT AL PROVSION OF frE SUBOIUSIS W ff ND ru
APPUfiBE CNORDIMNGS MW BE€N CffPLIEDWtrH.

SREN R. ffiN, RCE&91
CN ENGINEER
CW OF FOLSOM
!trENSE ilPlreS:gMz

UTE:

CITY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

I HEREBY STAE MT I ilW ruNED THE FNI MP OF NU$AL MNq PffiE S sru LOT W'
ND I S $NSFED ruT SD W IS ECHNIruLY COMECT.

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S. Gru A YOUNG, !.S. 952

cfr suRvflG

NAVD88 BENCHMARK€ITY OF FOLSOM

BENCHMARK'7o' ELEVATION=783.91' NAVDE8

BNS OIS STNPED gry OF FOLSOM BM 70' ON BE NOM#T CORNER OF A MCffi PAD
WN ELECTruR PNE6 ON THE ST SIDE OF A CEUUW TMR STE, LGTION OF StrE F
fPRqIMTELY 0.2 MILES SOUN OF HreMAYSOND 126 MIIES STOFTHE E. EIWELLOWPS.
TROXIMTEUTruOE: N38'SS.S'LSGIruDE:w12l'6 2E.F

ftE SIS Fffi AryANOS WERE RUN FRq @Nry BENCHMK UO1H€ ST&PED 'KSfl N
FEARUffiY2Ol4 BY UCGYAND SWPSCVI! ENGINEERS, INC,

UTE: _

CITY CLERK'S STATEMENT

AG ESSENTIAT HOUSING CA4, L.P.
A DELAWARE LMTTED PARTNERSHIP.

IHERESY SAE TSTTHE Cfr@NCIL OF BE CN OF FOSOM ffiPPRMO THIS FIW W OF
.RUSEU NE PW A Sru! LOT W', ND ffi ffiEPED, ON EruF OF ffE ru*rc. SUilECT
TO IMMWilEffiS, U RIGHT{F{AYS ND SEMENTS OFF€REO HSEON FM OEOISTIS IN

ACCORNCE WB THE TERMS OF IHAT OFFER ND HS fPRWED THE N@NMAT OF THE
SEMEM USTEO HREON.

BY

WE:

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT

CHRSTA FruWTLE
CIfr CERK

UTE:_

STAE S qLFORNA

@uNfr oF _

oN_ BEFORE UE,_,ANOTR PUSLIC

PEMYPP*EO
WHO ffidO TO ME ON frE SS OF $NSFACTOW WIDENCE TO BE frE PERSON{S) ffiOSE
WE(S) ISARE SUNRBEO TO frE WMN NSTRUMEM NO rcKNOMEDGED TO ME TUT
HmHffiEY ffETED THE WE IN HIEHEffiEIR MHORZED WrcN(lES), NO TUT AY

HIgHEMHEIRSIGMTURE(S)ON THE NSNUMENTTHE PEreON(SI, ORftE ENNfr UrcN EEHAF OF

WHICH BE PEreON(S) rcTED, ff&IED THE NSNUMilT,

I CERNry UNDER PENAW OF PEruURY UNDER ffE UWS OF ftE STATE OF ruIFOilN TMT THE

FOR@ING PMGWH IS NUE ND COreCT.

WilES MY ffiDND OFFIru S4.

RECORDER'S STATEMENT
F|EDTHS.......................mYoF _,m21.AT_.u.tNmK oFWs,
AT PAGE AT THE ffiQUEST OF WNY & SOM6 CVIL ENGINEERS, INC, NIE TO frE WD
NcruoedlfrJFlilro w BE|NG VESED N pER CERTTF&E No. oN
FILE IN THISOFFICE.

DONM[re
SNRTO@Nry ECOROER

mCUMEM NO.r_

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT STATE OF @IFORNh

SIGMTU*

THIS W WS re8ED W ME OR UNDER MY DIreCNON SD IS NED UrcN A FIELD SURW IN

CONFORNCE WIIH frE EQUIRilEMS OF THE SUBDIUgE W rcI ND LM OroINCE AT

THE REOUEST tr NHC RU$il WCH LLC. A DEUWME UMIED LEILN WPN IN DECEMER
2017, I HERESY $ATE NAT ffS FINI W SUBSTNTruY CONFORMS TO THE CONOtrOWLY
FPRMo TENT ruE W: BTff E MSUilENWU BE OFfrE CMIERN0W[@UPY frE
POSITIONS N INDIBED SD W& 8E Sfi BY JUNE S, 2023; ND TUT $ID MONUUEM WIL 8E
SUFFTCIENT TO EN€LE THE SUWTO BE reTrcED.

MACSY E SOMPS CML ENGINEES, INC.

ry,- ffi:s-
DEPUfr

F|NAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A
SMALL LOT MAP

MERGER AND REUBDVISION OF LOTS IO NO 11 N SHOM AND SO DSIGMTED ON
TilT CERTAN FIW W ENNTED 'FIW W (PNI6iZ) RU$ELL SNCH BRGE LOT
FILEO FOR re@rc ON SEreMBER 21,417 IN BOOK SE OF WS. AT PAGE 1

$CWENTO COUW RE@ROS, SENDED PURSUNT rc ThT CERTAIN CERNFI$E
OF CORRECTION RECOroED OCTOBER 15, 2018 6 DOCUMENT NO. 201E101M5. A

PORTION OF SEflONs9.1O& 16. TOWSHIP9 NOffiH, MNGE 8 ST. M.D.A.M.

CITY oF FoLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNW. CALIFORNIA

WPRINCIPAPUCEOFSUSINES 6 @UNry

w wMrstoN wtREs: _MY @MMTSION NUMSER: _
FOR REVIEW

PURPOSES ONLY

SEPTEMBER 2021

SHEET 1 OF 10

CERTFIATE WRIFIES ONLY ffEA NOIN PUELE OR OTHER
IDENNry OF THE INDMOUE MO SIGNED THE DOCUMENT TO MrcH THIS GRNFIqE S
AEACHEO. NO

LIMI
orre, SE]{SEQI:923921_ mrcIAY&s0mPs

Page 73

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



NOTFS

1, AL CUWE DIMENSIOilS NE WUS, MC EilGN ND DETTA AL DSN6 SHOM & GR@ND
DISTMES ND ME N FH NO DECIilS ftEREOF. DUE TO RONDING NE SUM OF NOVDUI
DIMENSIONS MY NOT EQW THE OW DIMilSION.

2. ffts Ftw w @MA|NS g.s& ffi GRGS CONtSre OF 1& REStm LOre N0
9 LMR [OTS. frE RSDSTN IOTS N NUMBERO 111 .242 ND LM#D LOTS ffiE D, E. ( L,
M, N, O. PND O

3. A PRELIMIW GEOESN& ENGNEERNG ffiRT FOR ftE RU$41 NCH Sft (PMJECT
NO. EW.g)WN PRPffiED 8Y YONffiL CNULNNG GR&P, INC ON DECEMffi 6, M13 ND
MY 8E AVMLE Fffi Pu8trc NSECNON AT THE CN OF FOSOM COMMUNN DfflOPMEilT
DEPffiililI

4. &L FROM PT CONErc WU BE Str WN N && F@T OFSF OFO BE Ofl&EO SIOilAK ON
ff E SIDE LOT IINE OR A 1.M F@T OtrSS ONrc ff E AfrAft O SDilM ON NE SDE LOT LNE
MNDED Wft A 1'DMffiR rc DS STNEO S CS'(SEE DflAT NF SHEET),

5. Rffi MEreWIIBESTSFqTWS(UNE$SMOTHEMSE)
5.1. FOR LOE r11 - 15, 1$ - 1$, 197 - & W[ 8E Sfl Wfr A S RE&R NO PSTE W

ssPEo'6w.
52. FOR LOB Z ' &, 4 - 24 N0 @MMd LINE OF @1. W[ 8E SF W A 4.@ FOT

OFFS il ffE SIOE LOT LNE Wfr A 9f Rffi ND NIC W $SPEO'6 W
(SEE DFAL NS SEEI).

53. FOR LOIS 1$. 157.15, ru -219,&, ND @MMil LTNES S23%N0 2m7mtr FU
WfrN A M&Ntr WNffiSNG WU. WIL AE Sf ffi A 3{ BffiS Tre STNPED S
S TO NE FrcE OF WU 2.M MT &VE GrcWD OR ON TOP OF ru W[1.

6, NOPERW SUUEfi TO @MMUNfl Frc[trES DFNIfr $H@L FrcINES MPRWEMENT DffiOT
NO- 3 PER 

'm0707 
0i. 0p.

7. ROP€Rry SU&Efr TO A PENOING $HOOL FrcLIIES IilPROVEMilT OSNrcT NO 2,

8. PROPERil S&E6 TO ffiMUNW FrcITES OIMCT NO. A1}1 (WAER FrcILMES ND SUPPLY)
PER4131&O.R611.

9. PROPERfl SU&ECT TO COMMUNIW FrcIMES OISTRIfr NO.I7 (W[tr HII PIPELINE) PERAlffi
qR.0s.

10. moPEw$&Efr TO@UMUNWFrcLmESolffilfr NO. A(RU$ELLNCH)m4171115O.R.
1m3.

11- PROPERry SUSECT TO COMIUNfr FrctrTES DlgNGT NO.IE {l:m PW RS . M WDE
tMrcwMEmsND SEWEES) PERA151ro O.R. WTND 0NAr$1lffi.

12, ROPEW SU&Efr TO ffi ND PROTbNS NANED N AER 1 DryELOPMEM ffiEM
REUM TO THE FSOM $M SPECFf, UN' PER A1I@3 O.R g2 NO'SHUEffi NO
NUMON reREEMff RuTffi TO NE FOg SOffi SPECINC M NER 1 OffIOPMENT
AGREEUET ER A13M O.R.1121,20140715 0.R. ffi, A1gr5 0.R.116.41S710 0.R. W2ND
N11210.R.21p.

13, PROPERry SUilST TO VAER SURY ND FrcIMES FIMNCING PW ND MREEMENT 8E]m
frE CIft OF FNM NO CffAN WMES Nffi FOLSM PW NA'RA1SIZ OR. 

'WNO 'SIGNMilT AD SUMNO rereEWfr reBTVE TO WAE WMY ND FrctrtrES
FNCING PWNDrereilEMffiNECNOF Fd$MND NMEreN ffE FNM
m ,m' PER AlW3 O.R. 11?z ml1m O.R. @ & 0W A151211 OR. 0142 N0
w01210.R.218.

14. ROffi SUSE$ TO ffiA, NONilCLUM SEMEM FOR AUqM ND NCIDffiI
rurcES N FAVOR OF @ffi OF WWEMO ND CIW OF FGW PER roI{715 O.R re.
m1@5 0.R 1S.N04141160.R.0@.

15, MOPERW $SU TO EUS SD rcVSONS MFANED IN THE MMEffi EMreD
'EGreEMff FEfrING @ PRPERW (NCLUSIOWY HOUSNG reREEil€NT)' ffi
ft1S7100.R.81.

15. NOPERfr SU&ECT TO TEilS NO PWFON @ffiAINEO IN THE MUUilTS EMITEO
'AGREUEM FOR RrcN OF WAY OEOqTON ND AMUETPN FOR NE MNUNE B SEGMEM OF
BE trT& $ffiffi qNEfrOR BffEN ftE W HOME WPN RUSEIL N#. [C SD
ftE WITA SOWST CONNEfrOR JOIM P@ERS AMRIY PER 2O1M O.R. MO,

17, PROPERry SU&ECT TO THE TEffi ND ROVSIONS OF frE CGT WNG reESENT (FOSM
PN MA rc 1 WAER ND SEMR MPROEMENTS) PR 41ru17 O.R 0878.

18, PrcPEN WilECT TO DEC&TbN OF COENNS ND RSNIfrbNS RECORDb JUNE 19,417
PArc17$19 0.R 891.

19. mOPEffi SUgEfr TO oEmrON OF @ffi ND RSTRIfrIONS E@roS mCH 19. m
ER &m319 0R ffi. mFgTmS E@mED @TO8R A, &0 PER mal@ Ofi. m NO
ffi SD ffidISIdS CONTANO IN BE DMUMENT EMruD 'PMTA NIqMilT OF
oEMS R|GHTSffi@rcEoDECil8ER21,@ERM12r O.R.2161.

A, LOTS D. E. N. ND O, SM H#O SU&Efr TO frE RUSU ilNG PWE 1 ruEt MODIFIqTbN
ffi, PREPffiDAY gRGWIS OSGN GrcUP. d FTE N NE CNOF FOSOM @MMUNfr
ory4mffiDEPAffiST.

25. Lffi E. ( M, N, O, P, ND O TO BE DSO TO THE R6EU MCH COWUNW MNTIff .

26. LOTS D ND I TO E DEEDED BY SPMTE D@UMENT TO ftE CIry * FMOM.

27. PURSW TO SmON A3{G) OF fr E SEDVES W Afr fl E Fure OF StS FtW W SL
@NSTffi ANrcMEM tr TUT rcRTON OF ffE SEMEMS LISEO BELil, NOT SHM
HEREON. MT Fil WffiIN NE SUilg PRffiRil:

A L.EfA*.U€ AONG NORNERLY RHOF{AY LINE OF ruER CEq PAtrAY WIil TS
t0 PER 3S &M. 1.

B. NE RGruF.WAY OF 4ffi MVNE MIE, MER CREtr PWAY, RUSEI NCH
RN S0 SCENTC USA COURTWmN LOT 10 ND 11 LOT PER g B.[ 1 (@Olqr I
fts Ma.

C 12,5', 15' E I95 P,U.E. ASG RU$EU NS R@ ND SCENIC VISTA @UM RGfr{FWAY
LINEWtrHlN $D LOT 10N0 r1 ffi m 8.M. 1.

D. WON OFN t.O.o.Wmil$bLOT t0PERA1q2t50.R.M.

I
AE-

?t

1'DA BNOSKM.

4 ,4

9

FRONT LOT CORNER - DETACHED SIDEWAK
wPlc[ a oFFsfl

WLOT UNElI-
'fuonru.*
gl Eww

EI'l

t$

REAR LOT CORNER
TYPICAL 4 OFFSET

A MOPERry SU&Eq TO NE EffiS ND PROUSINS COffiAIilEO N MT D@UMENT EMruD
SUPPEIffiA IMPROWEI reREEMEM (FO6OM PN ARil - SN RN IMPRMMEMS)'
PERDNA17Orc.

2I. MOPERW SU&Efr TO A PRVAE SEMEM. TO BE @RDED, IN FAVA OF NE RU$E[ WCH
ffiMUNIflAssNTM, ON, OWR, UNOER ND rcROS NOSE MPS OF ND slffi HEEON
ND DSIGME REffiMM US ffEMEXTS (tr.). ftE ruRSE OF NE ffiilEffi S TO UW
frE HOMEMffi'S ScNNON TO ffGUUE frE WMING ND COffiPN OF U
SNUMreS (F8 aAilru, FEilCNG ND RflAINING WAS) WMN ftE #EMEM M TO
HFAIN Uils ND PffiERW ftE MUMru SISIN OF ENGINEEru SL@ES.

Z. ROffifl SUEEfr TO ftE ]wS ilD PRWFION @ffiANED IN ffE ruUMENT EffiMD.AGEMEI E$ELSNG DffiOPUilT @WWTs, CONDMNSNO EMENONS, ffCUED
BY ND 8E]na ffE Nil HilE @MPNY NffiftR *FMh LLC. A OEUWffiE LIMftD
LBIN @MPN ND re ESSEMru HOUSNG q 4, 1.P,. A DUW& UMru PARilERSHIP,
RrcOrcD OECS8ER21. mD, Pn0N mm121219 6 oFFICA ffi@rcS.

F|NAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A
SMALL LOT MAP

MERGER ND RESUADVEION OF LOTS 10 ND 11 re SHM ND $ DESIGMEO ON
TilT CERTAIN FIW W ENTNED'FIN[ MP (PN1&12) RUSELL ruCH NGE LOI
FILEO FOR re@ru ON SEf,EMBER 21. 2017 IN Bq S OF WS, AT PAGE 1

$CWEMO @UNfl re@ffi. SENOEO PURSUM TO TilT CEtrAN CERTFIAE
oF core60N RECOroED ffiOBER 15, 2fi8 S rcCUMENT NO. 418101*S, A

rcmoN oFsEqpNs 9.10 & 16,TMSH|P 9 NOffi. NGEA4T. M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

SEPTEMBER 2021

tla
s lgr 

l"
FRONT LOT CORNER - ATTACHED SIDEWATJ(

TYPICAL 1'OFFSET

*'-i

PAVEMEffiP,U-E.

q

SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

A. MONUMilTS Sfl PER ru$EIL ruCH WGE LOT W S B.M. 1 ilE 8Eil MMD ROM frIS
W UNIES OffERWEE NOED.

MTGTflT&SOMPS
Cre|Es 

'l"Mg 
UfrEw1CCeryh,$1qM,d5n OOEn! SHEET 2 OF 10

Page 74

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



LEGEND REFERENCES ./ ory oF FoLS
./ oil 201901041498 ffi"*SEt

s

o

E

rcUND ilONUMEMN NOED

FOUNO STNre Cfr OF FNM UONUMilT
wE[ $NPED 'tS &'PER (a
FOUNo La4 ROt P|PE S&PED'LS M'pER (2)

FOUND 3'' IrcN PPE WM rcIC PTUG
sTNm as M. ER (2)

Sfl STNreCROF FOLSOM IONUMENTre[
$NPS€W'
Sfl 3{ IRON PIPEWTH PNTI NUG $EPO'6SS
Sfl?{BNTreSTMDEW'
sfl s'reffi wft NTc aP $MPEo,LS W.
DIMENSON rcM
E@RO DATA ER EFEENCE
rcE

(r)

Q)
{3)

201512150.R. ffi
3SA.M.l R#.@&21"ff1' B"S0r L-mS
3S 8.M. i CERnflqTE OF CORECTTON
0Nr18101ffi

o
}Ig
{)
rc
A,E.
8.il.
CL

o.E.
ON

t.o.D.
L,E.
(s)
o.R

PA.E.

P.U,E,
(R)

R.E.
R.S.

s.M.u.D.

(+'t

$9,
ttO+lrr 

*

rcCE$ SEMENT
B@K OF MPS
CENEENE
OUIrcE*EMEM
MUMEMNUMBER, OR.
IRRWW OFFER OF DDHTIfl
WWSEMilTm

'o'

s3f(2)

1

sFc& RECro S WNEmO 6UNfr
PEOEffiN @S ffiilENT
PREERfr LINE
PUBLIC WLIfr SEilENT
MDI8WING
ESNIMD USE *EMENT
ECOro OF SRWY
ruGM'F{AY
sffiFEfl
WWENTO MUNICIP{ U!1fi DIMIfr

LOT 15
R6SU ruH

ffiE LOI

2017S10 0.R_ 0774
tuon Horts. rNc.

7 RS. 39

39E 8.L 1

lzt
NS'SSE --\

FdNO
PE STMO PER SE 8.M.1

W PER3S 8J.1SHEfr INDEX .PrcFCtr

MUNW
LOTLINE

CENERLINE
LOT LINE / RIGfr{F{AY
U RreHTOF{AY LINE

il I.O.D.LNE

ffEMEM LNE
SECIION LINE

rcffiNT PROPEW LINE

NON.WHICUW rcCESS ffiEMEM
MAT*LINE
OETALM

125P.U.E.ERON
4193412m crx 0f Fosx

N 202105110752

LOT 7
RUSSELL MCH URCE LOT

J98 B.X. r

PLffiEffi

s Loo.PER
41612150X.006

8t.o.o. Line Tabla

bn9h

s.B'

14fi

117 tC

B]E
Eng

478

2€S
25.11',

t517

&.q
N01'ffi17

NS'$G'E

N1r'S1{E

N3721gE

N37'373W

N1t'S!4'E

N?8.4W

N?8.4€W

NG'47ff

L1

p
ts

L4(R

6(R

6

L7

u
B

R4.m'A{.ffi
I't.o.D.

M.$!ru(R)r39.7s Radial Lins Table

bgs
ss'

b'iE

sa51nR1

T

+
or9

RGSELL ruH ME LOT

39E &X. 1

BASIS OF BEARINGS PER 3$ 8.M,1

LOT 7NE ffiS IINE OF LOTS 1O ND 11 S SHOWN AND $ O6GME
S TMT C*TAIN WGE LOT FN& W FILED Fffi Rffi ON
SEftMBER21. A17 N MKSOF WS, ATPreE 1, SCWEMO
@UW *COUND ilVNGASNNG OF NORfr fiA1B'reST. J98 B.t.

Curue Table

bob

2t.s'

tm.79

31.9

m.q'

11.V

108.S'.

42.6

$.9

&b
z',69

r05'0w

$'m@"

s%18'

31'39
2{ffi

s'957
10'&'

47ft

s.0
as
mn
20.@

zfiN
s0.0

m.0

Q

B
a
6

6
q

d

o r00 2@ 400

-

SCALE: l'=2o0'

FINAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A
SMALL LOT MAP

MERGER ND RESUBOVFS OF LOTS lOAND 11 S SHOM ND $ DESIGNATED ON
ruT CERTAIN FIW MP ENTNED 'FIW W (PN1E12) RUSSEI NCH KGE LOr
FILED FOR RECOrc ON SEMEMAER 21.2017 IN B@K S OF WS. AT PreE 1
WWENTO COUW reCOrcS, NENDED PUreUM TO TUT CERTAN CERTIFISE
oF @recnoN recorcED @TOBER 15, A1a N rcCUMEM NO. 4181015@S, A

rcRNON OF SECTPNS9.lO & 16, TOWNSHIP9NORN, NGE E ffiT. M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALTFORNTA

SEPTEMBER 2021

SHEET 3 OF 10

132

LOl N

LOl N

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES

mmKry&s0mPs
*ilB Psrd mr6MWh,sr{Haffi EoDnlt

Page 75

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



114
10,6S.F.

1't3
10,44 S.F.

112
10.7SS.F.

111
13,ruS.F.

'154
12,1&S.F.

P.u€44e

155
15,&4Sf,-

)

1$
9.8SS.F.

157

LOT K
20,45S.F.

OPEN SPACE

\

159

LOT M

\
,qo

r2.5'P.u.E>/

15J 115

-4€

LOT N
3.S7ff

OPEN SPACE +
LOT E2M

OBSPM let
ae, ,/w(2)\/

a'o..

:zZ
z
t

?_*^ o,t'-+;?
da'o o,

?n=- /
\

195 -ri:t-.D.
"iq

\
LOT 7

RUSSELL RANCH LARGE LOT

J98 B.M. 1

N

\

. PLEAS ANT RA VINEto

LOT 9
RUSSILL MNCH LARCE LOT

398 B.M. r
T1P IRON t-q

?&

PIPE STilPED
'PrcFC {E S'(2){

t.ot. PER

sr.o.o.mn / \
h16i2t50-R @6 {'"}/

02040E0

--:SCIrI: 1 '='r0'a1612i5 0R.m
Line Table

hgh

50

60
6.r
6.0

6.O'

6S

175

5.r
5.m'

ng

k'iq

w%tdE

N1fygw

rca64ZE

w'sfl
N1216E

N7f,4l3fW

wvzry
w3111r
ware
NS'SSE

Un6 f

L1(R

u(R

E(R

14(R

L5(R

s(Rl

17(Rl

6(Rj

L9(Rj

110

s\
&Y. \

F|NAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3,\
SMALL LOT MAP

MERGER NO reSUBDVSION OF LOTS 10 AND 11 N SHM ND 9 ESENAGO ON
TUT CEtrAN FIW W ENTRED'FIW W (PN1S12) RU$ELL ruCH WGE LOI
FILED FOR E@rc ON SNEMBER 21, A17 N B@K S OF WS, AT PreE 1

$CWEMO @UNry MCOG, MENOED PUreUN TO TffiT CERTAN CEKFISE
oF @recfloN recoRoED ffioBER 15. A18 S mUMEM NO. ArErorffi. A

rcMON OF SqDNS 9.10 E 16.TMSHIP9 NORA, NGAST. M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

Curue Table

tqb

t6rf

11.19

3r.71

s.6
$2S

17.r'

m
6'68'
37.99.

tr'ffi'
s51U'

ssl6'
n'ffi
2'fr'g

20@

6A

n.@'

ro.8

240

6.W

415.r

c1

a

c3

a
G
6

c7

I

/ 4p)

apt /

tr

mrGIfY&s0mPs SEPTEMBER 2021

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

ffi N& oNlwic&&h,srsM,6m o.lEilr SHEET 4 OF 1O

Page 76

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



150
10.$1 St.

R:25.S

8

L:9.03

.t51

10.ms.F.
152

12,375S.F.

153
12.514S.F.

FI ros
R 75SS.R

| _a+'gr3o- -1.64.69'

B rsl
F 7,987S.F.

il1!r-

2332:ge
s,los.r. E

zs6es,l*se p

L=29.45'

LOT L
6,E6 S.F.

I
I

I

8.54

LOT D
3.€sw

OPEN SPG

R=370 \

r58
6,97 s.F.

H$.S
44'391t

U.S. HIGHWAY 50

FMru BIG TML

PER50750.R. t8 LOT D3.6ffi
OPENSffi

5=
.'ng,d>

!t^x9
5i

Line Table

bEh

5.0

5.m

17.$'

ts
tr

Bdg

NSMST

NS.!@'E

M.@ry
Mmflit

NSaU'E

Ll(Rl

u(Rl

B(R]

Lr(Rl

slRl

rs9!0
-., a. sr. !1139 11- - 

- 
- 
- 

- 4 - 
- 

-Ri313!s-9:-A--11110-1'--!:7-6Zll
__\{4

@
Fu
U
Io
1!lllo

Curye Table

Lqt

532

m.4'

17.6r

s.6
n.2

13.%
4'51W

1ru4f
s'61ff

ua65'

6fi
519

515

6.S

MN

c2

q9*f'*'
--g-' ---T---

Y r66

o
I

\ LOT M
251#

+
OPA SPSE 12.5 PUE_l

- o - -E4l5gqq'- !!"21!: !-751'2? -

ts
FU
U
Io
IJ
uJ
a)

02040&:-:
SCrE: 1'=a0'

t
157

149 F|NAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A
SMALL LOT MAP

156

\
t SEE SHEET 7

ffiEqbN RECOrcED O60BER 15, 41a 6 mUMffi NO. A1A101SS, A
rcRNON OFSECTPNS9,10E 16. TOMSHIP 9NORN, NGE8EN, M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA
154

SEPTEMBER 2021

SHEET 5 OF 10
R=6$'

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES ri97.g(oA)

LOT N
3.S74C

OPEN SPG
mmnY&s0mPsBCE$ Ux& &0Ew16tuqrhsrs,Mq6tr o06rr

Page 77

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



U.S. HIGHWAY 50

FWRE
RGHE reLNQUISHED

LOT D
3.6!N

PER S75 0.R. 18

@EN SPrcE

R=3800 00' d:14"10'37"

234 220

125'
12.5PJ-E

o
F
UJ
u.t

v,
U]
UJo

etr*--____
R-3907.00' A:11'11'04"

a

- - - 
a*sl!o315jt'a1-sr-o

o
FU
U
I
@
UJuo1Z' SCENIC VISTA DRIVE 125P.UE.

165

177

A R.E.

LOT M
zSr4C

OPEN SPACE
12.9

e\____ L=748.95' -+- !]lz2alE$.q.-- ss- o

19.5 P.U.E./ IRON BIRD DRIVE

150
142149 r

141
140

148 147 146 145 144
14J

SEE SHEET 7

#

FINAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3,\
SMALL LOT MAP

MERGER NO trSUBDVFION OF LOTS 10 ND 
'1 

S SHWN ND 9 ESIGUGD ON

MT CERTAN FIW W EMED 'FIW MP (PN1E12) RUSSELL MCH WGE LOT
FILED FOR re@rc ON SENEMAER 21, 2017 tN B@K 35 OF WS. AT PAGE 1

$CWEMO @UW RE@G, SENDED PURSUN TO HT CERTAN CEMIflilTE
oF CoRRECTON RECOffiO OqOBER 15, 418 S mUMEM NO. A1U01WS. A

rcRNON OFSEqPNS9.IOE 16. TOMSHIP9 NORB, NGE 8ST, M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACMMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

SEPTEMBER 2021

L=49.78'

223
5.4@S.F.27

5,42 S.F.

A=0"45'02'
L=49.78

m
5,@S.F.

A=0'45'02'
L=4S-78'

2A
5.{2 S.F.

!=49.7E'L=49.7E'

2n
5.{2 S.F.

233
5,@S.F.

176
7,gES.F.

I

172
7.SSf,.

a
i{

171
7,SS.F.

170
7,S0S.F.

167
7,5$Sf,.

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

"ff mmlN&$0mPSru: r'=&' ffi-;ffiR.:##F. SHEET 6 OF 10

Page 78

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



ui

I

139
9,7SS.F.

ui

q

140
9,750S.F.141

9.78S.F.142
I,H S.F.t4il

9,WtF.144
9,& S.F.

___^:L0L2_--
1.76.E9'

145
LH S.F.

146
9,4Sf,.

A-1'01'29'
t=75.89

147
9,&S.F.

148
9,9sf,.

143
ro,as.F.

sHe-fr 9
SEE SHEET 6 LOT II

-v5'641:E-99169

IRON BIRD DRIVE
R=4169.50'

o
F
UJ
ul
I
a)
UJ
lUo

138

!.i

-L o
F
IJJ
IJJ
I
at
UJ
ulo

LOT N
3S7S

@EN SPrcE

A=16'22'41' L=28E.68'(oA)

---1&--- (oA)

_ys'14!3318.91_ -----------€-
-a:90!g90: 

a{t1!ll! -L:96 lo !- -

VILLA VERDE DRIVE

114

F
uJ
Uro
UJ
Uo

ai

___t
L=18'22'41'

g1:zdl4-E 19.!l-' - oR;6-$50-
L=240.73

6-=21" 
j[.-a-1-2-a6-5;61--

N79'424?E
---'-+-'--

- - < -^:,^{t{zV -tirtifl - - - - -.of.- -
__---R,636.uu " Zmrc

- T OEN SPrcE

n=soeo.oo rq=-921315g 
-11a0-9 

67'-

F|NAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

.*,%T-*F"[,LIH$:I,
wp)a
_l- -RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A

*

SMALL LOT MAP
910'3$:}=!9e919A)14

891'?Jg cril 0F FOLSOM

DN 2021031 10152 AT PAGE 1

CEtrIFIdE
oF corecnoN recoroED qoaER 15. a16 s wuMEm No. 416101s2s. A

rcRTPN OFSEfrONS9.IO & 16,TOMSHIP9 NORfi, WGE EN. M.D.AN.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACMMENTO COUNTY . CALIFORNIA

SEPTEMBER 2021

SHEET 7 OF 10

!j

1

126

L=5S'

a41.0s'

9,751 S.F.
123

9,14S.F.
121

sz1 s.F.

__-41'199-3:--
L-72.13'

1m
9,21 Sf.

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

LOT 7

RUSSELL RNCH LAR6E LOT

398 B.M t

o--__,0 4q_________qo mm[N&s0mPs
16ffibh.sre,*dqffi oiDr',

Page 79

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



v
SEE SHEET 10 LoT M - tt

2t :t

SEE SHEET 9

^={s'00 
23', L=25L42' _ _ ___o__ _ r!{9rLe.1 1l_ _ ___€_--gr-04 DRIVEgLl?rry')-"' IRON BIRD M.F

\ \Hg.SstrLOT [4

--g---
.b

$ ,\ o trroarr.r.a.1r1

L=9.2 A{3'ss' L=Aa(2)

?a.

Line Table

bEb

5.8

5.m

1537

5tr
5S

4S

5A

5S
129

5S',

116

Mry
NB'{trE
w'{1}E
w47ffi
M1gYE

MZ416E

MZ415E

Mr1814W

M24f@

Mr1814A

Mraz&E

Ure#

Ll(F

u(R

L3

L4(R

tr{R

m

L7

LE

u
110

111

PU.E.(2)

A{'mm L=31i2(2)

5.0(2)

n
A+'S0r

t=10.93

"y}' LOT N
3S74C

OPEN SPrcE

LOT 13
RUSSELL RNCH LIRGE LOT

39E B.M. rts
F
IJJ
IJJ
Ia
ul
lllo

R=6.d
21'

-B:99909'

--l*";frfi;E-i,i- --
Curue Table

Lqh

ng'
194

14$'

9tr'

m
&'$5f

wg

"s'st6a

MiB

m.w

c40
276,m

&.w

c1

e
B
a

24',Q)

21 -l F- S' LEPASP.UE.(2) ,fv

125

cR€l- rA{'8S
I L=1xs'

LOT E2-M
OEN SP&

?is-!. di,*a!d;0.-, ;-_ __ ,. r.2D.;> _ .

B

tr __ i:i'3o!_ata<l!.
crTY 0F For-soM

DN 202r0J1 10752

toT 7

RUssELI. RAXCH LARGE TOT

398 B.M. 1

SEE SHEET2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

J

(/

e;3
3E'-i-

5

--T---**
Lr9.5P.U_E.

132
12?285.F,

R=25.0
A=Z'29$'

8,S S.F.

H500
as'@@"

't33
10,ffis.F.

a{1'aF

$6,

A=6'23'01'
---G7-ad6'---

I
1U

11,ffiS.F.

gR.€.1

129
LU8S.F.

135
11,ffiS.F.

136
10.510sJ.

-iJ'-J";;'I

137
9,750 S.F.

126
10,079 Sfl

138
9,7SS.F.

l:eolla {oAJ r, r

.g-
e R#.0

Page 80

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



211
5,612S.F.212

5,S S.F.

5,il1 Sf,.
214

5,m7 S.F.

216
s.ru Sf,.

2m
5,375Sf.

y5::e)

_ _4=_!94,4e: _
L-58.09'

I186
7.m s.F.'tu

7,7$S.F.

181
7.S S.F.

180
7.SS.F.

179
7,SS,F.

17E
7,500s.F.

CITY OF FOLSOM

DN 201904041498

N1 
50

v
RUNOUI$O PER S BJ- I

$\o$N
u.s LOT D3.M

OPEN SPrcE

207
EINOUI$SPR
w50.R.18

g

-..- - --!11999'99 
ra-'?9'3l:3: 

g16l v' - 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- \ - -@-

o
F
u,
UJro
u
IJo

125

r----
221

147

(t,
rn(f,

-y

-/
a
(nq

|-8 RE.

o

+LOT M2Sr*
176 OPEN SPff

_!:9:0939'_ 
Lj?I:e' -R:8iE9o:

-8,---
o20s80

---SCA!: l'-40'

t35
134

-f F|NAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

-::*j 137

1J6

SEE SHEET 8 RUSSELL RANCH PHASE 3A
SMALL LOT MAP

MERGER ND reSUBDVSION OF LOE 10 ND 11 N SHilN NO $ OESreMEO ON
MT CEffiAN FIW W EffiNED TM MP (PN1&12) RU$AL NCH WGE LOT
FILED FOR RE@ro ON SNEMBER 21,2017 IN WK S OF W5. AT PAGE 1

$CWEMO COUW ECORN, NENDED PURSUM TO HT CERTAN CERTFIME
oF @reqloN RE@rcEO OqOBER 15, Ala 6 mUMEM NO. A16101trS, A

rcRnoN oF sEcrpNs9, 10& 16. TOmSH|P 9rcRTH, NE 8ST, M.D.B.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO CoUNry. CALIFORNIA

mmnY&somPs SEPrEMBER2021
ffiA MA Sdffi CUECT o nE 4ni6c*obhs.s,d,a@FoDr8 grrlLr - vr

138

-g'
1J9

seesirLr
141

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

Page 81

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



LOT 12

RUSSELL RANCH LARGE LOT

596 B.M. 1

CITY OF FOLSOM

0N 20r904041498

r0T 1

FOLSOM HEIGHTS I.ARGE

400 B.ll. 8 r-0T 3
FOLSOM HEIGHTS

I,ARGE tOT
400 B.tt. 8

CITY OF FOLSOM

DN 20210629175E

-it'

SEE DETAIL'A'
THIS SHEET

BT.1

$

LOT D33M J

CITY OF FOLSOM

DN 202106291758

Cutre Table

rEh

162f

s$
8.S'

31.Q

27 A'

z2r
a8
4.8

r6g

M

tra@t

6'M'

25'ZW

s'ffi
8158

5.09

6€g
6.4S9

37'4S'

m.og

4.0
20.m'

atr
5.d
T5,N

$tr
$.m'

5.0

c1

B
a

6
q

@

Lins Table

LsSS

5S

s.r3
&f7

61.76

r$47

6S'

n.u
6.S

454

12g',

s6
41S

851

59

Mg

NA'4ffE

Nl1S1{E

Ni1514E

NffiE

Mffi'E
Nt1S14E

NS'ffi'E

Nfi.ffi1A

Not'ffi17

NffiE

N6ffi'E

NFffi'E
NS'ffi8

N6S'E

L1(R

p

B

L4

6

6

u
E
L10

Llr

Lt2

113

L14

115

206

R=1000 0n'

: scENtc

6-
$

-ry]K4p."r. 
-sc€rvrc; _<-_

/e

OPEN SPACE

COURr

598 8.M.

DETAIL'A'
SE:1'=A'

R#tr

L+$'

20210629r758

I

I

,T;ffi;.*" &P.Ut.
a.M.1

o
F
ut
U
Io
U
uto

-Tzla>

LOT M
2S1#

OEN SPACE

_ o __{.?sgQ. R45r0 /\\a4.9$'/

y,st4

186

r.EfA.Ef.u.E.(4

Ali-

4

d

L=$!3

H-\- H11"S14'E
R45s E to.m

9>
I

e/F
,8

;_E
,L

I
I

I

-l
I

I

I

I

I

I

I

LO] 1J
RUSSTLL RANCH I-ARGE LOT

396 B.[1. 1

l- - - T,''toil /6
'l

ctTY 0t Fotsolt
DN 202r0629i758

F|NAL MAP (PN 16-122.P3A)

SELL RANCH PHASE 3A
SMALL LOT MAP

MERGER ND reSUBDVISION OF LOTS 10 ND 11 N SHWN ND S DESIGMEO ON

TmT CEffiAN FIW W EffiTLED 'FM mP (PNiF12) RU$&L mCH WGE LOI
FILED FOR reCOrc ON SENilBER 21,2017 IN ruK 3$ OF WS. AT PAGE 1

$CWEMO COUNry trMS. NENOED PUreUM TO ruT CERTAN CNTFIGE
oF coreqoN re@mED oqoBa 15, 418 s muMry No. m18101ffi, A

rcRION OFSECTPNS9.lOE 1€, TMSHIP 9NORil. NGES EN, M.D.A.M.

CITY OF FOLSOM . SACRAMENTO COUNTY ' CALIFORNIA

mffIrY&s0mPs
mEE dls sdEwr6ce&bsre,tm,aw FnBr.

SEPTEMBER 2021

SHEET 10 OF 10

1-
d3

_____€__:!€15SVq.31'
IRON EIRD DRIVE

1J4
13J

132
*-

R.20!0

L-31P

-t
I

I

I

I

I

RUS

+
SEE SHEET 8

I
NLOT

\\

I
crTY 0F FoLSo|!)

,(rr'r.r.a.,o
0204080

---l
SC[E: 1'=40'

SEE SHEET 2 FOR NOTES, SEE SHEET 3 FOR BASIS OF BEARINGS, LEGEND AND REFERENCES

,(.n
136L

LSPA*.U8.(2)

r93
7,4S S.F.

a{'sc?
tarp.Uel

192
7,414 S.F.

R4JO

L+1.42

26
5,5 S.F.

201
15 S.F.

203
5.S S.F.

* t?3

JB RE.

190
7,S S.F.

2U
5,4$S.F.

189
7,m s.F.

m5
s,il S.F.

188
7,7SS.F.

Page 82

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 4

Russell Ranch Phase 34. Amended Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

Page 83

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



\taP |\IORV,\flON

. -._sL_ $j

4ilpe 7A

\OTES
' ucNo ,l__:_l

SXEF-T NDIX

i!!.i -

or4r -gs .nt

'---.4l=b- -
.A. -.'.-u'---r'.'

T i,-- ..'-. .- rl:F
: e-:";;,L+- ' ' u1-z;t< lf '

_ :.: ';L---_ _JJ#.r,-

KEfMAP

t+
/- f,.

- i*.:lr l

Lj _:-* L

-.-:
,'-.T"..". .-:_H:5 _

,a\ " ',-'d "-
pltrr gro errar* cnel ,1

^LTE&\ANVE 
5ruET N.dVE

t---

-ri - . r+!i*; :3 Ja:a-'.
*-rL----!r *.

..t..
r--i t'r

VICINITY MAP

d

*
cov;[';HEEr

PHASED SMALL LOT
VESTiNC TENTATIVE SLiBDMSION IVIAP

6-,-:-:: '* ^'

-! i -

. , -, o- ;*

--aLt:- -Attr r,.r ",jrtr, - Mi{abFc,rirk: h
Russell Ranch

ltua Cdl6L

urtNtsus

'i*r:

PHASE 4

PH.{SE.i

,

PtlASE ,l':.:.
--' -:a_-

,-PHASS

\-'.' .:
<*--:- -.-1
-.-__ r*_

Page 84

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 5

Table of Conditions of Approval for the Russell Ranch Phase 34'
Amended Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

Page 85

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe Community Development Department
has reviewed and approved the
improvement plans and the final maps for
allof the eight (8)villages in Phase 1of the
project. The approved improvement plans

were in substantial compliance with the
preliminary grading and drainage plans,

the preliminary site and utility plans,

offsite infrastructu re exhibit, the
preliminary landscape plans, and the
Russell Ranch Design Guidelines.

The final maps for the all of the eight (8)

villages in Phase L were in substantial
compliance with the approved Amended
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map.

Phase 2 and 3 rough grading plans have
been reviewed and approved bythe
Community Development Department.
Phase 3 has been revised into Phases 34 &
38 and the improvement plans have been

reviewed and approved by the Community
Development Department. The final map

for Phase 38 and for the future Phase 2

subdivision will be presented to the City
Council for approval in the future.

The Phase 4 Vesting Tentative Subdivision
Map was included as part of the Russell

cD (P) (E)MFinal Development Plans
The owner/applicant shall submit final site
development plans to the Community
Development Department that shall substantially
conform to the exhibits referenced below:

o Phased Small Lot Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map, dated May25,2OtG

r Phase 1 Lotting Plan, dated May 25, 2016
o Phase 1 Conceptual Grading Plan, dated

May 25, 2015
r Phase 1 Conceptual Storm Drainage Plan

dated May 25,2016
r Phase 1 Conceptual Sanitary Sewer and

Domestic Water Plan dated May 25, 2016
r Phase 1-MLD Large Lot 5 Vesting Tentative

Subdivision Map dated May 25, 2016
r Phase 2 and A Portion of Phase 1 Lotting

Plan dated May 25, 20L6
r Phase 2 and A Portion of Phase 1

Conceptual Grading Plan dated May 25,

201.6

r Phase 2 and A Portion of Phase 1

Conceptual Storm Drainage Plan dated
May 25, 20L6

r Phase 2 and A Portion of Phase 1

Conceptual Sanitary Sewer and Domestic

Water Plan dated May 25, 2016
r Phase 3 Lotting Plan, dated March 25,

2016

1

Page 1 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 86

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourH oF H.GH*AY s'i,S?,t 

3t iT,.t-=S.i!-rt==^FX+"^;J3,H5f,5Hill,lS"GK 
R.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Ranch Phase 2 Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map (PN17-288) approved by
the City Council on March 13, 2018. Phase

4 from the original Vesting Tentative
Subdivision Map was included in this same
approval and therefore no longer exists.

cD (P)(E)Mo Phase 3, Conceptual Grading Plan, dated
May 25, 2016

r Phase 3 Conceptual Storm Drainage Plan,

dated May 25,2016
o Phase 3 Conceptual Sanitary Sewer and

Domestic Water Plan dated May 25, 2016
o Detail Sheet Phased Small Lot dated May

25,20L6
. Phase 1 Backbone Major lnfrastructure,

dated May 25,2076
o Phase 2 Backbone Major lnfrastructure,

dated May 25,2016
o Phase 3 Backbone Major lnfrastructure,

dated May 25,20t6
o Alternative 1 Off-site Utility Connections,

dated May 25,201,6
o Alternative 2 Off-site Utility Connections,

dated May 25,2016
o Alternative 3 Off-site Utility Connections,

dated May 25,20L6
e Community Trail Exhibit dated May 25,

2016
The amended Vesting Small Lot Tentative
Subdivision Map is approved for the development
of an 852 lot single family residential subdivision
(Russell Ranch Subdivision). lmplementation of the
project shall be consistent with the above
referenced items and these conditions of approval.

1

Cont.

Page2 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 87

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to

The updated Folsom Plan Area Specific
Plan has been submitted to and approved
by the Community Development Director.

lmprovement plans for the Phase 34
subdivision have been reviewed and
approved by the Community Development
Department. Grading and construction
commented in these villages in the Spring

of 2O21,.

cD (P)(E)

cD (P) (E)

(B)

M

G, I,B

The Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision map

shall be approved by the City Council prior to
approval of any final map.

No development will be allowed in Phase 4
until a Tentative Subdivision Map and Final
Il/an fnr Dhacc 4 hdve been nnntnttal hv *ho

Citv Council.

The Owner- nnlicdnt shall update the Folsom
PIon Area Snecific Plan to include all new or
modified tables. mdps, text, etc. to reflect anv
dnd all modifications thot will result from
opproval of the proiect. The owner'qoplicant
<hall ctthmit dn olortranir vorcian af thc

Specifrc PIan that accounts for all revisions os a
toetili aJ +hic nraiort to the ea+ialaafiaa aJ +ho

Co m m u n itv Devel o o me nt Di recto r.

Revision made by Staff after the 4-75-75
Commission

Plan Submittal
Building plans, and all civil engineering and

landscape plans, shall be submitted to the
Community Development Department for review
and approval to ensure conformance with this
approval and with relevant codes, policies,

standards and other requirements of the City of
Folsom.

1

Cont.

2.

Page 3 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 88

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourH oF HrcHwAYi0"H?lt-Btrt"f'1=iJiirt^fi?i"'JJ3,lJ5,9,:'Hil'il15ocK R.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

building
permit

issuance

Yes

Yes

Landscape plans for Phase 3A will be

submitted for review and will be approved
prior to building permit issuance in the
subdivision.
The City Council approved the Amended
Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map for the
Russell Ranch subdivision on March 13,

2018. With the approval and recordation
of phased final maps in the subdivision and
with the requirement to construction off-
site improvements above the minimum
threshold allowed in the Subdivision Map
Act, the Russell Ranch Amended Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map has been
extended and is therefore valid until
March \3,2023.

The City standard subdivision
improvement agreement includes
language that satisfies this condition. The
subdivision improvement agreement will
be executed by the City Manager upon
approval by the City Council.

cD (P)

cD (P)(E)
(B)

PW, PR, FD,

PD

OG

OG

Validity
This approval of the Vesting Small Lot Tentative
Subdivision Maps shall be valid for the term
specified in Section 2.2 of Amendment No. 1of the
Amended and Restated Tier L Development
Agreement, and any amendments thereto, for the
project, or for a period of twenty four months,
whichever is longer, but in no event for a shorter
period than the maximum period of time permitted
by the Subdivision Map Act. Pursuant to Section
2.2the term for the term of the Planned
Development shall track the term of the maps.

lndemnity for City
The owner/applicant shall defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless the City and its agents, officers and
employees from any claim, action or proceeding
against the City or its agents, officers or employees
to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by
the City or any of its agencies, departments,
commissions, agents, officers, employees, or
legislative body concerning the project, which
claim, action or proceeding is brought within the
time period provided therefore in Government
Code Section 66499.37. The City will promptly

J.

4

Page 4 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 89

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant has funded and
participated in a Mitigation Monitoring
Reporting Program (M M RP) throughout
the course of construction. The MMRP is

being conducted by both City staff and the
City's consultant, Helix.

cD (P) (E)

(B)

PW, PR, FD,

PD

cD (P)

OG

OG

notify the owner/applicant of any such claim,

action or proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the
defense. lf the City should fail to cooperate fully in
the defense, the owner owner/applicant shall not
thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnifo and

hold harmless the City or its agents, officers, and
employees, pursuant to this condition. The City

may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in

the defense of any such claim, action or proceeding
if both of the following occur:

a The City bears its own attorney's fees and

costs; and

The City defends the claim, action or
proceeding in good faith

a

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay

or perform any settlement of such claim, action or
proceeding unless the settlement is approved by
the owner/applicant. The owner/applicant's
obligations under this condition shall apply
regardless of whether a Final Map is ultimately
recorded with respect to this project.

Mitigation Monitoring
The owner/applicant shall be required to
participate in a mitigation monitoring and

reporting program pursuant to City Council
Resolution No. 2534 and Public Resources Code

21081.6. The mitigation monitoring and reporting
measures identified in the Russell Ranch

4
Cont.

5.

Page 5 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 90

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
sourHoFHrc'wAYi'irft 

?l-?liTr'f iJli'ffi ",JJSfJi,9,5,Hil[iSocKR.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has complied with all

applicable mitigation measures from the
FEIR/EIS prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. Additionally, construction
inspection and monitoring was conducted
throughout construction by the City
and/or its Consultants.

The owner/applicant submitted a phasing

plan for Phase 3 which was reviewed and
approved by the Community Development
Department. All required infrastructure
necessary to allow development to
proceed in Phase 3A has been completed

cD (P)

CD

cDD (E),

EWR, PW,

FD

OG

OG

G, I,M

Subdivision lnitial Study and Environmental lmpact
Report prepared for this project have been

incorporated into these conditions of approval in
order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the
environment. These mitigation monitoring and

reporting measures are identified with a check

mark (/) in the mitigation measure column.
Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis

all mitigation monitoring (e.g., staff and consultant
time).

Vesting Tentotive Subdivision Map
The tentative subdivision map is expressly

conditioned upon compliance with all

environmental mitigation measures.

Phosing PIan
The owner/applicant shall prepare a complete and

comprehensive phasing plan and shall submit the
phasing plan to the City for each proposed phase of
development. The phasing plan shall include all
required infrastructure for each proposed phase of
development. The infrastructure shall include all

5.
Cont.

6.

7

Page 6 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 91

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VISION PROJECT (pN {6.122}
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PTACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHTTE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

in accordance with the approved phasing
plan.

cDD (E),

EWR, PW,

FDG,I, M

required on-site and off-site improvements, but
not limited to, water system improvements
(distribution and transmission mains, booster
pump stations, water reservoirs, PRV stations, etc.),
sanitary sewer improvements (sewer mains, lift
stations, forced mains, etc.) roadway and
transportation improvements, storm drainage
improvements (detention/water quality basins,
outfalls, etc.) and all other necessary
improvements required for each phase of
development. The phasing plan shall include
itemized cost estimates for all required
improvements and the phasing plan shall be
reviewed and approved by the City prior to
approval of grading and/or improvements plans.

The City Engineer may condition the phasing to
ensure that each phase functions independently
and is consistent with the minimum utility and
access standards of the City. All maps filed in
phases will be required to have two points of
access for emergency vehicle access andlor general
traffic purposes and all off-site utilities deemed
necessary as determined by the City Engineer.
lmprovement plans for all phases that include half
sections of local residential streets shall include a

minimum of 15 feet of pavement over the
centerline, to allow two-way traffic and shall be
subject to approval of the Community
Development Department and Fire Department.

7

Cont.

Page 7 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 92

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourHoFH.GH*AY50"S?h?ttt"ftT$ltttt=tFXit'JJ3,il5,$,:'Hil'illRocKR'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

YesThe owner/applicant provided onsite
security during grading and construction
and will incorporate line of sight guidelines

into landscaping plans at all intersections
in the Phase 3A subdivision. The

Community Development Department will
review and approve all landscape plans to
verify compliance with this condition.

PD

cDD (E),

EWR, PW,

FD

G,I, B

G,I, M

The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police

Department in order to incorporate all reasonable

crime prevention measures. The following
security/safety measures shall be resu+ed
considered:
A security guard on-duW at all times at the site or a
six-foot security fence shall be constructed around
the perimeter of construction areas. {This

@
r Security measures for the safety of all

construction equipment and unit appliances

o Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or
windows, block line-of-sight at intersections or
screen overhead

The City will not dictate the order of the phasing

except that the first phase shall build the off-site
two lane access road (Easton Valley Parkway)

between the project site and Scott Road and shall

construct the intersections of Scott Road and

Easton Valley Parkway, Old Placerville Road and

EVP, Old Placerville Road and Grand Prairie Road in

accordance with the project's Final Transportation
lmpact Study prepared by Fehr & Peers dated

December 2014.

POLICE/SECTJRITY
8.

Cont.
7

Page 8 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 93

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
PTACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

9.

Revision made at the Planning Commission
on 15

Taxes and Fees

The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes,
fees and charges for the project at the rate and
amount uired the PFFP and the ARDA.

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND FEE UIREMENTS
OG cD (P) (E) The owner/applicant has paid all current

taxes and fees associated with the Phase
3A subdivision.

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has paid all taxes and
fees associated with this subdivision and
filed a tax segregation request for
applicable taxes.

The City has not yet utilized any outside
services for any type of legal issues for this
subdivision. lf at any time during the
development of this subdivision, any
outside legal services were necessary, the
owner/applicant would be required to
conform to this condition.

cD (E)

cD (P) (E)

OG

OG

Assessments
lf applicable, the owner/applicant shall pay off any
existing assessments against the property, or file
necessary segregation request and pay applicable
fees.

Legal Counsel
The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the
services of outside legal counsel to assist in the
implementation of this project, including, but not
limited to, drafting, reviewing and/or revising
agreements and/or other documentation for the
project. lf the City utilizes the services of such
outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice
to the owner/applicant of the outside counsel
selected, the scope of work and hourly rates, and
the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for all
outside legal fees and costs incurred and
documented by the City for such services. The
owner/applicant may be required, at the sole
discretion of the City Attorney, to submit a deposit
to the City for these services prior to initiation of
the services. The owner/applicant shall be

10

11

Page 9 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 94

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16.122)
sourHoF*GHwAYs''ft 

?l-3ttiln""Sll+E^F?+"'JJ3.lJ5'fi ',,Hil'It^RocKR'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Condition
willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance
ofa
building
permit.

The City has provided notice to the
owner/applicant for various Consultants
performing services for the development
of this Phase 3A subdivision. The City has

collected deposits in advance of such work
for these services.

The Owner/Applicant shall pay all required
City fees and Plan Area wide fees prior to
issuance of building permits.

cD (P)(E)

cD (P)PW,

PK

G, I,B

B

responsible for reimbursement to the City for the
services regardless of whether a deposit is

uired

Consultant Services

lf the City utilizes the services of consultants to
prepare special studies or provide specialized

design review or inspection services for the project,

the City shall provide notice to the owner/applicant
of the outside consultant selected, the scope of
work and hourly rates, and the owner/applicant
shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred
and documented in utilizing these services,

including administrative costs for City personnel. A

deposit for these services shall be provided prior to
initiating review of the Grading Plan, Final Map,
improvement plans, or beginning inspection,
whichever is applicable.

FPASP Development lmpad Fees

The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom

Plan Area Specific Plan Area development impact
fees in place at the time of approval on

subsequently adopted consistent with the PFFD,

Development Agreement and amendments
thereto, unless exempt by previous agreement.
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all

applicable plan wide development impact fees in

effect at such time that a building permit is issued.

These fees may include, but are not limited to, the
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan

lnfrastructure Fee (SPIF), Solid Waste Fee,

12.

13

Page 10 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 95

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourH oF *cHwAYi'irft?lt 

3t 
t"Tf.=ff1!-rt==r[?+",JJ3,1J5,fi5,Hil[=^FocK R.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

GRADING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS
Yes

The Owner/Applicant will replace any

damaged areas along site frontage and/or
boundaries due to construction damage
prior to acceptance of any of the
improvements in the Phase 34 subdivision
prior to acceptance of the improvements
by the City.

A geotechnical report has been prepared
by the consulting firm of Youngdahl &
Associates, lnc., which includes an analysis
for site suitability, roadway, and pavement
design. The Community Development
Department has reviewed and approved
the improvement plans for the subdivision

cD (P) PW,

PK

CD

cD (E)

B

OG

G,B

Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation Management
Fee, Transit Fee, Highway 50 lnterchange Fee,

General Park Equipment Fee, Housing Trust Fee,

etc.).

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications,
reservations or other exactions imposed on this
project will begin on the date of final approval
(May 26, 2015), or otherwise shall be governed by

the terms of the ARDA if not yet adopted. The fees

shall be calculated at the fee rate set forth in the
PFFP ANd thc ARDA.

Re pla ci ng H aza rdou s Fociliti es

The owner/applicant shall be responsible for
replacing any and all damaged or hazardous public

sidewalk, curb and gutter, and/or bicycle trail
facilities along the site frontage and/or boundaries,
including pre-existing conditions and construction
damage, to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department.

Geotechnical Repon
Prior to the issuance of any grading and/or building
permit, the owner/applicant shall have a
geotechnical report prepared by an appropriately
licensed engineer that includes an analysis of site
suitability, proposed foundation design for all

proposed structures, and roadway and pavement
design.

13.
Cont.

14.

15

Page11of179
Resolution No.9783

Page 96

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH suBDrvrsroN PRoJEGT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.-ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

to ensure that all recommendations of the
Geotechnical report have been addressed.

The owner/applicant submitted a grading
plan incorporating all geotechnical
recommendations for review and received

approval by the City prior to
commencement of grading in the Spring of
202r.

The owner/applicant submitted a plan and

retained Youngdahl & Associates for
monitoring and testing during
construction. Copies of the plan and test
results are on file with Youngdahl and have

been provided to the City as required by

the Community Development Department
prior to approval of the grading plans.

The owner/applicant has obtained all

required State and Federal permits and

copies are available from the Community
Development Department.

The owner/applicant has obtained a Public

Utility Easements for utilities within the

cD (E)

cD (P)

cD (E) (B)

cD (P)cD
(E)

CDD (E), PW

G

G, l

G, l

G,l

G e otec h n i cal Reco m m e n d ati o n s

The owner/applicant shall submit to the
Engineering Division, for review and approval, a

grading plan for the project site which ensures that
all geotechnical recommendations specified in the
geotechnical report are properly incorporated and

utilized in the design. Vl-1

Geotechnical Monitoring Program
The owner/applicant shall contract with a

geotechnical engineer who shall develop a program

to monitor the sites during construction to ensure

compliance with the recommendations presented

in the geotechnical report(s) and conditions for
performing such monitoring. The geotechnical

monitoring program shall include a description of
the improvements areas where geotechnical

monitoring shall be required. The completed
program shall be submitted to the City prior to
approval of any grading and/or improvement plan.

vt-3
Stdte ond Federal Permits
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State

and Federal permits and provide evidence that said

permits have been obtained, or that the permit is

not required, subject to staff review prior to
approval of any grading or improvement plan.

SPTC-IPA Approval

16.

t7

L8

19.

Page 12 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 97

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH suBDrvrsroN PRoJEGT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Sacramento Placerville Transportation
CorridorJoint Powers Authority (SPTC-

JPA). The two (2) roadway crossings (i.e.

Alder Creek Parkway and Grand Prairie

Road) of the SPTCJPA corridor were
reviewed and approved by the City and the
SPTC-JPA prior to commencement of
grading and construction in this Phase 3A

subdivision.

The owner/applicant obtained all Rights of
Entry, construction easements and grant

deeds for all off-site improvements prior
to commencement of grading. All rights-
of-entry are on file with the Community
Development Department.

cDD (E), PW

cD (E)

G,l

G, l

The owner/applicant shall cooperate with the City

to obtain written approval from both the
Sacra mento Placervi lle Transportation Corridor-

Joint Powers Authority (SPTC-JPA) and the Public

Utilities Commission (PUC)for any proposed

eressins{d€f work within the existing JPA corridor
which parallels Old Placerville Road. The

owner/a pplica nt shal I provide written a pprova I

from both the SPTCJPA and as required bv the
PUC to the City prior to approval of grading and/or
improvement plans. The owner applicant shall
provide all encroachment permits from the SPTC-

JPA and PUC as necessary.

Revision made at the Planning Commission

Meeti on 15

Off-site improvements / Rights of Entry

For any improvements constructed on private

property that are not under the ownership or
control of the owner/applicant, all rights-of-entry,

and if necessary, a permanent easement shall be

obtained and provided to the City. All rights of
entry, construction easements, either permanent

or temporary and other easements shall be

obtained as set forth in the ARDA, and as amended

in Section 2.5.3 of the First Amendment thereto,
fully executed by all affected parties and shall be

recorded with the Sacramento County Recorder,

where applicable, prior to approval of grading

and/or improvement plans.

19.

Cont.

20.

Page 13 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 98

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL GOND|TTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant obtained an

encroachment permit from the City and
the SPTCJPA for all work required in the
public right-of-way and the SPTC-JPA

corridor. ln addition, the owner/applicant
obtained all required public utility
easements from both SMUD and PG & E

prior to commencement of grading and
construction in this Phase 3A subdivision.

The owner/applicant retained a

geotechnical engineer and implemented
recommendations for this mitigation
measure. A geotechnical report outlining
these recommendations is available from
Youngdahl and was provided to the
Community Development Department
prior to commencement of grading.

During the course of grading and
construction for this subdivision no mine
shafts or tunnels were located or
discovered.

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

G, l

G, I

G

G

Grading in Utility Easement
The owner/applicant shall obtain a consent
agreement, letter of waiver and/or an

encroachment permit from Pacific Gas & Electric,

SMUD, WAPA, etc. for any proposed grading

and/or construction in any existing tower line
and/or underground facility easement. The

owner/applicant shall provide the approved
consent agreement, letter of waiver and/or
encroachment permit to the City prior to approval
of any grading and/or improvement plans.

Londslide /Slope Failure
The owner/applicant shall retain an appropriately
licensed engineer during the grading activities to
identify existing landslides and potential slope

failure hazards. The said engineer shall be notified
a minimum of two days prior to any site clearing or
grading to facilitate meetings with the grading

contractor in the field.
Mine Shaft Remediation
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all

antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open cuts, tunnels,
and water conveyance or impoundment structures
existing on the project site, with specific
recommendations for the sealing, filling, or

21

21,.

Cont.

22.

23

Page 14 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 99

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUssELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Construction staging areas for this
subdivision were included on the grading
plans approved by the Community
Development Department and the staging

areas are located away from biologically
sensitive areas.

The owner/applicant has prepared an

erosion and sedimentation control plan in

compliance with this mitigation measure.

The erosion and sedimentation control
plans are included in all of the City

approved grading plans in this subdivision

cD (E)

cD (P)CD
(E)(B)

cD (E)

G

G

G

removal of each that meet all applicable health,

safety and engineering standards.

Recommendations shall be prepared by an

appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All

remedial plans shall be reviewed and approved by

the City.

Material Storage Areas
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall

locate staging and material storage areas as far
away from sensitive biological resources and

sensitive land uses (e.g., residential areas, schools,

parks) as feasible. Staging and material storage

areas shall be screened from adjacent occupied

land uses in earlier development phases to the
maximum extent practicable. Screens may include,

but are not limited to, the use of visual barriers

such as berms or fences. Staging and material

storage areas shall be shown on all grading and/or
improvement plans prior to plan approval by the
City.
4.7.1

Erosion and sedimentdtion control measures

Erosion and sedimentation control measures shall

be incorporated into all grading and/or
construction plans. These measures shall conform

to the City of Folsom requirements and the County

of Sacramento Erosion and Sedimentotion Control

Stondards ond Specificotions-current edition and as

directed by the Community Development
rtment.

23.
Cont.

24.

25.

Page 15 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 100

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourHoF*GHWAYs'irH?lt-?ttfr",-tffi!+rt^A:f tJJ3.lJ5,9,!,Hil'ilt"RocKR'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has prepared an

erosion and sedimentation control plan in
compliance with this mitigation measure.
The erosion and sedimentation control
plans are included in all of the City
approved grading plans in this subdivision

The owner/applicant has prepared an

erosion and sedimentation control plan

which has been approved by the City. The
erosion and sedimentation control plans

are included in all of the City approved
grading plans in this subdivision.

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G

G

Erosion Control PIdn
Prior to the approval of the final facilities design,
commencement of grading and/or construction
activities, the owner/applicant shall submit an

erosion control plan to the City for review and
approval. The plan shallidentify protective
measures to be taken during excavation,

temporary stockpiling, any reuse or disposal, and
revegetation. Specific techniques may be based

upon geotechnical reports, the Erosion and

Sediment Control Handbook ofthe State of
California Department of Conservation, and shall

comply with all updated City standards.

Prepare and lmplement the Appropriate Grading
and Erosion Control PIan.
Prior to issuance of a grading permit, the
owner/applicant shall retain a California Registered

Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion and
sedimentation control plan. The grading and

erosion and sedimentation control plan shall be

submitted to the Community Development
Department prior to issuance of grading permits
for the subdivision. The plan shall be consistent
with the City's Grading Ordinance, the City's
Hillside Development Guidelines, the state's NPDES

permit, the FPASP preliminary grading plans and

26.

26.
Cont.

27

Page 16 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 101

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI-ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)G

shall include the site-specific grading associated

with development for all project phases.

The plans referenced above shall include the
location, implementation schedule, and

maintenance schedule of all erosion and sediment
control measures, a description of measures

designed to control dust and stabilize the
construction-site road and entrance, and a

description of the location and methods of storage

and disposal of construction materials. Erosion and

sediment control measures could include the use

of temporary detention basins, berms, swales,

wattles, and silt fencing, and covering or watering
of stockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion.
Stabilization on steep slopes could include
construction of retaining walls and reseeding with
vegetation after construction. Stabilization of
construction entrances to minimize trackout
(control dust) is commonly achieved by installing
filter fabric and crushed rock to a depth of
approximately 1 foot.

The owner/applicant(s) shall ensure that the
construction contractor is responsible for securing

a source for transportation and deposition of
excavated materials.
3A-7.3

27.

Cont.

Page 17 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 102

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI-ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesA Vector Control Plan was prepared and

submitted to the City for review and was

approved by the City prior to approval of
the grading plans for this subdivision. The
plan incorporated various Best

Management Practices in consultation
with the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and

Vector Control District. A copy of the
Vector Control Plan is on file with the
Community Development Department.

cD (E)

Sacramento
County

GPrepore and lmplement a Vector Control Plan in
Consultation with the Sacramento'Yolo Mosquito
and Vector Control District.
To ensure that the operation and design ofthe
stormwater system, including multiple planned

detention basins, is consistent with the
recommendations of the Sacramento-Yolo

Mosquito and Vector Control District regarding

mosquito control, the owner/applicant shall

prepare and implement a Vector Control Plan. This

plan shall be prepared in coordination with the
Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control

District and shall be submitted to the City for
approval prior to issuance of the grading permit

for the proposed detention basins under the City's
jurisdiction.

The plan shall incorporate specific measures

deemed sufficient by the City to minimize public

health risks from mosquitoes, and as contained

within the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector

Control District BMP Manual (Sacramento-Yolo

Mosquito and Vector Control District 2008). The

plan shall include, but is not limited to, the
following components:
. Description ofthe project.
. Description of detention basins and all

water features and facilities that would
control on-site water levels.

lan.Goals of thea

28.

Page 18 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 103

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourH o' 

''f,ilHnio'rili,ft?l'-3'ri,fr?=8+tE^fi?+iuJ3.lJ5,8,!,Hil'I'^5ocK 
R'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)

Sacramento
County

Ga Description of the water management
elements and features that would be

implemented, including:
i. BMPS that would implemented on-

site;
ii. public education and awareness;
iii. sanitary methods used (e.g.,

disposal of garbage);

iv. mosquito control methods used
(e.9., fluctuating water levels,
biological agents, pesticides,

larvacides, circulating water); and
v. stormwater management.

Long-term maintenance of the detention
basins and all related facilities (e.g., specific
ongoing enforceable conditions or
maintenance by a homeownerrs association).

a

To reduce the potential for mosquitoes to
reproduce in the detention basins, the
owner/applicant(s) shall coordinate with the
Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control
District to identify and implement BMPs based on
their potential effectiveness for the site
conditions. Potential BMPs could include, but are
not limited to, the following:

i. build shoreline perimeters as

steep and uniform as practicable
to discourage dense plant growth;

28
Cont

Page 19 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 104

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUssELL RANCH SUBDTVISTON PROJECT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)

Sacramento
County

Gll. perform routine maintenance to
reduce emergent plant densities
to facilitate the ability of mosquito
predators (i.e., fish)to move
th roughout vegetated area;

design distribution piping and

containment basins with adequate
slopes to drain fully and prevent

standing water. The design slope

should take into consideration
buildup of sediment between
maintenance periods. ComPaction

during grading may also be

needed to avoid slumping and

settling;
coordinate cleaning of catch

basins, drop inlets, or storm drains
with mosquito treatment
operations;
enforce the prompt removal of
silt screens installed during
construction when no longer
needed to protect water quality;

if the sump, vault, or basin is

sealed against mosquitoes, with
the exception of the inlet and

outlet, submerge the inlet and

outlet completely to reduce the
available surface area of water for

ilt.

tv

V

vl

uito male

28
Cont.

Page 20 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 105

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant obtained a NPDES

Stormwater Permit and prepared a project

specific Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Plan (SWPPP). The SWPPP includes Best

Management Practices (BMP's) including
but not limited to slope stabilization, inlet
protections, sedimentation ponds and silt
fencing. The SWPPP was provided to the
City prior to grading.

cD (E)

Sacramento
County

cD (E)

G

G

mosquitoes can fly through
pipes); and
design structures with the
appropriate pumping, piping,

valves, or other necessary

equipment to allow for easy

dewatering of the unit if
necessary (Sacramento Yolo

Mosquito and Vector Control
District 2008).

vii

3A 8.7

Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits ond
Prepare and ImplementSWPPP and BMPs.

The owner/applicant(s) of all projects disturbing
one or more acres (including phased construction
of smaller areas which are part of a larger project)

shall obtain coverage under the State Water
Resources Control Board's National Pollution
Discharge Elimi nation System stormwater perm it
for general construction activity (Order 2009-
0009-DWQ), incl ud ing prepa ration a nd su bmitta I

of a project-specific Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Permit at the time the Notice of lntent
is filed. The Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Permit and other appropriate plans shall identify
and specify:
. the use of an effective combination of

robust erosion and sediment control BMPs

and construction techniques accepted by

28.

Cont.

29

Page 21 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 106

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourHoFHrGHwAYi'irS?lrStiTr"r=ffj!rtt^fiX+",JJ3,H5'9,5,Hil'It^FocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)Gthe localjurisdictions for use in the project
area at the time of construction, that shall
reduce the potential for runoff and the
release, mobilization, and exposure of
pollutants, including legacy sources of
mercury from project-related construction
sites. These may include but would not be
limited to temporary erosion control and

soil stabilization measures, sedimentation
ponds, inlet protection, perforated riser
pipes, check dams, and silt fences
the implementation of approved local
plans, non-stormwater management
controls, perma nent post-construction
BMPs, and inspection and maintenance
responsibilities;
the pollutants that are likely to be used

during construction that could be present
in stormwater drainage and
nonstormwater discharges, incl ud ing fuels,

lubricants, and other types of materials
used for equipment operation;
spill prevention and contingency
measures, including measures to prevent
or clean up spills of hazardous waste and
of hazardous materials used for
equipment operation, and emergency
procedures for responding to spills;
personnel training requirements and
procedures that shall be used to ensure

a

a

a

a

29
Cont

Page 22 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 107

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIV|SION PROJECT (pN 16-122)
PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)Gthat workers are aware of permit
requirements and proper installation
methods for BMPs specified in the Storm
Water Pollution Prevention Permit; and
the appropriate personnel responsible for
supervisory duties related to
implementation of the Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Permit.

Where applicable, Best Management Practices
identified in the Storm Water Pollution Prevention
Permit shall be in place throughout all site work
and construction/demolition activities and shall be
used in all subsequent site development activities.
Best Management Practices may include, but are
not limited to, such measures as those listed
below:
. lmplementing temporary erosion and

sediment control measures in disturbed
areas to minimize discharge of sediment
into nearby drainage conveyances, in
compliance with state and local standards
in effect at the time of construction. These
measures may include silt fences, staked
straw bales or wattles, sediment/silt
basins and traps, geofabric, sandbag dikes,
and temporary vegetation.

. Establishing permanent vegetative cover
to reduce erosion in areas disturbed by
construction by slowing runoff velocities,

29.
Cont

Page 23 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 108

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIV|SION PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant provided a

preliminary drainage plan prior to approval
of the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map
by the City Council. A revised analysis was
provided prior to the issuance of a grading
permit. The revised analysis was reviewed
by the City's Consultant (Mead & Hunt) to
ensure that that the proposed drainage
system was consistent with Mitigation
Measure 3A-9.2. The improvement plans

for this subdivision and the supporting
backbone improvements contain
detention basins, control structures and

cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G,B

trapping sediment, and enhancing
filtration and transpiration.
Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth
dikes to control erosion and runoff by
conveying surface runoff down sloping
land, intercepting and diverting runoff to a

watercourse or channel, preventing sheet
flow over sloped surfaces, preventing
runoff accumulation at the base of a
grade, and avoiding flood damage along

roadways and facility infrastructure.

A copy of the approved Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Permit shall be maintained and

available at all times on the construction site.

34 9-r.

Prepare and Submit Final Drainoge Plans and
Implement Requirements Contained in Those

Plans.
The owner/applicant(s) shall submit final drainage
plans to the City demonstrating that off-site
upstream runoff will be appropriately conveyed

through the Folsom Plan Area, and that project-
related on-site runoff will be appropriately
conveyed and contained in detention basins or
managed through other improvements (e.g.,

source controls, biotech nical strea m sta bilization)
to reduce flooding and hydromodification impacts
and provide water quality treatment.

29

Cont

30

Page 24 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 109

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVTSION PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

ditch systems in accordance with the
Stormwater Qua lity Pa rtnershi p

Hydromodification Management Plan and
in compliance with the FPA-Storm Drain
Master Plan

cD (E)G,BThe plans shall include, but not be limited to, the
following items:
. an accurate calculation of pre-project and

post-project runoff scenarios, obtained
using appropriate engineering methods,
that accurately evaluates potential
changes to runoff, including increased

surface runoff;
. runoff calculations for the 10-year and

100-year (0.01 AEP) storm events (and

other, smaller storm events as required)
shall be performed and the trunk drainage
pipeline sizes confirmed based on

alignments and detention facility locations
finalized in the design phase;

. a description ofthe proposed

maintenance program for the on-site
drainage system;

. project-specific standards for installing
drainage systems;

. City flood control design requirements
and measures designed to comply with
them; lmplementation of stormwater
management BMPs that avoid increases

in the erosive force of flows beyond a

specific range of conditions needed to
limit hydromodification and maintain
current stream geomorphology. These

Best Management Practices will be

designed and constructed in accordance

30.
Cont.

Page25 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 110

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)G,Bwith the forthcoming Stormwater Quality
Partnership Hydromodification
Management Plan (to be adopted by the
Regional Water Quality Control Board)
and may include, but are not limited to,
the following:

Use of Low lmpact Development (LlD)

techniques to limit increases in
stormwater runoff at the point of
origination (these may include, but are
not limited to: surface swales;
replacement of conventional
impervious surfaces with pervious
surfaces [e.g., porous pavement];
im pervious su rfaces disconnection;
and trees planted to intercept
stormwater);
Enlarged detention basins to minimize
flow changes and changes to flow
d uration cha racteristics;
Bioengineered stream stabilization to
minimize bank erosion, utilizing
vegetative and rock stabilization, and
inset floodplain restoration features
that provide for enhancement of
riparian habitat and maintenance of
natural hydrologic and channel to
flood plain interactions;
Minimize slope differences between
any stormwater or detention facility

t.

il

il

ilt

30.
Cont.

Page 26 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 111

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe Owner/Applicant is in compliance with
the Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

cD (E)

cD (E)

G,B

G

outfall channel with the existing
receiving channel gradient to reduce

flow velocity; and

Minimize to the extent possible

detention basin, bridge embankment,
and other encroachments into the
channel and floodplain corridor, and

utilize open bottom box culverts to
allow sediment passage on smaller
drainage courses.

V

The final drainage plan shall demonstrate to the
satisfaction of the City of Folsom Community
Development and Public Works Departments that
100-year (0.01 AEP) flood flows would be

appropriately channeled and contained, such that
the risk to people or damage to structures within
or down gradient of the Folsom Plan Area would
not occur, and that hydromodification would not
be increased from pre-development levels such

that existing stream geomorphology would be

changed (the range of conditions should be

calculated for each receiving water if feasible, or a

conservative estimate should be used, e.g., an Ep

of L!!O% or other as approved by the Sacramento

Stormwater Quality Partnership and/or City of
Folsom).
31^9-2
Develop and Implement a BMP and Water
Quality Maintenonce PIan.

30
Cont.

31.

Page27 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 112

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL GONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

(SWPPP) for the subdivision. General notes
have been included on the approved
grading and public infrastructure plans to
address this condition. Compliance has

been monitored through construction
inspection.

cD (E)GA detailed BMP and water quality maintenance
plan shall be prepared by a qualified engineer
retained by the owner/applicant(s) for the project.
The plan shall finalize the water quality
improvements and further detail the structural
and nonstructural BMPs proposed for the project.
The plan shall include the elements described

below.

a A quantitative hydrologic and water
quality analysis of proposed conditions
incorporating the proposed drainage
design features.
Predevelopment and postdevelopment
calculations demonstrating that the
proposed water quality BMPs meet or
exceed requirements established by the
City of Folsom and including details
regarding the size, geometry, and
functional timing of storage and release
pursuant to the latest edition of the
"Stormwater Quality Design Manual for
Sacramento and South Placer Regions"
(the City's MS4NPDES permit, page 46)
and El Dorado County's NPDES SWMP
(County of El Dorado 2OO4).

Source control programs to control water
quality pollutants on the SPA, which may
include but are not limited to recycling,
street sweeping, storm drain cleaning,

a

3L.

Cont.

Page 28 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 113

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)Ghousehold hazardous waste collection,
waste minimization, prevention of spills
and illegal dumping, and effective
management of public trash collection
areas.

r I pond management component for the
proposed basins that shall include
management and maintenance
requirements for the design features and
BMPs, and responsible parties for
maintenance and funding.

r LID control measures shall be integrated
into the BMP and water quality maintenance plan.

These may include, but are not limited to:
i. Surface swales;
ii. Replacement of conventional

impervious surfaces with pervious
surfaces (e.g., porous pavement);

iii. lmpervioussurfacesdisconnection;
and

iv. Trees planted to intercept
stormwater.

New stormwater facilities shall be placed along
the natural drainage courses within the Specific

Plan Area (SPA) to the extent practicable so as to
mimic the natural drainage patterns. The

reduction in runoff as a result of the LID

configurations shall be quantified based on the
runoff reduction credit system methodology

31.

Cont.

Page 29 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 114

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS
YesECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted protocol

-level special status plant surveys. No
special status plant species, federally or
state listed were recorded during the early
or late season surveys within the project

site. A notice of survey completion was
submitted to the City and the appropriate
State and Federal agencies on October 20,

2016. Survey results were also included in

the CDFW 1602 application. All required
surveys were completed in accordance
with this condition prior to
commencement of grading in the Phase 3A
subdivision.

cD (E) (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

United
States Fish

and Wildlife
Service

G

described in the latest edition of the "Stormwater
Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento and

South Placer Regions, and proposed detention
basins and other water quality BMPs shall be sized

to handle these runoff volumes.
3A 9-3

Plant Surueys
The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified

biologist/botanist to consult with the appropriate
regulatory agencies (California Department of Fish

and Wildlife and United States Fish and Wildlife
Service) to determine if additional plant surveys

are required. Written results of the consultation
efforts shall be provided to the Folsom Community
Development Department, lf the regulatory
agencies {California Department of Fish and

Wildlife and United States Fish and Wildlife
Service) determine additional plant surveys are

required, the following shall be implemented:
. The owner/applicant shall retain a

qualified botanist to conduct protocol-
level preconstruction special-status plant

surveys for all potentially occurring species
in all areas that have not previously been

surveyed for special-status plants. lf
special-status plants are not found during
focused surveys, the botanist shall
document the findings in a letter report to

3l-.

Cont.

32

Page 30 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 115

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

United
States Fish

and Wildlife
Service

GCalifornia Department of Fish and Wildlife,
United States Fish and Wildlife Service and

the City of Folsom, and no further
mitigation shall be required.
lf special-status plant populations are

found, the owner/applicant shall consult
with California Department of Fish and

Wildlife and United States Fish and

Wildlife Service, as appropriate, depending
on species status, to determine the
appropriate mitigation measures for direct
and indirect impacts on any special-status
plant population that could occur as a

result of project implementation.
Mitigation measures may include
preserving and enhancing existing
populations, creation of off-site
populations on project mitigation sites

through seed collection or transplantation,
and/or restoring or creating suitable
habitat in sufficient quantities to achieve

no net loss of occupied habitat or
individuals.
lf potential impacts on special-status plant

species are likely, a mitigation and

monitoring plan shall be developed before
the approval of grading plans by the City or
any ground-breaking activity within 250
feet of a special-status plant population.
The mitigation plan shall be submitted to

a

a

32.
Cont.

Page 31 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 116

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISTON PROJECT (PN 16.122)
sourHoFH.GH*AY50LH?rt-3trift"f f i!t"=rFX+ttJ3.lJ5,9,5,Hil'lnRocKR'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

United
States Fish

and Wildlife
Service

Gthe City of Folsom for review and approval
prior to the issuance of a grading permit. lt
shall be submitted concurrently to
California Department of Fish and Wildlife
and United States Fish and Wildlife Service,

as appropriate, depending on species

status, for review and comment. The plan

shall require maintaining viable plant
populations on-site and shall identify
avoidance measures for any existing
population(s) to be retained and

compensatory measures for any
populations directly affected. Possible

avoidance measures include fencing
populations before construction and

exclusion of project activities from the
fenced-off areas, and construction
monitoring by a qualified botanist to keep

construction crews away from the
population. The mitigation plan shall also

include monitoring and reporting
requirements for populations to be

preserved on site or protected or
enhanced off-site.
lf relocation efforts are part of the
mitigation plan, the plan shall include
details on the methods to be used,

including collection, storage, propagation,
receptor site preparation, installation,
long-term protection and management,

a

32
Cont.

Page 32 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 117

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant provided
Environmental Awareness Training to all

contractors prior to commencement of
grading. The owner/applicant provided
copies of the roster to the City for those
receiving training prior to commencement
of grading. A training video was provided
for subsequent training of new employees.

Employees that completed training were
supplied a completion sticker to display on
their hard hats.

cD (E) (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

United
States Fish

and Wildlife
Service

cD (E)

G

G

monitoring and reporting requirements,
and remedial action responsibilities should
the initial effort fail to meet long-term
monitori ng requirements.
lf off-site mitigation includes dedication
of conservation easements, purchase of
mitigation credits or other off-site
conservation measures, the details of
these measures shall be included in the
mitigation plan, including information on

responsible parties for long-term
management, conservation easement
holders, long-term management
requirements, and other details, as

appropriate to target the preservation of
long term viable populations.

a

4.3-7

Conduct Environmental Awareness Training for
Construction Employees
Prior to initiation of grading and construction
activities, the owner/applicant shall employ a

qualified biologist to conduct environmental
awa reness traini ng for construction em ployees.

The training will describe the importance of on-
site biological resou rces, includi ng specia l-status
wildlife habitats; potential nests of special-status

birds; and roosting habitat for special-status bats.

The biologist will also explain the importance of
other responsibilities related to the protection of

32
Cont.

33.

Page 33 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 118

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1 221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)Gwildlife during construction, such as inspecting
open trenches and looking under vehicles and

machinery prior to moving them to ensure there
are no lizards, snakes, small mammals, or other
wildlife that could become trapped, injured, or
killed in construction areas or under equipment.

The environmental awareness program shall be

provided to all construction personnelto brief
them on the life history of special-status species in

or adjacent to the project area, the need to avoid

impacts on sensitive biological resources, any

terms and conditions required by state and federal

agencies, and the penalties for not complying with
biological mitigation requirements. lf new

construction personnel are added to the project,

the contractor's superintendent shall ensure that
the personnel receive the mandatory training
before starting work. An environmental awareness

handout that describes and illustrates sensitive

resources to be avoided during project

construction and identifies all relevant permit
conditions shall be provided to each person.

4.3-3a

33.
Cont.

Page 34 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 119

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PT"ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction surveys for this species.
No spadefoot toads were documented
during the surveys. Survey results were
submitted to CDFW and verified by the
City and the City's environmental
consultant prior to the commencement of
grading.

cD (E) (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

Gwestern SpadefootToad
The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified
biologist to conduct a preconstruction survey for
Western spadefoot toad within 48 hours of the
initiation of construction activities for each phase

of development. The preconstruction surveys shall
evaluate suitable habitats for this species, as

determined by the qualified biologist. lf no
Western spadefoot toad individuals are found
during the preconstruction survey, the biologist
shall document the findings in a letter report to
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the
City of Folsom, and no further mitigation shall be

required.

lf Western spadefoot toad individuals are found,
the qualified biologist shall consult with California
Department of Fish and Wildlife to determine
appropriate avoidances measures. Mitigation
measures may include relocation of aquatic larvae,

construction monitoring, or preserving and
enhancing existing populations.
4.3-3b

34

Page 35 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 120

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PL.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

ECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction surveys for this species
within all suitable habitat. No western
pond turtles were found during the
surveys. Survey results were submitted to
CDFW and the City prior to
commencement of grading and
construction.

ECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction surveys for Swai nson's

hawks. No active nests were observed

during the surveys. Survey results were
submitted to CDFW and the City prior to
commencement of grading in the Phase 3A
subdivision.

cD (E) (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

cD (P)(E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

G

G

Western Pond Turtle
The owner/applicant(s), shall retain a qualified

biologist to conduct a preconstruction survey for
Western pond turtle within 48 hours of the
initiation of construction activities for each phase

of development. The preconstruction surveys shall

evaluate suitable habitats for this species, as

determined by the qualified biologist. lf no

western pond turtles are found during the
preconstruction survey, the biologist shall

document the findings in a letter report to
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the
City, and no further mitigation shall be required. lf
western pond turtles are found, the qualified

biologist shall capture and relocate the turtles to a

suitable preserved location in the vicinity of the
proiect.

Swdinson's Hawk Nesting Habitat
A qualified biologist shall be retained by the
owner/applicant to conduct preconstruction

surveys and to identify active Swainson's Hawk

nests on and within 0.5-mile of the project area.

The surveys shall be conducted before the
approval of grading and/or improvement plans (as

applicable) and no less than 14 days and no more
than 30 days before the beginning of grading and

construction. To the extent feasible, guidelines
provided in Recommended Timing and
Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting

Surveys in the Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk

35.

36

Page 36 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 121

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P) (E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

GTechnical Advisory Committee 2000) shall be

followed for surveys for Swainson's hawk. lf no

nests are found, no further mitigation is required.

lf active nests are found, impacts on nesting
Swainson's Hawks shall be avoided by establishing
appropriate buffers around the nests. No project

activity shall commence within the buffer area

until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer
active, or until a qualified biologist has determined
in coordination with California Department of Fish

and Wildlife that reducing the buffer would not
result in nest abandonment. California
Department of Fish and Wildlife guidelines
recommend implementation of 0.25- or 0.5-mile-
wide buffers, but the size of the buffer may be

adjusted if a qualified biologist and the City, in

consultation with California Department of Fish

and Wildlife, determine that such an adjustment
would not be likely to adversely affect the nest.

Monitoring of the nest by a qualified biologist
during and after construction activities will be

required if the activity has potential to adversely
affect the nest.
4.3-5a

36
Cont.

Page 37 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 122

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourH oF HrcHwAYi0irft?l'-ff t#irlrtiJi\lrt^S?i",JJ3$Jf,$:,Hil'il'"RocK R'AD

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner has secured and recorded a

Conservation Easement on a City approved
Swainson's hawk foraging habitat
mitigation site in Sacramento County. The
foraging site was approved in advance by
the CDFW. A copy of the recorded
easement is on file with the Community
Development Department.

cD (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

GSwainson's Hawk Habitat
Prior to the approval of grading and improvement
plans, or before any ground-disturbing activities,
whichever occurs first, the owner/applicant shall
secure suitable Swainson's Hawk foraging habitat
to ensure 1:1 mitigation of habitat value for
Swainson's Hawk foraging habitat that is

permanently lost as a result of the project, as

determined by the City after consultation with
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and a

qualified biologist.

The 1:1 habitat value (or other agreed-upon ratio)
shall be based on Swainson's Hawk nesting
distribution and an assessment of habitat quality,
availability, and use within the project area. The
mitigation ratio shall be consistent with the 1994
DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines included in the
Staff Report Regarding Mitigation for lmpacts to
Swainson's Hawks (Buteo swainsoni) in the Central
Valley of California. Such mitigation shall be

accomplished through purchase of credits at an

approved mitigation bank, the transfer of fee title,
or perpetual conservation easement. lf non-bank
mitigation is proposed, the mitigation land shall be
located within the known foraging area and within
Sacramento County. The City, after consultation
with California Department of Fish and Wildlife,
will determine the appropriateness of the
mitigation land.

37

Page 38 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 123

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

cD (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

GThe owner/appl ica nt shal I transfer said Swai nson's

Hawk mitigation land, through either conservation

easement or fee title, to a third-party, nonprofit
conservation organization (Conservation

Operator), with the City and California

Department of Fish and Wildlife named as third-
party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator

shall be a qualified conservation easement land

manager that manages land as its primary

fu nction. Additionally, the Conservation Operator

shall be a tax-exempt nonprofit conservation

organization that meets the criteria of Civil Code

Section S15.3(a) and shall be selected or approved

by the City, after consultation with California

Department of Fish and Wildlife. After
consultation with California Department of Fish

and Wildlife and the Conservation Operator, the
City shall approve the content and form ofthe
conservation easement. The City, California

Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the
Conservation Operator shall each have the power

to enforce the terms of the conservation

easement. The Conservation Operator shall

monitor the easement in perpetuity to assure

compliance with the terms of the easement.

After consultation with the City, The

owner/applica nt, California Depa rtment of Fish

and Wildlife, and the Conservation Operator, shall

establish an endowment or some other financial

Cont.
37

Page 39 of 179
Resolution No.9783 Page 124

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL GONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

Gmechanism that is sufficient to fund in perpetuity
the operation, maintenance, management, and

enforcement of the conservation easement. lf an

endowment is used, either the endowment funds
shall be submitted to the City for impacts on lands

within the City's jurisdiction to an appropriate
third-party nonprofit conservation agency, or they
shall be submitted directly to the third-party
nonprofit conservation agency in exchange for an

agreement to manage and maintain the lands in
perpetuity. The Conservation Operator shall not
sell, lease, or transfer any interest of any

conservation easement or mitigation land it
acquires without prior written approval of the City

and California Department of Fish and Wildlife.

lf the Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the
duty to hold, administer, manage, maintain, and

enforce the interest shall be transferred to
another entity acceptable to the City and
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, The
City Planning Department shall ensure that
mitigation habitat established for impacts on
habitat within the Cit/s planning area is properly

established and is functioning as habitat by
conducting regular monitoring of the mitigation
site(s) for the first ten years after establishment of
the easement.
4.3-sb

37.
cont.

Page 40 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 125

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH suBDrvrsroN PRoJEGT (PN 16-1221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVTLLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction nesting raptor surveys,

including burrowing owls. No burrowing
owl nesting activity was observed during
any ofthe surveys. Results ofthe surveys

were submitted to the CDFW and the City
prior to commencement of grading in the
Phase 3A subdivision.

cD (P) (E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

GBurrowing Owl
A qualified biologist shall be retained by the
owner/applicant to conduct a preconstruction

survey to identify active Burrowing Owl burrows

within the project area. The surveys shall be

conducted no less than 14 days and no more than

30 days before the beginning of grading and

construction activities for each phase of
development. The preconstruction survey shall

follow the protocols outlined in the Staff Report

on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFG 2Ot2)'

lf active burrows are found, a mitigation plan shall

be submitted to the City for review and approval

before any ground-disturbing activities. The City

shall consult with California Department of Fish

and Wildlife. The mitigation plan may consist of
installation of one-way doors on all burrows to
allow owls to exit, but not reenter, and

construction of artificial burrows within the
project vicinity, as needed; however, burrowing

owl exclusions may only be used if a qualified

biologist verifies that the burrow does not contain

eggs or dependent young. lf active burrows

contain eggs and/or young, no construction shall

occur within 50 feet of the burrow until young

have fledged. Once it is confirmed that there are

no owls inside burrows, these burrows may be

collapsed.
4.3-6 alb

38

Page 41 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 126

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN {6.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction nesting bird surveys for
tricolored blackbird. No tricolored
blackbird nesting colonies were observed
during these surveys. Survey results were
submitted to CDFW and the City prior to
commencement of grading in the Phase 3A

subdivision.

cD (P) (E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

GTri Colored Blackbird
The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified

biologist shall conduct a preconstruction survey

for any project activity that would occur during
the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March

l-August 31). The preconstruction survey shall be

conducted before any activity occurring within 500

feet of suitable nesting habitat, including
freshwater marsh and areas of riparian scrub

vegetation. The survey shall be conducted within
14 days before project activity begins

lf no tricolored blackbird colony is present, no

further mitigation is required. lf a colony is found,
the qualified biologist shall establish a buffer
around the nesting colony. No project activity shall

commence within the buffer area until a qualified

biologist confirms that the colony is no longer
active. The size of the buffer shall be determined
in consultation with California Department of Fish

and Wildlife. Buffer size is anticipated to range

from 100 to 500 feet, depending on the nature of
the project activity, the extent of existing
disturbance in the area, and other relevant
circumstances.
4.3-7

39.

Page 42 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 127

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction nesting raptor surveys,
one red-tail hawk was observed nesting
within the project footprint area. A 100-
foot buffer was established in coordination
with CDFW. The nest was monitored until
the nest became inactive. Survey and
monitoring results were submitted to
CDFW.

cD (P)(E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

GNesting Raptors
To mitigate impacts on nesting raptors, a qualified
biologist shall be retained by the owner/applicant
to conduct a preconstruction survey to identify
active nests on and within 0.5 miles of the project

area. The surveys shall be conducted no less than
L4 days and no more than 30 days before the
beginning of construction activities for each phase

of development

lf active nests are found, impacts on nesting
raptors shall be avoided by establishing
appropriate buffers around the nests. No project

activity shall commence within the buffer area

until the young have fledged, the nest is no longer
active, or until a qualified biologist has

determined in coordination with California
Department of Fish and Wildlife that reducing the
buffer would not result in nest abandonment. The

buffer may be adjusted if a qualified biologist and
the City, in consultation with California
Department of Fish and Wildlife, determine that
such an adjustment would not be likely to
adversely affect the nest. Monitoring of the nest
by a qualified biologist during and after
construction activities will be required if the
activity has potential to adversely affect the nest.

4.3-8a

40

Page 43 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 128

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction nesting bird surveys

within the project area. A cliff swallow
colony was observed under the Highway

50 overpass. A 25-50-foot buffer was

established in consultation with CDFW and

the colony was monitored to assess

impacts. Survey and monitoring logs were

submitted to CDFW. No other nesting
activity was recorded during the
preconstruction surveys.

cD (P)CD
(E)

GOther Nesting Special-Status and Migratory Birds

The owner/applicant shall retain a qualified

biologist to conduct a preconstruction survey for
any project activity that would occur in suitable
nesting habitat during the avian nesting season

(approximately March L-August 31).The

preconstruction survey shall be conducted within
14 days before any activity occurring within L00

feet of suitable nesting habitat. Suitable habitat

includes annual grassland, valley needlegrass

grassland, freshwater seep, vernal pool, seasonal

wetland, and intermittent drainage habitat within
the project site.

lf no active special-status or other migratory bird

nests are present, no further mitigation is
required. lf an active nest is found, the qualified

biologist shall establish a buffer around the nest'

No project activity shall commence within the
buffer area until a qualified biologist confirms that
the nest is no longer active. The size of the buffer
shall be determined in consultation with California

Department of Fish and Wildlife. Buffer size is

anticipated to range from 50 to 100 feet,

depending on the nature of the project activity,

the extent of existing disturbance in the area, and

other relevant circumstances.

4.3 8b

41

Page 44 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 129

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDTV|STON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

ECORP Consulting, lnc. conducted
preconstruction den surveys for American
Badger activity within the project area. No
American Badger activity/burrows were
observed during the surveys. Survey
results were submitted to CDFW and the
City prior to commencement of grading in
the Phase 3A subdivision.

A Valley Needlegrass Mitigation Plan (Plan)

was submitted and apprcved by the City.

Valley Needlegrass impacts (0.049-ac) for
this project were mitigated by
transplanting the needlegrass plants into
approved Open Space areas, per the Plan.

The needlegrass plants transplant took
place on April24 and 25,2017 by SMP eco
services.

cD (P)CD
(E)

cD (P) (E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

G

G

American Badger
The owner/applicant(s) shall retain a qualified

biologist to conduct preconstruction American
badger burrow surveys within 48 hours of the
initiation of construction activity. lf no American
badger burrows are found during the
preconstruction survey, the biologist shall

document the findings in a letter report to
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the
City of Folsom, and no further mitigation shall be

required. lf potential American badger burrows
are found, the qualified biologist shall consult with
California Department of Fish and Wildlife to
determine appropriate measures.
4.3-10

Valley Needlegrass
Prior to ground-breaking activities including
grading or construction, high visibility construction
fencing should be placed around all Valley
needlegrass grassland to be preserved. The

construction fencing should not be removed until
completion of construction activities.
. All Valley needlegrass grassland areas

slated for removal should be replaced at a
1:1 acreage on-site within the preserve

areas.
. Needlegrass plants in areas slated for

removal should be salvaged, to the extent
feasible, and replanted within the preserve

areas. lf this is infeasible, then

42.

43.

Page 45 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 130

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI-ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P) (E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

Gseedlings/saplings from a local nursery
should be obtained.

r I mitigation plan outlining methods to be

used, success criteria to be met, and

adaptive management strategies will be

completed prior to project construction. At
a minimum, unless agreed upon otherwise

with regulatory agencies, the Valley
needlegrass grassland creation areas shall

be monitored twice annually for the first
year and once annually for the four
subsequent years for a total of five years;

success criteria shall be established to
ensure an 80 percent success rate is met

by the fifth year, and adaptive
management techniques shall be

implemented to ensure that the 80
percent success rate is met by the fifth
year or as otherwise agreed uPon in

consultation with California Department of
Fish and Wildlife. This plan maY be

combined with the Operations and

Management Plan for the open space

preserves.

4.3-11c

43.
Cont.

Page 46 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 131

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant obtained a Section
401 Water Quality certification for the
backbone and project specific
improvements. All required measures,
including mitigation for Waters of the
State were purchased and implemented
prior to construction. Required reports
and proof of compliance have been
submitted to all applicable agencies.

The owner/applicant obtained the 401
Certification from the Regional Water
Board and the 404 individual permit and
grading authorization frorr the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers for the Backbone
improvements and project specific
improvements prior to implementing
ground disturbing activitl'. All wetland
mitigation credits were purchased prior to
construction and additional permit
conditions were met pria to ground
breaking activities and submitted to the
applicable agencies. Compliance reports
are on file with the Community
Development Departmert.

CD, PW

cD (P) (E)

United
States Army

Corps. Of
Engineers

Central
Valley

Regional
Water
Quality
Control
Board

G, l

G, l

Wate r Quality Certificotion
A water quality certification pursuant to Section
401 of the Clean Water Act is required before
issuance of the record of decision and before
issuance of the Section 404 permit. Before

construction in any areas containing wetland
features, the owner/applicant shall obtain water
quality certification for the project. Any measures
required as part of the issuance of water quality
certification shall be implemented pursuant to the
permit conditions.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4ltilti
Clean Water Act Sections 4OI ond 404 Permits
Before the approval of grading and improvement
plans and before any groundbreaking activity
associated with each distinct project phase, the
owner/applicant shall secure all necessary permits
obtained under Sections 401 and 404 ofthe Clean

Water Act or the State's Porter-Cologne Act and
implement all permit conditions for the proposed
project. All permits, regulatory approvals, and
permit conditions for effects on wetland habitats
shall be secured and conditions implemented
before implementation of any grading activities
within 250 feet (or lesser distance as approved by
the applicable aeenciesl of Waters of the U.S, or
wetland habitats, including Waters of the State,
that potentially support federally-listed species, or

44.

45.

Page 47 ol 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 132

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PT.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

The 401 Water Quality Certification was
issued Jun. 3, 2015 and the 404 permit was
executed Oct. 8, 2015. Compliance of 404
permit conditions was accomplished by
mitigating impacts to Waters of the U.S via
purchasing floodplain mosaic wetland and
floodplain riparian preservation credits
from Westervelt and vernal pool creation
credits from Toad Hill Mitigation Bank.

Compensatory mitigation was approved by
USACE on Apr. 10,2017. Also,
preservation of on-site Waters of the U.S.

was included in the Conservation Area
within the project, which will be managed
in accordance with the FPA Operations and
Management Plan dated Jun 9, 2017 and
approved bythe USACE Jun.73,2077.

cD (P) (E)

United
States Army

Corps. Of
Engineers

Central
Valley

Regional

Water
Quality
Control
Board

G, lwithin 100 feet (or lesser distance as approved bv
the apolicable agencies) of any other Waters of
the U.S. or wetland habitats, including Waters of
the State. The owner/applicant shall adhere to all
conditions outlined in the permits. The
owner/applicant shall commit to replace, restore,
or enhance on a "no net loss" basis (in accordance
with United States Army Corps. Of Engineers and
the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control
Board) the acreage of all wetlands and other
Waters of the U.S. that would be removed, lost,
and/or degraded with implementation of the
project. Wetland habitat shall be restored,
enhanced, and/or replaced at an acreage and
location and by methods agreeable to United
States Army Corps. Of Engineers, the Central
Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board, and
the City, as appropriate, depending on agency
jurisdiction, and as determined during the Section
401 and Section 404 permitting processes. The
boundaries of the 404 permit, including required
buffer shall be shown on the grading plans.

All mitigation requirements to satisfo the
requirements of the City and the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board, for impacts
on the non-jurisdictional wetlands beyond the
jurisdiction of United States Army Corps. Of
Engineers, shall be determined and implemented
before grading plans are approved.

45

Cont.

Page 48 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 133

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WH]TE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommerlsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesA Master Streambed Alteration Agreement
was issued for FPASP in Feb. 2014 that
includes the Russell Rancr subdivision. A
sub-notification for the Russell Ranch

subdivision was submitted to CDFW and
approved on Mar 8,2017. Compliance of
sub-notification conditions was
accomplished by mitigatirg streambed
impacts through purchase of floodplain
riparian preservation credits and
mitigation for loss of blackbird foraging
habitat through habitat creation at the
Folsom Heights Preserve.

cD (P) (E)

United
States Army

Corps. Of
Engineers

Central
Valley

Regional
Water
Quality
Control
Board

cD (P) (E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

G, l

G

All wetland mitigation compliance reports
submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers shall

also be copied concurrently to the City.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4ltSlLS

4.3-11. a

Master Streambed Altemtion Agreement
The owner/applicant shall amend, if necessary,

and implement the original Section L602 Master
Streambed Alteration Agreement received from
California Department of Fish and Wildlife for all
construction activities that would occur in the bed

and bank of California Department of Fish and

Wildlife jurisdictional features within the project

site. As outlined in the Master Streambed

Alteration Agreement, the owner/applicant shal I

submit a Sub-notification Form (SNF) to California
Department of Fish and Wildlife 60 days prior to
grading and/or the commencement of
construction to notify California Department of
Fish and Wildlife of the project.

45.
Cont.

46.

Page 49 ol 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 134

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe US Army Corps of Engineers approved
the mitigation documentation for the
Keefe-McDerby Mine D.tch on August 25,

2015, and the documentation was

approved by the National Park Service on

November 9,2OI5. Copies of the approval
letters and the documentation are on file
with the Community Development Dept.

The US Army Corps of Engineers approved
the data recovery report for the Brooks

Hotel site on March 30, 2015. A copy of
the report and the apprwal letter are on
file with the Community Development
Department.

cD (P)(E)

California
Department
of Fish and

Wildlife

cD (P)

USACE

NPS

G

G

Any conditions of issuance of the Master
Streambed Alteration Agreement shall be

implemented as part of those project construction
activities that would adversely affect the bed and

bank within on-site drainage channels subject to
California Department of Fish and Wildlife
jurisdiction. The agreement shall be executed by

the owner/applicant and California Department of
Fish and Wildlife before the approval of any
grading or improvement plans or any construction
activities in any project phase that could
potentially affect the bed and bank of on-site
drainage channels under California Department of
Fish and Wildlife jurisdiction.

4.3-11.b.

Comply with the First Amended Programmotic
Agreement and Carry Out Mitigation
Proof of compliance with the applicable
procedures in the FAPA and implementation of
applicable historic property treatment plan (HPTP)

(Westwood and Knapp 2013b and 2013c)with
regard to mitigation for the Keefe-McDerby Mine
Ditch and Brooks Hotel Site shall be provided to
the City's Community Development Department
prior to authorization of any ground disturbing
activities in any given segment of the project area.

Proof of compliance is defined as written approval
from the USACE of all applicable mitigation
documentation generated from implementation of

46.
Cont.

47.

Page 50 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 135

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

The US Army Corps of Engineers further
verified that all pre-construction

requirements under the First Amended
Programmatic Agreement were completed
to its satisfaction on February !6,2017.
The California State Historic Preservation

Officer concurred with this finding on

March 24,2017 . A copy of these letters are

on file with the Community Development
Dept.

All ground disturbing activities in the areas

that required geoarchaeological

monitoring were monitored by a qualified
geoarchaeologist. No resources were
found during monitoring. A copy of the
monitoring report is on file with the
Community Development DePt.

cD (P)

USACE

NPS

Gan approved HPTP and includes the following
mitigation actions:

Historic American Engineering Record

Documentation of the Keefe-McDerby
Mine Ditch (P-3a-1475):

ln order to determine the appropriate level of

documentation necessary, the USACE shall first

consult with the National Park Service (NPS),

which administers the Historic American

Engineering Record (HAER) program. Consultation

with the NPS will be initiated through the

submission of the Department of Parks and

Recreation (DPR) site record and copies of

applicable technical reports with a request for

review and issuance of a stipulation letter. Unless

an objection to the requirements of the stipulation

letter is expressed and resolved through the

process outlined in the FAPA, the level of

documentation stipulated by the NPS shall be

implemented and alldocumentation will be

approved by the USACE and NPS prior to ground-

disturbing activities affecting the resource, or as

governed by the permit conditions. Focused

archival research conducted as part of the HAER

documentation shall be incorporated into the

a

Cont
47

Page 51 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 136

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDtvrsroN PRoJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PTACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

USACE

NPS

Grevised cultural context statement for the SPA

through the Historic Property Management Plan. A

non-archival set of the final documentation shall

be submitted to the City's Community

Development Department.

a Data Recovery Excavations of the Brooks

Hotel Site (P-34-2166):

i. Data recovery shall follow the
standards and guidelines in the
HPTP and shall include at least

four one meter by one meter
excavation units. The results of the
data recovery, including results of
excavation, laboratory a nalYsis,

artifact analysis, and archival

research, shall be documented in a
confidentia I data recovery
technical report, which shall be

submitted to the City's CommunitY

Development Depa rtment.

a Geoa rchaeological Monitori ng:

ii. Due to a potential for deeply

buried archaeological resources

down to a depth of 1.5 meters

(approximately five feet) below

soil formations known as the T-2

47.
Cont.

Page 52 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 137

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant retained a qualified

archeologist and provideJ Workers
Awareness Training to all new construction
personnel. A copy of the training video
and attendance records are available from
the Community Development DePt.

No cultural materials were discovered

d u ring grou nd-distu rbing activities.

cD (P)

USACE

NPS

cD (P)(E)

USACE

G

G

terrace, where colluvial deposits

grade onto the T-2 terrace, and

along the distal edge of tributary

alluvial fans, all ground disturbing

activity in those areas shall be

monitored by a qualified

professional archaeologist with a

specialization in geoarchaeology.

Once subsurface disturbance

extends beyond 1.5 meters below

surface, monitoring is no longer

needed.

4.4-t
Cond uct Constructio n W o*e r Awa re ness

Training, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if Required'

Stop Work if Cultural Resources ore Discovered,

Assess the Significance of the Find, and Perform

Treatment or Avoidance as Required.

The owner/applicant(s) shall retain a qualified

archaeologist to conduct training for construction
supervisors. Construction supervisors shall inform
the workers about the possibility of encountering
buried cultural resources and inform the workers

of the proper procedures should cultural resources

be encountered. Proof of the contractor
awareness training shall be submitted to the City's

Community Development Department in the form
ofa of traini materials and the com leted

47.

Cont.

48.

Page 53 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 138

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL GONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISTON PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)(E)

USACE

Gtraining attendance roster prior to approval of
grading and/or construction.

Should any cultural resources, such as structural
features, bone or shell, artifacts, or architectural
remains be encountered during any construction
activities, work shall be suspended within 200 feet
of the find and the City of Folsom and USACE shall

be notified immediately. The City shall retain a

qualified archaeologist who shall conduct a field
investigation of the specific site and shall evaluate
the significance of the find by evaluating the
resource for eligibility for listing on the CRHR and

the NRHP. lf the resource is eligible for listing on

the CRHR or NRHP and would be subject to
disturbance or destruction, the actions required by

the FAPA and subsequent documentation shall be

implemented. The City of Folsom Community
Development Department and USACE shall be

responsible for approval of recommended
mitigation if it is determined to be feasible in light
of the approved land uses, and shall implement
the approved mitigation and seek written approval
on mitigation documentation before resuming
construction activities at the archaeological site.

4.4-2a

48.
Cont.

Page 54 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 139

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDITTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesNo human remains were liscovered during
the course of grading and construction.

cD (P) (E)

Sacramento
County
Coroner

Native
American
Heritage

Commission

OGSuspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human
Remains are Encountered and Comply with
California Health and Safety Code Procedures.

ln the event that human remains are discovered,

construction activities within 150 feet of the
discovery shall be halted or diverted and the
requirements for managing unanticipated
discoveries in Mitigation Measure a,a-2pl shall be

implemented. ln addition, the provisions of
Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety

Code, Section 5097.98 of the California Public

Resources Code, and Assembly Bill 2641 shall be

implemented. When human remains are

discovered, state law requires that the discovery

be reported to the County Coroner (Section

7050.5 ofthe Health and Safety Code) and that
reasonable protection measures be taken during
construction to protect the discovery from
disturbance (AB 2641).

lf the Coroner determines the remains are Native
American, the Coroner shall notify the Native

American Heritage Commission, which then
designates a Native American Most Likely
Descendant for the project (Section 5097.98 of the
Public Resources Code). The designated Native
American Most Likely Descendant then has 48

hours from the time access to the property is
granted to make recommendations concerning
treatment of the remains (AB 264t1.

49.

Page 55 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 140

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16-122)FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR

YesThe owner/applicant retained a qualified

archeologist and provided Workers

Awareness Training to all new construction
personnel, which included training about

the procedures for unan:iciPated
discoveries of paleontological resources. A

copy of the training video and attendance
records are available from the Community
Development Dept.

No paleontological materials were

discovered during ground-disturbing

activities.

cD (P)CD
(E)

Sacramento
County
Coroner

Native
American
Heritage

Commission

cD (E) (P)

OG

G

lf the owner/applicant does not agree with the
recommendations of the Native American Most

Likely Descendant, the NAHC can mediate (Section

5097.94 of the Public Resources Code)' lf no

agreement is reached, the owner/applicant shall

rebury the remains where they will not be further

disturbed (Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources

Code). This will also include either recording the

site with the NAHC or the appropriate lnformation
Center; using an open space or conservation

zoning designation or easement; or recording a

deed restriction with the county in which the
property is located (AB 2641).

4.4-2b
Conduct Construction Worker Awareness

Training, Stop Work if Paleontological Resources

are Discovered, Assess the Significance ol the

Find, and Prepare and tmplement a Recovery Plan

as Reguired.
Before the start of any earthmoving activities, the

owner/applicant(s) shall retain a qualified

professional to train all construction personnel

involved with earthmoving activities, including the
site superintendent, regarding the possibility of
encountering fossils, the appearance and types of
fossils likely to be seen during construction, and

proper notification procedures should fossils be

encountered. The training shall be included in the

archaeological contractor awareness training
m.

49

Cont.

50.

Page 56 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 141

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe City and Owner/Applicant submitted a

CLOM R/LOM R application and received
approval from FEMA on September 20,

2017.

cD (E) (P)

cD (E), PW

G

G, l

lf paleontological resources are discovered during
earthmoving activities, the construction crew shall
immediately cease work in the vicinity of the find
and notify the City of Folsom's Community
Development Department. The owner/applicant(s)
shall retain a qualified paleontologist to evaluate
the resource and prepare a recovery plan in
accordance with Society of Vertebrate
Paleontology guidelines (1-996). The recovery plan

may include, but is not limited to, a field survey,

construction monitoring, sampling and data

recovery procedures, museum storage

coordination for any specimen recovered, and a

report of findings. Recommendations in the
recovery plan that are determined by the lead

agency to be necessary and feasible shall be
im plemented before construction activities can

resume at the site where the paleontological

resou rces were discovered.
4.4-3
7il) Yeor Flood Plain Boundary
The owner/applicant shall be required to include
the existing 100-year floodplain boundary (flood
hazard area) on all grading and/or improvements
plans prior to approval of the gradin g and/or
improvement plans by the City. For any portion of
the proposed project that lies within the
designated flood hazard area, no development
shall be approved until appropriate measures are

50.

Cont.

51

Page 57 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 142

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E), PWG, ltaken to remove the area from the flood zone.

These measures include the following:
o The lowest finished floor elevation of all

proposed structures shall be a minimum of
two (2) feet above the 100-year floodplain
elevation in accordance with the City

Floodplain Ordinance. The

owner/applicant shall provide for review
and approval by the City, information
delineating the 100-year floodplain
elevation under the worst case of either
the interim or the ultimate condition for
the upstream watershed. The existing and

proposed 100-year floodplain shall be

shown on the grading and/or
improvement plans.

r An elevation certification shall be required
prior to issuance of any building permit
demonstrating compliance with the above

requirement.
o A completed application for a Conditional

Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR) shall be

submitted to the City for submission to the
Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA). Prior to approval of the
improvement plans by the City, the
owner/applicant shall submit the
approved CLOMR to the CitY.

r Within four (4) months following
co etion of o a

5L.

Cont.

Page 58 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 143

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant retained a Certified
Geologist with Youngdahl & Associates to
prepare an Air Quality Management Plan.

The Air Quality Management Plan was
approved by the SMAQMD prior to
commencement of grading in the Phase 3A
subdivision.

cD (E), PW

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G, l

G

completed application for a Letter of Map
Revision (LOMR) shall be submitted by the
owner/applicant to the City for submission
to FEMA, The City shall have received the
completed LOMR from FEMA prior to
issuance of a certificate of occupancy on

any structure.
Prior to issuance of a grading permit or a
building permit, the owner/applicant shall

deposit with the City sufficient funds to
complete the CLOMR/LOMR process as

determined by the City. Said funds may be

drawn upon by the City to complete the
CLOMR/LOMR process in the event the
owner/applicant fails to do so in

accordance with the time constraints
established above. Any funds remaining
after completion of the CLOMR/LOMR
process will be refunded to the
owner/applicant.

a

Natu ra lly Occu rri ng Asbestos
Prior to the commencement of any site-disturbing
activities, the owner/a pplica nt shal I demo nstrate
to the satisfaction of the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District that
Naturally Occurring Asbestos does not exist on
site. To demonstrate the owner/applicant shall

obtain the services of a California Certified
Geologist to conduct a thorough site investigation
of the development area per the protocol outlined

51.

Cont,

52.

Page 59 of 1 79
Resolution No. 9783

Page 144

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDrvrsroN PRoJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

Gin the California Geological Survey Special Report

L24to determine whether and where Naturally

Occurring Asbestos is present in the soil and rock

on the project site and/or areas that would be

disturbed by the project, except for those areas

previously explored and sampled for Naturally

Occurring Asbestos as part of the Geotechnical

Engineering Study for Russell Ranch South

prepared by Youndahl Consulting Group, lnc. in

December 2013. The site investigation shall

include the collection of three soil and rock

samples per acre to be analyzed via the California

Air Resources Board 435 Method, or other
acceptable method agreed upon by Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District and

the City. lf the investigation determines that
Naturally Occurring Asbestos is not present on the
project site, then the owner/applicant shall submit

a Geologic Exemption to Sacramento Metropolitan
Air Quality Management District as allowed under

Title 17, Section 93105, Asbestos Airborne Toxic

Control Measure for Construction, Grading,

Quarrying, and Surface Mining (Asbestos ATCM).

The owner/applicant shall submit proof of
compliance with the above to the Community
Development Department for review and approval
prior to the commencement of any site-disturbing
activities.

52.
Cont.

Page 60 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 145

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL GONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

Glf the site investigation determines that Naturally

Occurring Asbestos is present on the project site,

or alternatively if the owner/applicant elects to
assume presence of trace Naturally Occurring
Asbestos, then, prior to commencement of any

ground disturbance activity, the owner/a pplica nt
shall submit to the Sacramento Metropolitan Air

Quality Management District for review and

approval an Asbestos Dust Mitigation Plan,

including, but not limited to, control measures

required by the Asbestos ATCM, such as vehicle

speed limitations, application of water prior to and

during ground disturbance, keeping storage piles

wet or covered, and track-out prevention and

removal.
The owner/applicant shall submit proof of
compliance with the above to the Community

Development Department for review and approval
prior to the commencement of any site-disturbing

activities. Upon approval of the Asbestos Dust

Control Plan by the Sacramento Metropolitan Air

Quality Management District, the
owner/applicant shall ensure that construction
contractors implement the terms of the plan

throughout the construction period. lf Naturally

Occurring Asbestos is determined to be located on

the surface of the project site, all surface soil

containing Naturally Occurring Asbestos shall be

replaced with clean soil or capped with another

52.
Cont.

Page 61 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 146

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant has coordinated with
and paid all required mitigation fees to the
SMAQMD.

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen
t District

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G

G

material (e.g., cinder or rubber), subject to review
and approval by the City Engineer.

4.2-3

Pay Off-Site Mitigation Fee to Sacramento
Metropoliton Air Quality Management District to
OIf-Set NOX Emissions Generated by Construction
of Olf and On-Site Elements.

The owner/applicant(s) shall pay Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District a

mitigation fee for the purpose of reducing NOX

emissions to a less-than-significant level (i.e., less

than 85 lblday). The specific fee amounts shall be

calculated when the daily construction emissions

can be more accurately determined: that is, the
City and the owner/applicants shall establish the
phasing by which development would occur, and

the owner/applicants shall develop a detailed
construction schedule. Calculation of fees

associated with each project development phase

shall be conducted by the owner/applicant(s) in

consultation with Sacramento Metropolitan Air
Quality Management District staff before the
approval of grading plans by the City. The
owner/applicant(s)for all project phases shall pay

into Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District's mitigation fund to further

52.
Cont.

53

Page 62 of 1 79
Resolution No.9783

Page 147

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBOIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe grading and improvement plans for
the Phase 34 project included the
applicable notes. Additicnally, monthly
equipment usage and emissions were
reported to the Sacramento Metropolitan
Air Quality Management District. Dust

control best management practices were
implemented to control fugitive dust and

offsite track out material.

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G

G, OG

mitigate construction-generated emissions of NOX

that exceed Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District's daily emission threshold of
85 lb/day. The calculation of daily NOX emissions

shall be based on the cost rate established by

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District at the time the calculation
and payment are made. The determination of the
final mitigation fee shall be conducted in

coordination with Sacramento Metropolitan Air

Quality Management District before any ground

disturbance occurs for any project phase.

3A 2-1b
342-
Bosic Construction Emission Control Practices

The owner/applicant shall implement Sacramento

Metropolita n Air Quality Management District's
list of Basic Construction Emission Control
Practices, Enhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter
Dust Control Practices (listed below), and

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices or whatever
mitigation measures are recommended by

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District at the time individual
portions of the site undergo construction. ln

addition to Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District -recommended measures,

construction operations shall comply with all

a pplica ble Sacramento M etropol ita n Ai r Qua I ity
Management District rules and regulations.

53.

Cont.

54.

Page 63 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 148

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIV|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFHrGHwAYi'irS?l-Btitr?t$.ilr'=t^[?+tJJ3.lJs,9,!,Hil'il1RocKR'AD

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G, OGThe following shall be noted on Grading Plans and
building construction plans:

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices
. Water all exposed surfaces two times

daily. Exposed surfaces include, but are

not limited to soil piles, graded areas,
unpaved parking areas, staging areas, and

access roads. The owner/applicant shall

not be permitted to use potable water
from the City of Folsom water system for
grading andlor construction while the City

is in a stage 3 (water warning), stage 4
(water crisis), or stage 5 (water
emergency) conservation stage as

determined by the City and in

conformance with Chapter 13.26 Water
Conservation of the Folsom Municipal
Code (FMC). The City may prohibit the use

of potable water for grading and/or
construction purposes on the project in its
sole discretion regardless of the Water
Conservation Stage.

. Cover or maintain at least two feet of free
board space on haul trucks transporting
soil, sand, or other loose material on the
site. Any haul trucks that would be
traveling along freeways or major
roadways shall be covered. Use wet power
vacuum street sweepers to remove any

54.
Cont

Page 64 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 149

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN {6-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROct( ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G, OGvisible trackout mud or dirt onto adjacent
public roads at least once a day. Use of dry
power sweeping is prohibited.

Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to
15 miles per hour (mph).

All roadways, driveways, sidewalks,
parking lots to be paved should be

completed as soon as possible. ln addition,
building foundations shall be laid as soon

as possible after grading unless seeding or
soil binders are used.

Minimize idling time either by shutting

equipment off when not in use or reducing

the time of idling to 5 minutes (as required
by the state airborne toxics control
measure [Title 13, Section 2485 of the
California Code of Regulationsl). Provide

clear signage that posts this requirement
for workers at the entrances to the site.

Maintain all construction equipment in

proper working condition according to
manufacture/s specifications. The

equipment shall be checked by a certified
mechanic and determine to be running in

proper condition before it is operated.

54.

Cont.

Page 65 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 150

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VISION PROJEGT (pN 16-122]-
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G, OGEnhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust
Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas
. Water exposed soil with adequate

frequency for continued moist soil.
However, do not overwater to the extent
that sediment flows off the site.

. Suspend excavation, grading, and/or
demolition activity when wind speeds
exceed 20 mph.

. lnstall wind breaks (e.g., plant trees, solid
fencing) on windward side(s) of
construction areas.

. Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-
germinating native grass seed) in disturbed
areas as soon as possible. Water
appropriately until vegetation is

established.

Enhanced Fugitive Particulate Matter Dust
Control Practices - Unpaved Roads
. lnstall wheel washers for all exiting trucks,

or wash off all trucks and equipment
leaving the site.

. Treat site accesses to a distance of 100
feet from the paved road with a 6 to 12-
inch layer of wood chips, mulch, or gravel
to reduce generation of road dust and road
dust carryout onto public roads.

r Post a publicly visible sign with the
telephone number and person to contact

54
Cont

Page 66 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 151

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G, OGat the construction site regarding dust
complaints. This person shall respond and
take corrective action within 48 hours. The
phone number of Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District and the City contact person shall
also be posted to ensure compliance.

Enhanced Exhaust Contol Pradices
The owner/applicant shall provide a plan, for
approval by the City of Folsom Community
Development Department and Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District,
demonstrating that the heavy-duty (50

horsepower [hp] or more) offroad vehicles to be

used in the construction project, including owned,
leased, and subcontractor vehicles, will achieve a

project wide fleet-average 2Oo/" NOX reduction and
45% particulate reduction compared to the most
current California Air Resources Board (ARB) fleet
average that exists at the time of construction.
Acceptable options for reducing emissions may

include use of late-model engines, low-emission
diesel products, alternative fuels, engine retrofit
technology, after-treatment products, andlor
other options as they become available.

The owner/applicant shall submit to the City of
Folsom Community Development Department and
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality

54
Cont.

Page 67 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 152

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL GONDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF P1ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G, OGManagement District a comprehensive inventory
of all off-road construction equipment, equal to or
greater than 50 hp, that would be used an

aggregate of 40 or more hours during any portion
ofthe construction project. The inventory shall
include the horsepower rating, engine production
year, and projected hours of use for each piece of
equipment. The inventory shall be updated and

submitted monthly throughout the duration of the
project, except that an inventory shall not be

required for any 30-day period in which no
construction activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior
to the use of heavy-duty off-road equipment, the
project representative sha ll provide Sacra mento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
with the anticipated construction timeline
including start date, and name and phone number
of the project manager and on-site foreman.

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District's Construction Mitigation
Calculator can be used to identify an equipment
fleet that achieves this reduction (Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
2OO7al. The project shall ensure that emissions

from alloff-road diesel powered equipment used

on the SPA do not exceed 40% opacity for more
than three minutes in any one hour. Any

equipment found to exceed 40 percent opacity (or
Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired immediately,

54
Cont.

Page 68 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 153

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G, OGand the City and Sacramento Metropolitan Air
Quality Management District shall be notified

within 48 hours of identification of non-compliant
equipment. A visual survey of all in-operation

equipment shall be made at least weekly, and a

monthly summary of the visual survey results shall

be submitted throughout the duration of the
project, except that the monthly summary shall

not be required for any 30-day period in which no

construction activity occurs. The monthly
summary shall include the quantity and type of
vehicles surveyed as well as the dates of each

survey. Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District staff and/or other officials

may conduct periodic site inspections to
determine compliance. Nothing in this mitigation

measure shall supersede other Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management District or
state rules or regulations.

o lf at the time of construction, Sacramento

Metropolitan Air Quality Management
District has adopted a regulation or new
guidance applicable to construction
emissions, compliance with the regulation
or new guidance may completely or
partially replace this mitigation if it is

equal to or more effective than the
mitigation contained herein, and if
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District so permits. Such a

54.
Cont.

Page 69 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 154

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE

YesThe owner/applicant submitted a joint
traffic management plan that was

reviewed and approved by the CitY

Engineer prior to commencement of
grading and construction and is on file at

the Community Development Department.

cD (E), PW

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

G

OGG,

Tralftc ond Parking Management Plan

Prior to the approval of the grading plan and or

construction, the owner/applicant shall prepare a

construction traffic and parking management plan

to the satisfaction of the City Traffic Engineer and

subject to review by any affected agencies, if
necessary. The plan shall ensure that acceptable

operating conditions on local roadways and

freeway facilities are maintained' At a minimum,

the plan shall include the following:
. Description of trucks including number and

size oftrucks per day (i.e.,85 trucks per

day), expected arrival/departure times,

and truck circulation Patterns.
. Description of staging area including

location, maximum number of trucks
simultaneously permitted in staging area,

use of traffic control personnel, and

specific signage.
r Description of street closures and/or

bicycle and pedestrian facility closures
andduration, advance warniincludi

determination shall be supported by a

project-levelanalysis and be approved by

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District.

3A2-La
3A 2-1d
3A 2-1f

55.

54.
Cont.

Page 70 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 155

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VISION PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant submitted the
required Fuel Modification Plan to the City
Fire Department for review and approval.
A copy of the approved F.rel Modification
Plan is on file with the Fire Department
and the Community Development
Department.

cD (E), PW

cD (P)

FD

G

M

posted signage, safe and efficient access

routes for existing businesses and
emergency vehicles, and use of manual
traffic control.

. Description of driveway access plan

including provisions for safe vehicular, pedestrian,
and bicycle travel, minimum distance from any
open trench, special signage, and private vehicle
accesses.

4.8-1

Prepore fuel modification plan (FMP).

The owner/applicant shall submit a Fuel

Modification Plan to the City for review and
preliminary approval from the Fire Code Official
prior to any Final and/or Parcel Map. Final

approval of the plan by the Fire Code Official shall
occur prior to the issuance of a permit for any new
construction. A Fuel Modification Plan shallconsist
of a set of scaled plans showing fuel modification
zones indicated with applicable assessment notes,
a detailed landscape plan and an irrigation plan. A
fuel modification plan submitted for approval shall
be prepared by one of the following: a California
state licensed landscape architect, or state
licensed landscape contractor, or a landscape
designed, or an individual with expertise
acceptable to the Fire Code Official. (Fire)

The owner/applicant shall agree to be responsible
for the long-term maintenance of the Fuel

55.

Cont.

56.

Page71 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 156

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant has included these
practices and rules in the City approved
grading and improvemenr plans. A general

note is included on the approved grading
and infrastructure plans for this
subdivision which addresses this condition.
Compliance will be monitored through
construction i nspection.

cD (P)

FD

cD (P)

cD (E) (B)

M

G

Modification Plan consistent with Section 3.8.5.1
of the ARDA and Amendment No. 1 to the ARDA.

Notification of fuel modification requirements are

to be made upon sale to new property owners.
Proposed changes to the approved Fuel

Modification Plan shall be submitted to the Fire

Code Official for approval prior to implementation.
Implement Noise-Reducing Construction
Practices, Prepare and lmplement a Noise Control
Plan, and Monitor and Record Construction Noise

near Sensitive Receptors.
The owner/applicant shall prepare and implement
a construction noise management plan. This plan

shall identify specific measures to ensure

compliance with the noise control measures

specified below. The noise control plan shall be

submitted to the City of Folsom before any noise-
generating construction activity begins and shall

be noted on Grading Plans and building
construction plans. Grading and construction shall

not commence until the construction noise

management plan is approved by the City of
Folsom.
r Noise-generating construction operations

shall be limited to the hours between 7

a.m. and 7 p.m. Monday through Friday,
and between 8 a,m. and 5 p.m. on

Saturdays. No construction is allowed on
Sundays.

56.

Cont

57

Page72 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 157

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL GONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTV|STON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFHrGHwAYi'irft 

?li,?1iTr"=sj!-r"=nF?+ilJ3,lJ5fi !,Hil'IlFocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

cD (E)(B)
Ga All construction equipment and

equipment staging areas shall be located
as far as possible from nearby noise-
sensitive land uses.

All construction equipment shall be
properly maintained and equipped with
noise-reduction intake and exhaust
mufflers and engine shrouds, in

accorda nce with ma nufactu rers'
recommendations. Equipment engine
shrouds shall be closed during equipment
operation.
All motorized construction equipment
shall be shut down when not in use to
prevent idling.

lndividual operations and techniques shall
be replaced with quieter procedures (e.g.,

using welding instead of riveting, mixing
concrete off- site instead of on-site).
Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used

around stationary noise-generating
equipment (e.g., compressors and
generators) as planned phases are built
out and future noise sensitive receptors
are located within close proximity to
futu re construction activities.
Written notification of construction
activities shall be provided to all noise-
sensitive receptors located within 850 feet
of construction activities. Notification shall

a

a

a

a

57.
Cont.

Page 73 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 158

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE

RANCH SUBDTV|SION PROJEGT (pN 16-1221
ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

cD (E)(B)
Ginclude anticipated dates and hours during

which construction activities are
anticipated to occur and contact
information, including a daytime
telephone number, for the project
representative to be contacted in the
event that noise levels are deemed
excessive. Recommendations to assist
noise-sensitive land uses in reducing
interior noise levels (e.g., closing windows
and doors) shall also be included in the
notification.
To the extent feasible, acoustic barriers
(e.g., lead curtains, sound barriers) shall
be constructed to reduce construction-
generated noise levels at affected noise-
sensitive land uses. The barriers shall be
designed to obstruct the line of sight
between the noise-sensitive land use and
on-site construction equipment. When
installed properly, acoustic barriers can
reduce construction noise levels by
approximately 8-10 dB (EPA t97Ll.
When future noise sensitive uses are
within close proximity to prolonged
construction noise, noise-attenuating
buffers such as structures, truck trailers,
or soil piles shall be located between noise
sources and future residences to shield

a

57.
Cont.

Page74 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 159

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
ent

WhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

ATIVE

APPROVAL
HWAY

2216-l1(PN
ROAD

ECT
ROCK

PROJ

MAP
WHITEOF

BDIVISION

UBDIVISIONS

SU
NORTH

RANCH
ROAD,

TENTLOT

RUSSELLTHE
PLACERVILLE

SMALL
OF

NG

FOR
EAST

VESTI
50,

EDD

OF

AMEN
HIGOF

NDITIONSco
SOUTH

FINAL

YesThe owner/applicant has obtained
approvalfrom the SMAQMD for allof the
proposed equipment utilized throughout
the course of grading for the subdivision.

The owner/applicant pro'rided monthly
compliance reports to SMAQMD and paid

all necessary mitigation fees determined

to be in excess ofthe approved threshold

for PM10 emissions. There were no

sensitive receptors in the vicinity of the
subdivision and all of the grading for the
subdivision were in the boundaries of the
City of Folsom.

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

cD (P)

cD (E) (B)

G

GAnalyze and Disclose Proiected PM70 Emission

Concentrations at Nearby Sensitive Receptors

Resulting from Construction of Off-site Elements.

Prior to construction of each off-site element

located in Sacramento County that would involve

site grading or earth disturbance activity that
would exceed L5 acres in one day, the responsible

agency or its selected consultant shall conduct

detailed dispersion modeling of construction-

generated PM10 emissions pursuant to
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District guidance that is in place at

the time the analysis is performed.

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District emphasizes that PM10

emission concentrations at nearby sensitive

receptors be disclosed in project-level CEQA

analysis. Each project-level analysis shall

incorporate detailed parameters of the
construction equipment and activities, including

the year during which construction would be

performed, as well as the proximity of potentially

affected receptors, including receptors proposed

by the project that exist at the time the
construction activity would occur. lf the modeling

s determines that construction aana

sensitive receptors from construction

noise.

3A 11-1

57.
Cont.

58

Page 75 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 160

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDIflONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

Gwould result in an exceedance or substantial
contribution to the CAAQS and NAAQS at a nearby
receptor, then the owner/applica nt(s)sha ll require
their respective contractors to implement
additional measures for controlling construction-
generated PM10 exhaust emission and fugitive
PM10 dust emissions in accordance with
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality
Management District guidance, requirements,
and/or rules that apply at the time the project-
level analysis is performed. lt is likely that these
measures would be the same or similar to those
listed as Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control
Practices for Soil Disturbance Areas and Unpaved
Roads and Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices.
Dispersion modeling is not required for the two El

Dorado County roadway connections because the
total amount of disturbed acreage is expected to
be less than the EDCAQMD screening level of 12

acres.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the
City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall be
developed by the owner/applicant(s)of each
applicable project phase in consultation with the
affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Sacramento
County or Caltrans).
34 2-1h

58.

Cont.

Page 76 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 161

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

A protective orange fence was installed
along the perimeter of disturbed areas.

The barrier fencing included in this
condition was not required since none of
the grading for this subdivision was

adjacent to any existing development.

The owner/applicant submitted a Seismic

Refraction Survey prepared by a licensed
geotechnical engineer with Youngdahl &
Associates to the City prior to
commencement of grading and

construction in the Phas= 34 subdivision.
The Seismic Refraction Survey is on file
with the Community Development
Department. Compliance has been

cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G

Animal Barrier
To discourage the migration of undesirable small

animals (including snakes) into adjacent developed
properties during the development of the project,

the owner/applicant shall install a barrier along all

areas adjacent to developed residential properties

and parks to the satisfaction of the Community
Development Department and consistent with a

qualified biologist's recommendations. ln general,

the barrier may consist of wire-mesh fabric with
openings not exceeding%-inch width. The height

of the barrier shall be at least 18 inches (above the
ground surface), and may be buried into the
ground at least twelve inches. The barrier shall be

supported with metal stakes at no more than 10-

foot spacing. The barrier shall be installed by the
owner/applicant, as approved by the Community
Development Department and a qualified

biologist, prior to any construction disturbance on

the s includi cleari and operations.

Prepare a Seismic Refraction Survey and Obtain
Appropriate Permits for
AII On-Site and Off-site Elements East ol Old
Placeruille Road.
Prior to the commencement of grading and

construction activities east of Old Placerville Road,

the owner/applicant(s) for any discretionary
development application shall retain a licensed
geotechnical engineer to perform a seismic

59.

60

Page77 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 162

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

IMPROVEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS
Yes

monitored through construction
inspection.

The owner/applicant incl.rded all of the
required record information for rights-of-
entry, public easements, etc. on the
approved grading and improvement plans

for all villages in the Phase 34 subdivision.
The City verified compliance prior to
approval of the grading and improvement
plans.

cD (E)

cD (E)

G

G, l

refraction survey. Project-related excavation
activities shall be carried out as

recommend by the geotechnical engineer.

Excavation may include the use

of heavy-duty equipment such as large bulldozers
or large excavators, and
may include blasting. Appropriate permits for
blasting operations shall be

obtained from the relevant City or county
jurisdiction prior to the start of
any blasting activities.

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the
City of Folsom's
jurisdictional boundaries shall be coordinated by

the owner/applica nt(s)

of each applicable project phase with the affected
oversight agency(ies)
(i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties).

3A7-4

The owner/applicant shall include all record
information for rights of entry, easements,

temporary and permanent construction
easements, slope easements, etc. for all proposed

improvements on adjoining properties not owned
by the owner/applicant and impacted by the
owner/applicants improvements. The record
information and the recorded boundaries of all
work on adjoining properties shall be included on

60
Cont

61..

Page 78 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 163

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AITJIENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommerfsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant submitted a Lighting
Plan for all backbone roadways and
subdivisions in accordance with the Design

Guidelines and City Standards for Street
Lighting. The Lighting Plan was reviewed
and approved by the City prior to
improvement plan approval. A copy of the
lighting plans are available at the
Community Development Department

cD (E)

cD (P)

G, l

l,B

all grading and/or improvement plans prior to plan

approval.
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall

submit a lighting plan for the project to the
Community Development Department. The

lighting plan shall be consistent with the Design

Guidelines:

a

shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct
the light downward and prevent light spill

on adjacent properties;
place and shield or screen flood and area

lighting needed for construction activities,
nighttime sporting activities, and/or
security so as not to disturb adjacent
residential areas and passing motorists;
for public lighting in residential
neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light
fixtures that are of unusually high intensity
or that blink or flash;

use appropriate building materials (such as

low-glare glass, low-glare building glaze or
finish, neutral, earthtoned colored paint

and roofing materials), shielded or
screened lighting, and appropriate signage

in the office/commercial areas to prevent

light and glare from adversely affecting
motorists on nearby roadways; and
design exterior on-site lighting as an

integral part of the building and

a

a

6l-.

Cont.
62

Page 79 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 164

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

LL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221FORTHE RUSSEFINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has constructed an

asphalt maintenance road for the entire

length of the sewer line extending from
East Bidwell Street (formerly Scott Rd) to
the Alder Creek Parkway sewer lift station

as well as the forced main extension to US

Highway 50. The City has accepted the
maintenance road for operations and

maintenance.
The owner/applicant submitted grading

and improvement plans prePared in

accordance with the City's Standard

Specifications. The City has approved all of
the improvement plans for the Phase 34
subdivision.

The owner/applicant has installed all

sewer and water infrastructure within
public street rights of way and public

water and sewer main easements. The

outfalltrunk sewer line has been installed

within public easements and/or planned

public right of way within future public

streets.

cD (P)

cD (E), FD,

EWR

cD (P)cD
(E)

cD (E)

l,B

G, l

landscaping design in the Specific Plan

Area. Lighting fixtures shall be

architecturally consistent with the overall

site design.
4.7-2
The owner/applicant shall provide an asphalt

concrete (AC) maintenance road (minimum 12

feet wide) which extends from Scott Road to the

future sanitary sewer lift station on the proposed

future extension of Easton Valley Parkway. The AC

maintenance road shall be designed to meet City

standards for utility vehicle loads including, but

not limited to, vactor trucks, fire vehicles and fire

ratus and other maintenance vehicles

Public and private improvements, including

roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, bicycle lanes

a nd trails, streetlights, u ndergrou nd i nfrastructure

and all other improvements shall be provided in

accordance with the latest edition of the City of
Folsom Standard Construction Specifications and

Details and the Desian and Procedures Manual

All publicly owned water and sewer infrastructure

shall be placed within the street right of way. ln

the event that a public water or sewer main needs

to be placed in an area other than the public right

of way such as through an open space corridor,

landscaped area, etc. an access road shall be

designed and constructed to allow for the
ratio maintenance and ment of the

62.
Cont.

63

64.

65.

Page 80 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 165

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhenGondition / Mitigation Measure

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR

YesThe owner/applicant has completed the
required sewer trunk main, lift station and

forced mains to serve the subject Phase 3A

subdivision. The Owner/applicant
developed a flushing plan that was

reviewed and approved by the CitY

Engineer and the Environmental and

Water Resources DePartment in

accordance with the condition of approval'

cD (E),

EWR

cD (E)

The owner/applicant shall design and construct

the off-site trunk sewer main as shown in

Alternative 3 attached to the vesting tentative
subdivision map. Owner/applicant maY propose

an alternative alignment for routing the sewer

backbone infrastructure in conformance with the
Wastewater Master Plan Update' urith opprovol
of this alternotive alianment- subiectlothe sole

discretion of the Citv. The off-site sewer trunk
main, the sewer maintenance roads, sanitary

sewer lift station, and sewer force main extended

across US Highway 50 to the existing Sacramento

Regional County Sanitation District (SRCSD) lift
stalion are oart of the hackbone infrastrudure
improvements and shall be completed and

accepted by the City for operation and

maintenance
p€+m+ti+th€+rete€t.
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for
constructing any and all odor control facilities,
providing high-velocity hydraulic cleaning and

of select sewer mains andvacuum clean

public water or sewer line along the entire water
and/or sewer line alignment. The water and

sewer system mains shall be publicly owned and

maintained within any street and public water and

sewer main easements shall be provided. The

domestic water and irrigation system shall be

separately metered per City of Folsom Standard

66.

65

Cont.

Page 81 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 166

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
nt

WhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

ATIVE

PROVAL
HWAY

2216.11(PN
ROADK

EGT
ROC

PROJ

MAP
WHITEOF

rvtstoN

BDtVtStON

BD

su

SU
NORTH

RANCH
ROAD,

TENTLOT

RUSSELLTHE
PLACERVILLE

SMALL
OF

NG

FOR
EAST

VESTI
50,

EDD

AP

EN

OF

AM
HIGOF

DITIONScoN
SOUTH

NALF

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has installed all

sewer and water infrastructure within
public street rights of way and public

water and sewer main easements. The

outfall trunk sewer line has been installed

within public easements and/or planned

public right of way within future public

streets.
The plans for the Phase 3A subdivision do

not include any public water and sewer

mains to be placed on private property of
between residential units.

The Owner/applicant designed and

constructed the sewer lift station, the
water reservoir and pressure reducing

valve stations under supervision and

inspection by the CommunitY

Development DePartment and the

cD (E),

EWR

cD (E)

EWR

cD (E)

EWR

cD (E),

EWR

I

providing temporary supplemental flows into

select sewer mains as determined by the City until

such time the peak average flows are met in the

Folsom Plan Area backbone sewer system in

accordance with the Wastewater Master Plan

Update.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission

Meeting on 4lt5lL5
Revision made by Staff subsequent to the
4lt5.lLSPlan Commission Meeti

All publicly owned water and sewer lines and

services shall be accessible for operations,

maintenance, and repair. Non-accessible

situations would include placing mains and

services behind retaining walls, placing public

mains on private Property, etc.

ln no event shall a public water or public sewer

line be placed on private residential property' For

example, installing a waterline on the property

line between two si fami homes.

The owner/applicant shall design all water

reservoirs, water booster pump stations, pressure

reducing valve stations, and sewer lift stations,

and shall coordinate the design with the

Community Development Department and their
construction shall be managed by the
Environmental and Water Resources De rtment.

56.

Cont.

67

58.

69

59

Page 82 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 167

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Yes

Environmental and Water Resources

Department.
The Owner/applicant has completed the
infrastructure allowing fc,r the water
meter fixed network system. Meters will
be furnished and installed during home
construction for each individual metered
connection.
The proposed l-Courts are included in

Village No. 4 in the Phase 1 subdivision.
The water and sewer services in the
proposed l-courts are privately owned and
maintained. The funding for the
maintenance of the privately owned water
and sewer services is beirg accomplished
through the use of a Homeowne/s
Association (HOA) established by the
Subdivider of Village No. 4, The New Home

Company.

The owner/applicant has coordinated with
the various public utility agencies.

cD (E),

EWR

cD (E),

EWR

cD (P) (E)M

The owner owner/applicant shall pay for, furnish
and install all infrastructure associated with the
water meter fixed network system.

The water serviees and sewer serviees in the I

and maintained by t The

water services and sewer services in the l-Courts
on "Lot 6A Drive" shall be privatelv owned and

maintained bv the owner/applicant and the
owner-applicant shall create a fundins
mechanism for repair and maintenance of this
section of the water and sewer services to the
satisfaction of the Communitv Development
Department.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meetine on 4lt5lLi
The owner/applicant shall coordinate the
planning, development and completion of this
project with the various utility agencies (i.e.,

SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The owner/applicant shall
provide the City with written confirmation of
public utility service prior to approval of all final
maps.

Cont.

70.

7t

72

Page 83 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 168

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourHoFH'GH*AYs0#?h?'"?'1=S+\I='^Fi+",JJ3.lJ5,9'!,Hil'il=^RocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has crovided
cathodic protection in the improvement
plans in accordance with City
requirements for all metallic water
pipelines and appurtenances. The plans
prepared by a licensed civil engineer have

been reviewed and apprwed by the City in

compliance with this condition.

The improvements plans for all water
systems have isolation valves and

incorporate City design standards that
allow the City to isolate portions of the
City's water system in the event of failure.

All sound wall and fencing plans for the
Phase 3A subdivision have been reviewed
and approved by the Citv.

cD (E)

EWR

cD (E)

EWR

cD (P)(B)l,B,o

Implement Corrosion Protedion Measures.
The owner/applicant shall be required to provide

that all underground metallic fittings,
appurtenances and piping in the City's water
systems include a cathodic protection system to
protect these facilities from corrosion. The

cathodic protection system shall be prepared by a

licensed geotechnical or civil engineer and the
system shall be reviewed and approved by the City
prior to approval of improvement plans.

38.7-4
lncorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency
Measures Into Final Pipeline Design.

The owner/applicant shall be required to provide

isolation valves or similar devices to be

incorporated into all pipeline facilities to prevent

substantial losses of surface water in the event of
a pipeline failure. The pipeline failure contingency
measures shall be incorporated into the final
pipeline design and this design shall be prepared

by a licensed geotechnical or civil engineer. The

specifications for the isolation valves shall conform
to the California Building Code (CBC) and American
Water Works Association Standards. The final
pipeline design shall be reviewed and approved by

the City prior to approval of improvement plans.

38.7-1b
The final design of all sound walls, fences, and
gates shall be subject to review and approval by

the CommuniW Development Department.

73.

74.

75.

Page 84 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 169

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

STORM WATER POLLUTION/CLEAN WATER ACT REQUIREMENTS
Yes

Yes

Yes

The City has reviewed and approved all
required improvement plans to verify
compliance with this condition of
approval.

The owner/applicant has complied with
this provision and completed periodic on-
site cleaning and sweepirg of the project
site throughout the course of grading and
construction.

The owner/applicant has designed all

storm drainage improvements to meet the
requirements of this condition of approval.
The owner/applicant has provided
updated Master Plans for approval prior to
the issuance of a grading permit for the
Phase 3A subdivision. Copies of the
Master Plans are available from the
Community Development Department.

cD (P)(B)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

EWR, PW

OG

G,l

All curbs located adjacent to landscaping, whether
natural or manicured, and where parking is
allowed shall be vertical.

During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be

responsible for litter control and sweeping of all
paved surfaces in accordance with City standards.
All on-site storm drains shall be cleaned
immediately before the commencement of the
rainv season (October 15).

The storm drainage design shall provide for no net
increase in run-off under post-development
conditions.
The City has approved the Folsom Plan Area Storm
Drainage Master Plan, the Folsom Plan Area Water
System Master Plan and the Folsom Plan Area

Wastewater Master Plan Update. The

owner/applicant shall submit complete updates to
each of these approved master plans for the
proposed changes to each master plan as a result
of the proposed project. The updates to each
master plan for the proposed project shall be

reviewed and approved by the City prior to
approval of grading and/or improvement plans.

75.

77

78.

79

Page 85 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 170

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cDD (E)

EWR, PW

G,lThe plans shall be accompanied by engineering
studies supporting the sizing location, and timing
of the proposed facilities. lmprovements shall be

constructed in phases as the project develops in

accordance with the approved master plans,

including any necessary off-site improvements to
support development of a particular phase or
phases, subject to prior approval by the City. Off-
site improvements may include roadways to
provide secondary access, water transmission lines

or distribution facilities to provide a loopwater
system, sewer trunk mains and lift stations, water
quality facilities and drainage facilities including on

or off-site detention. No changes in infrastructure
from that shown on the approved master plan

shall be permitted unless and until the applicable
master plan has been revised and approved bythe
City. Final lot configurations may need to be

modified to accommodate the improvements
identified in these studies to the satisfaction of the
City.

The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer,
water and storm drainage improvements with
corresponding easements, as necessary, in
accordance with these studies and the latest
edition of the City of Folsom Stondard
Construction Specifications and Details. and the
Desian and Procedures Manual and lmprovement
Standards.

79.
Cont.

Page 86 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 171

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant has prepared a

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan
(SWPPP) which implements stormwater
water quality practices in accordance with
the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for
Sacramento and Placer Regions. There are
no offsite improvements reeded for
support ofthe Russell Ranch drainage
system.

cD (E), PW

PW (Sacto.

Co. or El

Dorado Co.)

CALTRANS

USACE

CVRWQCB

G, lDesign Stormwdter Drainage Plans and Erosion

and Sediment Control Plans to Avoid and
Minimize Erosion ond Runoff to All Wetlands and
Other Waters That Are to Remain on the SPA and
Use Low lmpact Development Feotures.
To minimize indirect effects on water quality and
wetland hydrology, the owner/ owner/applicant(s)
shall include stormwater drainage plans and
erosion and sediment control plans in their
grading and/or improvement plans and shall
submit these plans to the City for review and
approval. Prior to approval of grading and/or
improvement pla ns, the owner/a pplica nt(s) for
any particular discretionary development
application shall obtain a NPDES Construction
General Permit and Grading Permit, comply with
the City's Grading Ordinance and City drainage
and stormwater quality standards, and commit to
implementing all measures in their drainage plans

and erosion and sediment control plans to avoid
and minimize erosion and runoff into Alder Creek
and all wetlands and other waters that would
remain on-site.

The owner/applicant(s) shall implement
stormwater q ua lity treatment controls consistent
with the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for
Sacramento and South Placer Regions in effect at
the time the application is submitted. Appropriate
runoff controls such as berms, storm gates, off-

80.

Page 87 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 172

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

Commer*sResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E), PW

PW (Sacto.

Co. or El

Dorado Co.)

CALTRANS

USACE

CVRWQCB

G, Istream detention basins, overflow collection
areas, filtration systems, and sediment traps shall

be implemented to control siltation and the
potential discharge of pollutants. Development
plans shall incorporate Low lmpact Development
(LlD)features, such as pervious strips, permeable
pavements, bioretention ponds, vegetated swales,

disconnected rain gutter downspouts, and rain
gardens, where appropriate. Use of LID features is

recommended by the EPA to minimize impacts on

water quality, hydrology, and stream
geomorphology and is specified as a method for
protecting water quality in the proposed specific
plan. ln addition, free spanning bridge systems

shall be used for all roadway crossings over
wetlands and other waters that are retained in the
on-site open space. These bridge systems would
maintain the natural and restored channels of
creeks, including the associated wetlands, and

would be designed with sufficient span width and

depth to provide for wildlife movement along the
creek corridors even during high-flow or flood
events, as specified in the 404 permit.

The owner/applicant shall be responsible for all

necessary off-site improvements needed to
support the Russell Ranch drainage system.

3A 3-l-a

80.

Cont.

Page 88 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 173

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe Owner/applicant has received a

NPDES permit from the State Regional
Water Quality Control Board (SRWQCB).

The NDES Permit requires the
implementation of BMP's, monitoring and
reporting for stormwater runoff. The

NPDES Permit includes a Storm Water
Pollution Prevention Plar (SWPPP), which
outlines monitoring standards, frequency
and baseline modeling. The

Owner/applicant has submitted monthly
reports to the City and SRWQCB

throughout the course of grading and

construction.

cD (E)G, lThe storm drain improvement plans shall provide

for "Best Management Practices" that meet the
requirements of the water quality standards of the
City's Nationa I Pol luta nt Discha rge Elimination
System Permit issued by the State Regional Water
Quality Control Board.

ln addition to compliance with City ordinances, the
owner/a pplicant(s) shall prepare a Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and

implement Best Management Practices (BMPs)

that comply with the General Construction
Stormwater Permit from the Central Valley
RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during
construction. Detailed information about the
SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9,

"Hydrology and Water Quality."
Each proposed project development shall result in
no net change to peak flows into Alder Creek and

associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson

Creek, and Coyote Creek. The owner/applicant(s)
shall establish a baseline of conditions for
drainage on-site. The baseline-flow conditions
shall be established for2-,5-, and 100-yearstorm
events. These baseline conditions shall be used to
develop monitoring standards for the stormwater
system on the Specific Plan Area. The baseline

conditions, monitoring standards, and a

monitoring program shall be submitted to USACE

and the City for their approval. Water quality and

detention basins shall be and

81

Page 89 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 174

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WH]TE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)G, lconstructed to ensure that the performance

standards, which are described in Chapter 3A.9,

"Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall

be designed as off-stream detention basins.

Discharge sites into Alder Creek and associated

tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson Creek,

Coyote Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be

monitored to ensure that pre-project conditions
are being met. Corrective measures shall be

implemented as necessary. The mitigation
measures will be satisfied when the monitoring
standards are met for 5 consecutive years without
undertaking corrective measures to meet the
performance standard.

81.

Cont

Page 90 ol 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 175

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDITTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVTSION PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

FIRE DEPT REQUIREMENTS
Condition

willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit

The owner/applicant has designed and
received approval for all rveather access

improvements and fire hydrants for the
entire Phase 34 subdivision. Building
permits will not be issued prior to these
improvements being completed to the
satisfaction of the Community
Development Department and the Fire

Department.

cD (P)

Fire

l,BThe owner/applicant shal I provide all-weather
access and fire hydrants before combustible
materials are allowed on any project site or other
approved alternative method as approved by the
Fire Code Official/Fire Chief. All-weather
emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested

and flushed) shall be provided before combustible
material or vertical construction is allowed on any
project site or other approved alternative method
as approved bv the Fire Code Official/Fire Chief.

{All-weather access is defined as six inches of
compacted aggregate base from May 1 to
September 30 and two inch asphalt concrete over
six inch aggregate base from October to April 30).

The building shall have illuminated addresses

visible from the street or drive fronting the
property. Size and location of address

identification shall be reviewed and impreved
approved by the Fire Marshal.

Fire department and other emergency access shall

be assured an unencumbered continuous paved

width of 20 feet on straight portions of the
emergency vehicle access (EVA). Turns on EVA s

shall be designed to accommodate Fire

Department apparatus with inside turning radii of
25 feet and outside turning radii of 50 feet;
therefore, the minimum width of EVA's in turning

82.

Page 91 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 176

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

Gommer*sResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,Bmovements shall be 25 feet. The structural design
of the EVA shall accommodate a gross vehicle
weight of 80,000 pounds for fire apparatus. The
maximum grade of an EVA shall not exceed 12%

and gradual transitions between differing grades

are required. The EVA shall have an unobstructed
vertical clearance of not less than 13'6". Access

points to EVA s shall be identified with painted
and stenciled rolled curbs to restrict parking in
accordance with the California Vehicle Code. All

curbs shall be painted red with the words "No
Parking Fire Lane" stenciled in white on the face of
the curbs using 4-inch letters. lf curbs are not
available, provide 6-inch wide red stripes along
the edge of the access points with the same

stenciling.
o Gated entries shall be electronic and UL

325 compliant. Access opening for single

direction traffic shall be unobstructed 15

feet wide and 13'-5" high and shall swing in

the direction of vehicle traffic. Access

opening(s) for bi-directional traffic shall be

either one (1) unobstructed 27-feet wide
gate opening or two (2) 14-foot wide gate

openings and 13'-6" high and shall swing
into the property being entered. The gates

shall be located a minimum of 40 feet offof
public streets. Provide Mutual-Aid
electronic Knox key-switches ond Click-To-
Enter radio-operated controllers for

82.
Cont.

Page 92 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 177

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISTON PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,Bemergency vehicles. The Knox key-switch
shall be designed to keep the gate in the
open position for at least one minute.
Provide a battery power supply that allows
the gates to fail in the open position, when
a power outage occurs. Pedestrian gates

shall be installed within 10 feet of the
vehicle gate. The pedestrian gates shall be
handicap accessible and have listed exit
hardware that is operable from the inside

at all times without the use of a key or any
special knowledge or effort. A Mutual-Aid
Knox key box shall be installed at least 48

inches above grade on the outside of the
gate with a key to open the pedestrian
gate.

a The minimum fire flow for residential
dwellings is 1,000 gpm at 20 psi for houses
3,600 sq. ft. and less, 1,750 gpm for
dwellings greater than 3,600 sq. ft. in area,

and 2,000 gpm for dwellings greater than
4,800 sq. ft. up to 6,200 sq. ft. in area.
Please determine the maximum size homes
that will be built in this subdivision. A water
model analysis that proves the minimum
fire flow will be required before any
permits are issued.

82.
Cont.

Page 93 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 178

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-l 221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,BAll public streets shall meet City of Folsom Street
Standards.
r Fire department and other emergency

access shall be assured an unencumbered
minimum continuous width of 24 feet clear

space outside of any parking and/or
between curb faces on all private streets.

On-street parking shall be restricted to
provide this minimum clearance. Note that
on-street parallel parking shall be assigned

a minimum width of 7 feet from the face of
curb.

o Road Widths Local Streets. The

owner ^nlicant will mointain 72 foot
travel lane widths in oreas of 72% and
areater arade and will obtain the approvol
of the Fire Depanment. Public Work Solid

Woste Department and School Disfricr. for
anv deviation from the 72 foot travel lane

street width stdndord for local streets.
o The maximum length of any dead end

street shall not exceed 500 feet in

accordance with the Folsom Fire Code'

Several streets indicated on the plans are

dead ends greater than 500 feet. Provide a

second emergency access or reduce the
length of dead-ends that are served by only

a single point of entry.
r Locate the fire hydrants on the sides ofthe

streets that will have rki restricted in

82.
Cont.

Page 94 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 179

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourHoF*GHwAY€0vEt?1"3'#.tfSjl"'=nF?to'J3.lJ5fi 

5,Hil'illl".'(R'AD
Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,Border to provide the maximum number of
on-street parking spots possible, and to
minimize conflicts between parked cars

and fire hydrants.
At least one on-street parking spot is

required for each lot and/or dwelling unit
within this project. These on-street parking

spots shall be equally dispersed throughout
the entire project.

The HOA shall be required and have the
ability to tow away vehicles parked within
fire access lanes. These provisions shall be

recorded within the CCR's for the
subdivision, and the City shall review the
conditions of the CCR's to ensure that the
intent is met.
Provide Fire Department emergency access

and defensible space to the open space

areas and the sloped landscaped areas
located within this project.

Submit to the City of Folsom for approval a

fuel modification plan that holds the home
owners' association responsible for the
annual maintenance required for fire
hazard reduction within the open spaces

areas and the sloped landscape areas. This
document will secure annual funding, an

annual maintenance schedule and access

rights into the open space areas and the
sloped landscaped areas to provide the

a

a

a

82
Cont.

Page 95 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 180

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourHoFH.GH*AY50i,H?lr3'r'Jfr"f$+'+E[?+R;J3,H5,$,!,Hil'il'^F"GKR.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,Bannual fuel modification. Open space areas

and the sloped landscaped areas shall be

maintained to allow reasonable access and

defensible space for firefighting
operations.
The fuel modification plan shall indicate
mitigation measures consistent with the
unique problems resulting from the
flammable vegetation and topography of
the proposed open space areas and the
sloped landscaped areas.

The sloped landscape areas shall be

designed with irrigation and drought-
resista nt landscaping.

The sloped landscape areas shall be

designed with permanent mitigation
measures to prevent to the growth of
weeds and flammable vegetation.

Property fence lines along open space

boundaries shall be constructed of
noncombustible materials.
All-weather emergency access roads and

fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be

provided before combustible material
storage or vertical construction is allowed.
All-weather access is defined as 6" of
compacted AB from May 1 to September
30 and 2"AC over 6" AB from October 1 to
April30
Multi-family portion of the project:

o

a

a

O

a

82
Cont.

Page 96 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 181

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,Bi. Fire Department and other emergency
access shall be assured an

unencumbered continuous width of 27

for all emergency access driveways.
ii. Parking shall be prohibited within the

emergency access driveways and must
be identified with painted and
stenciled curbs to restrict parking in

accordance with the California Vehicle

Code.

iii. Turns on the emergency access

driveways shall be designed to
accommodate Fire Department
apparatus. Use inside turning radii of
25 feet and outside turning radii of 50
feet.

iv. 2013 California Fire Code Section 503:
Fire Department-approved all-weather
emergency access roads shall be
provided for every facility or building,
when any portion of the facility or any
portion of an exterior wall of the first
story of a building is located more than
150 feet from fire department vehicle
access measured by an approved route
around the exterior of the building or
facility (CFc s03.1.1).

v. Dead-end emergency access driveways
in excess of 150 feet in length shall be
provided with an approved area for

82
Cont

Page 97 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 182

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|STON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommenlsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,Bturning around fire apparatus. (CFC

s03.2.s).
The timing and construction of the Scott
Road realignment shall not impact
emergency access routes to occupied
homes within the Folsom Ranch Plan Area.

The timing and construction of New
Placerville Road and the abandonment of
Old Placerville Road shall not impact
emergency access routes to occupied
homes within the Folsom Ranch Plan Area.

Easton Valley Road shall be completed and
fully operational for emergency access
prior to the occupancy of the first home
within the Folsom Ranch Plan Area.

The timing and phased construction of
local streets within each subdivision of the
Folsom Ranch Plan Area shall not impact
emergency access routes to occupied
homes within the Folsom Ranch Plan Area.

The first Fire Station planned for the
Folsom Ranch Plan Area shall be
completed and operational at the time
that the threshold of 1,500 occupied
homes within the Folsom Ranch Plan Area
is met.
Applicant shall submit a Fuel Modification
Plan to the City for review and preliminary
approval from the Fire Code Official prior
to any subdivision of land. Final approval

a

a

a

82.
Cont.

Page 98 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 183

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

Gommer*sResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P)

Fire

l,Bof the plan by the Fire Code Official shall

occur prior to the issuance of a permit for
any new construction. A Fuel Modification
Plan shall consist of a set of scaled plans

showing fuel modification zones indicated
with applicable assessment notes, a
detailed landscape plan and an irrigation
plan. A fuel modification plan submitted
for approval shall be prepared by one of
the following: a California state licensed

landscape architect, or state licensed

landscape contractor, or a landscape

designed, or an individual with expertise
acceptable to the Fire Code Official.

The property owner(s) agree to be

responsible for the long-term
maintenance of the Fuel Modification
Plan. Notification of fuel modification
requirements are to be made upon sale to
new property owners. Proposed changes

to the approved Fuel Modification Plan

shall be submitted to the Fire Code Official
for approval prior to implementation.

a

Revision made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4lt5lL5
Revision made by staff subsequent to the 4/75/75
PIa n ning Com mission Meeti ng

82.
Cont.

Page 99 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 184

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIV|SION PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The Community Development Department
and the Fire Department have reviewed
and approved all proposed improvement
plans for the construction of the water and
fire flow system for the entire Phase 34
subdivision.

The Fire Department and the Community
Development Departmert have reviewed
and approved the design of all proposed
gated entries. The apprwed design for any
future gated entries include the
requirements noted in this condition of
approval. The owner/applicant has noted
to the City that at this time the only gated

entry will be installed for the proposed
Village 4 as part of the Phase 1 subdivision.
There are no gated entries proposed for
Phase 34.

cD (E)

Fire

cD (E), FD

t, B

l, oG

lncorporate Fire Flow Requirements into Project
Designs.
The owner/applicant(s) shall incorporate into their
project designs fire flow requirements based on

the California Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code and
shall verify to the City of Folsom Fire Department
that adequate water flow is available, prior to
approval of improvement plans and issuance of
occupancy permits or final inspections for all
project phases.

3A 14-3

Private Gated Entries
Prior to approval of improvement plans, all private
gated entry designs shall be reviewed and

approved by the Community Development
Department and the Fire Department. Pedestrian
gates, which are to remain unlocked, shall be

provided on each side of any gated entries where
a sidewalk occurs, to facilitate improved
pedestrian circulation and to eliminate the
requirement for pedestrians to cross the street in
order to enter or exit any proposed subdivision.
The gates shall be equipped with the "Click to
Enter" gate opening system (or some other
product) to allow emergency vehicle access by 2-

way radio frequency to open the gates. Should
vehicle stacking not be sufficient, the Community
Development Department may require the gates

to remain open during peak hours. The
homeowners association whose boundary covers

83

84

Page 100 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 185

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Roundabout design has been approved
and approved by the Community
Development Departme'tt, the Fire

Department and the Folsom Cordova

Unified School District. The roundabouts

are shown on the approved plans for Alder

Creek Parkway and Grand Prairie Road

which were constructed as part of the
Phase 1 subdivision.
The City of Folsom Fire Department has

reviewed and approved all of the Phase 3A

subdivision improvement plans and any

off-site improvements for compliance with
this mitigation measure.

cD (E), FD

cD (E), FD

FD

PW

CD E)(

l, oG

l,B,o

the private gate shall comply with this
requirement, and the owner/applicant shall

ensure this requirement is in the HOA CC&Rs'

Roundabout Design

Prior to approval of improvement plans, the
design all roundabouts shall be reviewed and

approved by the Community Development

Department, the Folsom Cordova Unified School

District (FCUSD) and the Fire Department. The

design shall include the proposed lane

configurations and design for the landscaping to
be installed in the center.

lncorporate Calilornio Fire Code; City ol Folsom

Fire Code Requirements; and EDHFD

Requirements, if Necessary, into Proiect Design

ond Submit Proiect Design to the City of Folsom

Fire Department for Review and Approval.

To reduce impacts related to the provision of new

fire services, the owner/applicant shall do the
following, as described below:
lncorporate into project designs fire flow
requirements based on the California Fire Code,

Folsom Fire Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code

Title 8, Chapter 8.36), and other applicable

requirements based on the City of Folsom Fire

Department fire prevention standards.

lmprovement plans showing the incorporation of
automatic sprinkler systems, the availability of
adequate fire flow, and the locations of hydrants

shall be submitted to the of Folsom Fire

84.
Cont.

85

85.

Page 101 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 186

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

FD

PW

cD (E)

l,B,oDepartment for review and approval. ln addition,
approved plans showing access design shall be

provided to the City of Folsom Fire Department as

described by Zoning Code Section 17.57.O8O

("Vehicular Access Req ui rements"). These plans

shall describe access-road length, dimensions, and

finished surfaces for firefighting equipment. The

installation of security gates across a fire
apparatus access road shall be approved by the
City of Folsom Fire Department. The design and

operation of gates and barricades shall be in

accordance with the Sacramento County
Emergency Access Gates and Barriers Standard, as

required by the City of Folsom Fire Code.

Submit a Fire Systems New Buildings, Additions,

and Alterations Document Submittal List to the
City of Folsom Community Development
Department Building Division for review and

approval before the issuance of building permits'

The Fire Dept. shall review and approve any

improvement plans or building permits for
accessibility of emergency fire equipment, fire
hydrant flow location, and other construction
features. The City shall not authorize the
occupancy of any structures until the
owner/applicant(slhave obtained a Certificate of
Occupancy from the City of Folsom Community
Development Department verifying that all fire
prevention items have been addressed on-site to

86.

Cont.

Page 102 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 187

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJEGT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFHrGHwAY€'irft 

?ll,8tt"T.t=fii+5^[?+tJJ3.lJ$9,5,Hil[=^RocKRoAD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

LANDSCAPE/TREE PRESERVATION REOUIREMENTS
YesThe owner/applicant has prepared a

landscape plans for all supporting
backbone roadways and detention basins.

The landscape plans have been reviewed
and approved by the City and the
landscape improvements are currently
under construction. The landscape plans

are in accordance with allCity
requirements, this condition of approval
and the Design Guidelines for the Folsom
Plan Area.

FD

PW

D (E)c

cD (P), PW

l,B,o

l, oG

the satisfaction of the City of Folsom Fire

Department.

Final landscape plans and specifications shall be
prepared by a registered landscape architect and
approved by the City Arborist and City staff prior
to the approval of improvement plans. Said plans

shall include all on-site landscape specifications
and details, and sholl complv with all State ond
Iocal rules, reaulations, Governols declarations
and restrictions pertainina to water
conservations and outdoor landscapina.
Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as

outlined in the Folsom Municipal Code Chapter
17.57 where applicable. The landscape plans shall

comply and implement water efficient
requirements as adopted by the State of California
(Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model Water Efficient
Landscape Ordinoncel until such time the City of
Folsom adopts its own Water Efficient Landscape

Ordinance at which time the Owner/Applicant
sholl comply with any new Ordinance. Shade and
ornamental trees shall be maintained according to
the most current American National Standards for
Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) by qualified
tree care professionals.

Tree topping for height reduction, sign visibility,
light clearance or anv other purpose shall not be

86
Cont

87

Page 103 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 188

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (P), PWl,oGallowed. Specialty-style pruning, such as

pollarding, shall be specified within the approved
landscape plans and shall be implemented during
a 5-year establishment and training period.

Furthermore, the owner/applicant shall comply
with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on

water usage. Owner/applicant shall comply with
any state or local rules and regulations relating to
landscape water usage and landscaping

requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought
conditions on all landscaping in the Russell Ranch

Project.

Landscaping along all road rights of way and in

public open space lots shall be installed when the
adjoining road is constructed. Add OG to the
timing and lmplementation column.

Revision in italics made by Staff subsequent to
the 4/75n5 Planning Commission meeting
Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4lt5lL5 (Add oG to timing and
implementation)

87.
Cont.

Page 104 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 189

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDIflONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VTSTON PROJEGT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has implemented all
applicable mitigation measures
throughout the course ofgrading and
construction. The City has provided
monitoring of the mitigat'on measures
through construction inspection.

All proposed public utility service lines to
all of the lots in the Phase 3A subdivision
have been placed underground in

compliance with this condition. All
required public utility easements are
shown on the final map for the Phase 3A
subdivision.

The plans for the noise barriers required in

the Phase 3A subdivision are shown on the
approved improvement plans.

cD (E) (P)

Sacramento
Metropolita
n Air Quality
Managemen

t District

cD (E) (P)

cD (P)cD
(E)(B)

G, I,B

I

The owner/applicant shall implement all

applicable measures in the Sacramento
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District
approved Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Air
Quality Mitigation Plan.

342-2

All future utility lines lower than 59 kv'ineluding
the 69KV line; te be built aleng the westerly side
e++le+rejee+ shall be placed underground within
and along the perimeter of the project at the
develope/s cost. The owner/applicant shall
dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground
easements for the electrical facilities that will be
necessary to service development of the project.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meetins on4lt5lL5
Noise Barriers
ln conjunction with the submittal of improvement
plans for each proposed development phase

where noise barrier locations are recommended,
the owner/applicant shall show on the
lmprovement Plans that sound walls and/or
landscaped berms shall be constructed along US

50, White Rock Road, and Empire Ranch Road. The
specific height and locations of the noise barriers
shall be confirmed based upon the final approved
site and grading plans. All required wall heights
shall be relative to finished building pad

88.

89.

90.

Page 105 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 190

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsibleWhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

TENTATIVE

ROVAL
HIGHWAY

2216.11(PN
ROADROCK

PROJECT

MAP
ITE

N
WHOF

uBDlvlslos

suBDlvlsloN
NORTH

RANCH
ROAD,

SSELL

LOT

RUE
PLACERVILLE
TH

SMALL
OF

FOR
EAST

VESTING
50,

APPOF

AMENDED

NS
OF

coNDlflo
SOUTH

FINAL

cD (P)cD
(E)(B)

elevations. Noise barrier walls shall be constructed

of concrete masonry units, as required in the

Planned Development Guidelines. Abrupt

transitions exceeding two feet in height shall be

avoided. The Grading and/or lmprovement Plans

shall be subject to review and approval by the City

Engineer.
Alternatively, and at the owner/applicant's
request and in the City's discretion, the
owner/applicant may submit a site-specific

acoustical analysis for a specific development
phase where noise barrier locations are

recommended, that is prepared by an acoustical

consultant approved by the City of Folsom to
determine and confirm whether sound

attenuation is needed, taking into account site-

specific conditions (e.g. site design, location of
structu res, bui ld ing characteristics, building

orientation, etc.) in accordance with adopted

noise standards. lf sound attenuation is

determined by the City to be necessary, the site-

specific acoustical analysis shall identify measures

to reduce noise impacts to meet the Ci!y's noise

standards at these locations, including, but not

limited to, constructing exterior sound walls,

constructing barrier walls and/or berms with
vegetation, or other alternative attenuation
solution acceptable to the City, provided that the

improvement plans are accompanied with the
s that confirms whetheracoustical ana

Cont.
90

Page 106 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 191

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL GONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

MAP REQUIREMENTS
YesThe owner/applicant has formed a

Homeowners Association (HOA) for the
Phase 3A subdivision. The formation of the
HOA includes the establishment of a

budget to fund the operation and
maintenance of the private streets, the
private landscape areas, the future private
recreation facility and the future private
park included in this condition of approval.
The Community Development Department
has reviewed and approved the C.C.& R.'s

for the Phase 3A subdivision to verify
compliance with this condition of
approval. Lot 6 is in Russell Ranch Phase 1,

Village No. 4. The final map for Village No.

4 has already been approved by the City

Council and is not part o'the Phase 34
subdivision.

cD (P) (E)

(B)

cD (P) (E)M

proposed alternative solution will meet the
adopted City noise standard. The acoustical

analysis shall also take into consideration sound

attenuation mitigation that may be required of
parcels adjacent to the noise barriers.
4.6-3a

The owner/applicant shallform a Homeowners
Association for the ownership and maintenance of
all private streets including the private street
storm drainage systems, sewer and water lines
within the I Courts on Lot 5, and landscaped open

spaces and common areas on hillsides, etc. (Lots

l_B, 1C, 1D, lE, rF,]G,1H, 11, 1J, 1K, lL, 1M, 1!1,
E, rP, 1Q, lR, LS, 2A, W, 2J 2G, 2H, 2l,

2J, 2K, L 2M, 2N, 20, 2P, 2Q. 2R, 3€, 3A, 38. 3D.

3_E, 3F, 3G, 3H, 31, 3J, 3lC 3.b3M, 3N,3e, 3R, 35,

3T, 3U, 3\6 and 6A, 68, 6C, 6E. 6F), the private
park on lot 24, and the private recreation facilities
to be constructed on lot 1-4. The Homeowners
Association shall also be responsible for
monitoring and ensuring maintenance of the
landscaping within the open space easement on

each view lot within the subdivision.

The owner/applicant shall propose a funding
mechanism (including but not limited to
Homeowner's Association or a Proiect
Maintenance Communitv Facilities Districtl
subiect to the aporoval of the Communitv

90
Cont.

91

Page 107 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 192

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH suBDrvrsroN PRoJEGT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant has provided C.C. &
R.'s to the Community DeveloPment
Department. The CommunitY

Development Department has approved
the C.C. & R.'s and verified that they
include the required disclosures.

cD (P)(E)

cD (P) PK

M

M

Development Department for the following
landscaped open spaces: Lots lR.10.5D' 28.

2C,31.30. and 3V.

ln addition, CC&R's shall be prepared by the
owner/applicant and shall be subject to review

and approval by the Community Development
Department for compliance with this approval and

with the Folsom Municipal Code and adopted
policies, prior to the recordation of the Final Map'

Revision was made at the Planning Commission

M on
The owner/applicant shall disclose to the
homebuyers in the Conditions, Covenants, and

Restrictions (CC&Rs) and in the Department of
Real Estate Public Report a future public park and

public school are located within the proposed

subdivision, and that the public park inelude may

include facilities (basketball courts, a baseball

field, softball fields, soccer fields, and playground

equipment) that may generate noise impacts

during various times, including but not limited to
evening and nighttime hoursJ-he

that the
exis+ing public park mav includes nighttime sports

lighting that may generate lighting impacts during

evening and nighttime hours.

Revision made bv Staff subsequent to the

9r.
Cont.

92.

Page 108 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 193

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has provided C.C. &
R.'s to the Community Development
Department. The Community
Development Department has approved
the C.C. & R.'s and verified that they
include the required disclosures.

The owner/applicant subnitted
improvement plans for all infrastructure
improvements required to serve this
subdivision. The City Engineer has

reviewed and approved all required
improvement plans to se've this
subdivision. Copies of the improvement
plans are available from the Community
Development Department.
The Large Lot Final Subdivision map was
approved by the City Council on

September 12,2017 and recorded on
September 27,2Ot7, Book 398 pase 1.

The required subdivision improvement
agreement will be included as part of the
city staff report accompanying the final
map for City Council approval. The
resolution approving the final map for this
subdivision includes a statement
authorizing the City Manager to execute
the subdivision improvernent agreement
for the subdivision along with approval of
the final map.

cD (P) (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

M

M

The owner/applicant shall disclose to the
homebuyers in the Conditions, Covenants, and

Restrictions (CC&Rs) and in the Department of
Real Estate Public Report that the soil in the
subdivision may contain naturally occurring
asbestos.

The improvement plans for the required public

a nd private subdivision i m provements necessa ry
to serve any and all phases of development shall

be reviewed and approved by the Community
Development Department prior to approval of the
Final Map.

Prior to the recording of any phase of the Vesting

Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map, the Russell

Ranch Vesting Large Lot Tentative Subdivision Map
shall be recorded.
Prior to the approval of any Final Map, the
owner/applicant shall enter into a subdivision
improvement agreement with the City, identifying
all required improvements, if any, to be

constructed with each proposed phase of
development. The owner/applicant shall provide

security acceptable to the City, guaranteeing

construction of the improvements.

93

94.

95.

95.

Page 109 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 194

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has executed an

lnclusionary Housing Agreement with the
City. The agreement allows the
owner/applicant to provide an in-lieu fee
assigned to each building permit in the
subdivision. The in-lieu housing fee will be
paid at the time of building permit
issuance.

The City has formed Community Facilities

District (CFD) 18 which shall be responsible
for maintenance of all backbone
i nfrastructure, d rainage facilities, street
lighting and landscaping. Additionally,
CFD 20, which the subject subdivision is a

part oi includes an assessment for on-site
specific drainage, landscaping, lighting and

sound walls. Each of the assessments for
CFD L8 and 20 will be triggered at the
issuance of a building permit. The

owner/applicant has alsc formed a
Homeowne/s Associatior (HOA) which
will fund the maintenance of private

streets, landscape comnpn areas and
private storm drainage facilities and

improvements.

cD (P) (E)

cD (P) (E)

M

M

The Final lnclusionary Housing Plan and Final

lnclusionary Housing Agreement as approved by

the City Council shall be executed prior to
recordation of the first Final Map for the Russell

Ranch Subdivision.

The owner/applicant shallform a Landscape

Lighting Assessment District, a Community
Services District, or a Home Owners Association,

which shall be responsible for maintenance of all

private streets, maintenance of all common areas,

maintenance of all on-site landscaping,

maintenance of storm drainage facilities,
maintena nce of storm water detention/detention
basins and associated channels, maintenance of
water quality ponds, and maintenance of any

other site facilities in the subdivision throughout
the life ofthe project to the satisfaction ofthe
Community Development Department and in

accordance with the Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement. Vegetation or plantings

shall not be less than that depicted on the final
landscape plan, unless tree removal is approved
by the Community Development Department
because the spacing between trees will be too
close on center as they mature.

97

98

Page 110 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 195

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

Gommer*sResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has dedicated a

public utility easement (FUE) along all of
the public streets in the Phase 3A

subdivision. All required easements are

shown on the final map for Phase 3A. The

width of the PUE's are 12.5 feet.

The owner/applicant has proposed
phasing of the final maps for the Phase 3

subdivision into Phase 34 and future Phase

38. The owner/applicant has received

approval of the phasing plan by the City

Engineer.

The owner/applicant provided all

necessary public utility easements, grant

deeds, offers of dedication or temporary
construction easements required to build
all ofthe required Backbone lnfrastructure
needed to serve the subdivision. These

were recorded with Sacramento County
Recorder within the Large Lot Final Map or
bv separate instrument for those

cD (E)

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

G, l

The owner/applicant shall dedicate public

easements for water, sewer, and sidewalks within
the private streets, as well as public utility
easements for underground facilities on properties

adjacent to the streets. A minimum of twelve and

one-half-foot (12.5') wide Public Utility Easements

for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific Gas

and Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be

dedicated adjacent to all private and public street
rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate
additional width to accommodate extraordinary
facilities as determined by the City. The width of
the public utility easements adjacent to public and

private right of way may be reduced with prior
approval from public utility companies.

Should multiple Final Maps be filed bythe
owner/applicant, the phasing of maps shall be to
the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.

As provided for in the ARDA and the First

Amendment thereto, the owner/applicant shall
provide fully executed grant deeds, legal

descriptions, and plats for all necessary Backbone

lnfrastructure to serve the project, including but
not limited to lands, public rights of way, public

utility easements, public water main easements,
public sewer easements, irrevocable offers of
dedication and temporary construction

99.

100

101.

Page 1 11 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 196

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FrNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

easements which were required outside
the boundary of the Phase 34 subdivision
The required Backbone lnfrastructure has

been completed to the satisfaction of the
City and is currently in operation.

The required Backbone lnfrastructure to
serve the Russell Ranch Phase 34
subdivision has been completed and

accepted by the City and is currently in
operation. All other requ-red Phase 34
subdivision improvements are currently
being constructed by the owner/applicant.
Prior to issuance a building permit in the
Phase 3A subdivision, The Community
Development Department will verify that
all required subdivision improvements are

su bsta ntially com plete.

cD (E)

cD (E)

G, l

B

easements. All required easements as listed
necessary for the Backbone lnfrastructure shall be

reviewed and approved by the City and recorded

with the Sacramento County Recorder pursuant to
the timing requirements set forth in Section 3.8 of
thE ARDA.

All on and off-site subdivision and Backbone

I nfrastructure im provements req ui red to serve

this project and any subsequent phase of the
project, including but not limited to, roadway and

transportation improvements, sanitary sewer,

water, storm drainage, water quality/detention
basins, etc. shall be substantiallv completed and

aeeepted to the satisfaction of the City prior to
issuance of the first building permit within the
project. Owner-applicant mav propose issuance

of building permits for non-habitable structures
(model homes and club house onlv), prior to
substantial completion of the above referenced
infrastructure. but in no case shall a final
inspection be issued or anv public use of the non-
habitable structures without substantial
completion of the above referenced
infrastructure. lssuance of the building permits

for non-habitable structures (model homes or
club house) in advance of substantial completion
shall be approved or denied in the sole discretion
of the CommuniW Development Department.
Substantial completion of the backbone

101.

Cont.

702

Page 112of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 197

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL cONDtTtONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLAGERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant has either
constructed or participated financially in

the construction all required infrastructure
necessary to serve the PJ'ase 34
subdivision. The required infrastructure
has been completed and accepted by the
City and is currently in operation. As

building permits are issued in the Phase 3A

subdivision and in other subdivisions in the
Folsom Plan Area, impact fees are

collected to fund various public facilities.
The construction of various public facilities
will be complete as timelines and

thresholds are achieved.

cD (E)

PFFP. M,B

cD (E) (P)

(B)PW, FD,

EWR, PR

B

M

shall be defined as being complete such that all

of the required improvements are readv for use

and operation bv the public as determined bv the
ciw.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meetins on 4lt5lts
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all

thresholds, timelines and deadlines for the
construction and final completion of various

improvements for the entire Folsom Plan Area.

The various improvements are outlined and

detailed in the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan

Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP) dated

January 28,20t4 and adopted by City of Folsom

Resolution No. 9298. These improvements in the
PFFP include, but are not limited to, the backbone

infrastructure water (water reservoirs, booster
pump stations, pressure reducing valve stations,

etc.)and sanitary sewer (lift stations) systems,

roadway and transportation (future interchanges,
major arterial roadways, etc.) improvements,
aquatic center (community pool), parks, fire
stations, m u nicipal services center, com m unity

library, etc. The thresholds and timelines included
in the PFFP require facilities to be constructed and

completed based on number of building permits

issued and in some cases, number of residential
units that are occupied. The owner/applicant shall

be required to address these thresholds and

ro2.
Cont

103.

Page 1 13 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 198

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTV|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has provided a grant
deed to the City transferring ownership of
Lot 12 on the recorded Large Lot Final Map
for Phase 1. Lot 12 is the parcel needed for
the future construction of the Empire
Ranch Road lnterchange. The City
currently owns the property needed for
the future Empire Ranch Road lnterchange
within the boundaries of the Russell Ranch

development.

The owner/applicant has provided a grant
deed to the City transferring ownership of
Lot 12 on the recorded Large Lot Final Map
for Phase 1. Lot 12 is the parcel needed for
the future construction of the Empire
Ranch Road lnterchange. The City

PFFP, M,B
cD (E) (P)

(B)PW, FD,

EWR, PR

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

M

timelines as the project moves forward through
the various developments stages and shall be

subject to the various fair share requirements,
subject to the provisions of the PFFP, the ARDA

and the First Amendment thereto.

The owner/applicant shall provide an irrevocable
offer of dedication (lOD) for the future Empire
Ranch Road interchange within the boundaries of
the subdivision prior to approval of the final large
lot subdivision map. The owner/applicant shall
provide a recorded covenant on all lots located in

Phase 12 of the Vesting Tentative Subdivision Map

int€{€h€{c€e. The recorded covenant shall include
a copy of the l.O.D. for the interchange and notice
that this is a future improvement ls+equired+e$e

to be
accommodated.

Revision made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4lt5lt5
At the time of project approval the final design,
location, grade and configuration of the Empire
Ranch Road lnterchange (lnterchange Project) at
Highway 50 is not known nor approved by the
agencies that will be involved in the lnterchange
Proiect. The owner/applicant proposes homes

103.

Cont.

704.

105

Page 1 14 ol 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 199

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDITTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourHoFH.GH*AY5'irft 

?11,3'rifrl=8.it'==^A?+iJJ3.H5,9.!,Hil'iliRocKR.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to

approval
of the
future

Phase 3B

Final Map

currently owns the property needed for
the future Empire Ranch Road lnterchange
within the boundaries of the Russell Ranch

development. The required sound walls
are included on the apprcved
improvement plans for the Phase 34
subdivision.

The Community Development Department
has reviewed and approved the
improvement plans for tre future Phase

3B subdivision. The temporary water
quality basin/detention basin is no longer
required with the construction of
downstream and off-site detention basins
by others.

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

near the anticipated location of the lnterchange
Project. The owner/a pplica nt acknowledges the
final design, location, grade and configuration of
the lnterchange Project is not known. and+he
ewner/applieant will in€luCe a reeerded diselesure
te be previded te all petential buyers ef hemes

near the petential lnterehange Prejeet advising ef
the future lnterehange Prejeet and asseeiated

neise; grade ehanges; height; leeatien; design;
traffie and eenstruetien ef the lnterehange Prejeet,

Owner/applicant shall construct or be responsible
for the cost of designing and constructing sound

walls, as supported by a noise study and as

required by the EIR for the project.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4ltSlLS
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for the
ownership and on-going maintenance of the
temporary water quality /detention basin which
will impact lots 211 through 214 in Phase 3 of the
project. The owner/applicant shall be solely
responsible for the removal of the temporary
water quality/detention basin at such time the
basin is no longer required. Lots 2ll through 214
shall not be created with a final map until the
temporary basin is removed to the satisfaction of
the city.

105.

Cont.

106.

Page '1 15 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 200

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJEGT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

Gommer*sResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has installed new
benchmarks per the direction of the City
Engineer. The required benchmarks are in
place and currently in use.

The City Council adopted Resolution No.

9665 and 9667 for the formation of CFD

No. 18, which includes the special tax
assessments for all of the items listed in
this condition. All of the required CFD's

included in this condition have been
established and approved by the City
Council.

cD (E)

cD (E)

M

M

The owner/applicant shall provide and establish

new permanent benchmarks on the (NAVD 88)

datum in various locations within the subdivision
or at any other locations in the vicinity of the off-
site Backbone lnfrastructure as directed by the
City Engineer. The type and specifications for the
permanent benchmarks shall be provided by the
City. The new benchmarks shall be placed bythe
owner/applicant within 6 months from the date of
approval of the vesting tentative subdivision map.

Prior to approval of the first small lot final map

and in accordance with Amendment No. 1 of the
Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development
Agreement (ARDA) and the ARDA and any

amendments thereto, the owner/applicant is

required to complete the following:
o Formation and approval by the City

Council of the Sewer and Water CFD,

r Formation and approval by the City

Council ofthe Aquatic Center CFD,

r Formation and approval by the City

Council of the Parks, Trails, Landscape
Corridors, Medians and Open Space

Maintenance CFD,

o Formation and approval by the City

Council of the Storm Drainage

Maintenance CFD (unless such drainage
maintenance is included in the Services

to7

108.

Page 1 16 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 201

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourHoFHIGHwAYi'ift 

?'"?-ilf'-tf$lt"Enff ft JS.lJl,fi 5'H['illRocKR'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe City Council has approved all of the
Master Plans for the Folsom Plan Area. The

required backbone infrastructure in the
Folsom Plan Area which serves the Phase

34 subdivision has been constructed in
accordance with the approved Storm Drain
Master Plan, the Water and Sewer Master
Plans and the Reclaimed Water Master
Plan. All backbone and subdivision
roadway improvements have also been
constructed in accordance with the City
Council approved Folsom Plan Area
Specific Plan and City design and
Construction Specifications. All of the
required backbone improvements to serve
the Phase 34 subdivision have been
completed and accepted by the City.

cD (E)

cD (E)

EWR,PW

M

G,I,B

a Formation and approval by the City
Council of the Street Maintenance
District/Lighting Maintenance District CFD

(unless such street maintenance is

included in the Services CFD)

Formation and approval by the City

Council of the Open Space Management
and Financing Plan.

Formation and approval by the City
Council of the Drainage Facilities
Maintenance and Financing Plan

a

The owner/applicant shall prepare complete and

updated change pages to master plans for
transportation (including roadwav, bikewav,
transit and pedestrian facilitiesl, water (including

reclaimedl, sewer, grading and drainage
(includine boundaries of the 100-vear floodplain)
to the extent applicable as a result of the Specific

Plan Amendment to the satisfaction of the Citv
prior to the approval of a final map,
improvement plans or srading plans. Timelines
for approval of specified plans, guidelines.

funding mechanisms, community facilities
disuicts and land dedications set forth in Section
2.5.3 of the ARDA and anv amendments thereto
shall applv. The master plans shall be
accompanied bv engineering studies supporting
the sizine, location and timing of the proposed

facilities. lmprovements shall be constructed in

108.
Cont.

109.

Page 1 17 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 202

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E)

EWR,PW

G,I,Bphases as the proiect develops in accordance

with these approved master plans and the
provisions of Sections 3.7, 3.9 and 3.9.1 of the
ARDA and anv amendments thereto. These

phases may include necessary off-site

improvements to support development of a

particular phase or phases subject to prior

approval of the City. These off-site improvements

may include roadways to provide secondary public

access, water transmission mains for different
pressure zones or distribution mains to provide a

looped water system, booster pumps and

reservoirs to provide adequate water pressure and

flow, sewer trunk mains and temporary and/or
permanent lift stations, temporary and/or
permanent water quality/detention basins and

drainage facilities and/ or outfalls. No changes in

infrastructure from those shown in the complete

and updated approved master plans shall be

permitted unless and until the applicable master
plan has been reviewed and approved by the City.

Final lot/parcel configurations may need to be

modified to accommodate the improvements

identified in these studies as determined by the
City. Any and all modifications to existing
lots/parcels necessary shall be the sole

responsibility of the owner/applicant.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission

on4lL5l!5

Cont.
109

Page 118 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 203

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has constructed the
necessary infrastructure to provide
potable water to the Phase 3A subdivision
The potable water infrastructure has been

reviewed, approved and accepted by the
City and is currently in operation.

The off-site potable water infrastructure
for the Phase 3A subdivision has been
reviewed, approved and accepted by the
City and is currently in operation. ln
addition, the City has verified that the off-
site potable water infrastructure is
adequate to serve the Phase 34
subdivision.

cD (E)

Utilities

cD (E)(B),

PW

M

M,B,O

Water Supply Avoilability
The owner/applicant shall submit proof of
compliance with Government Code Section

66473.7 (SB 221) by demonstrating the availability
of a reliable and sufficient water supply from a

public water system for the amount of
development that would be authorized by the
finalsubdivision map. Such a demonstration shall

consist of information showing that both existing
sources are available or needed supplies and

improvements will be in place prior to occupancy.

The written proof of compliance shall be provided

to the City and approved by the City prior to
approval of any final map.
4.7-1
3A 18-1

Submit Proof of Adequate OIf-Site Water
Conveyance Facilities and lmplement Off-Site
lnfrastrudure Seruice System or Ensure That
Adequate Financing ls Secured.

The owner/applicant shall submit proof to the City

of Folsom that an adequate off-site water
conveyance system either has been constructed or
is ensured to the City's satisfaction. The off-site
water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to
provide adequate service to the project shall be in
place for the amount of development identified in
the tentative map before approval of a final
subdivision map and issuance of building permits

for all proiect phases, or their financing shall be

110

III

Page 119 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 204

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe City obtained a letter from Regional

San which provides verification that there
is adequate capacity in the existing
Regional San conveyance and treatment
system to accommodate the entire Folsom

Plan Area at buildout. Confirmation from
Regional San was required because the
Folsom Plan Area is served by the existing
Regional San Lift Station on lron Point
Road. The City Sewer Lift Station and

Forced Main which connects to the
Regional San Lift Station has been

accepted by the City and is currently in
operation.

cD (E) (B),

PW

cD (E) (B),

PW

M,B,O

M B

ensured to the satisfaction of the City. A certificate

of occupancy shall not be issued for any building

within the Specific Plan Area until the water
conveyance infrastructure sufficient to serve such

building has been constructed and is in place to
the satisfaction of the CitY.

Demonstrate Adequate SRWfiP Wastewater
Treatment Capocity.
The owner/applicant shall demonstrate adequate

capacity at the Sacramento Regional Water

Treatment Plant for new wastewater flows
generated by the project. This shall involve
preparing a tentative map-level study and paying

connection and capacity fees as identified by

Sacra mento Regiona I Cou nty Sa nitation District'

Approval of the final map and issuance of building
permits for all project phases shall not be granted

until the City verifies adequate Sacramento

Regional Water Treatment Plant capacity is

available for the amount of development
identified in the tentative map. The written
approval from the Sacramento Regional County

Sanitation District shall be provided to the City.

3A 16-3

11r..

Cont

t72.

Page 120 ol 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 205

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL GONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFHrclrw^Yi'irft 

?,t?tt"frt=ff+!t=^F?+R;J3.lJ5,9,5,Hil'ilt^RocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has constructed the
on-site and off-site sewer infrastructure to
serve the Phase 3A subdivision. The off-
site sewer infrastructure including the
sewer trunk main, the Alder Creek
Parkway sewer lift station and forced main
have been completed and accepted by the
City and are currently in operation.

The Final Map for the Phase 3A includes an

easement for the construction and
maintenance of centralized mail delivery
boxes in the subdivision.

cD {E) (B)

PW

cD (E)

M,B

M

Submit Prool of Adequate On- and Olf-Site
Wastewater Conveyance Facilities and I mplement
On- and Ofl-Site Infrostructure Seruice Systems or
Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured.
The owner/applicant shall submit proof to the City
of Folsom that an adequate wastewater
conveyance system either has been constructed or
is ensured through payment or other sureties to
the City's satisfaction. Both on-site wastewater
conveyance infrastructure and off-site force main
sufficient to provide adequate service to the
project shall be in place for the amount of
development identified in the tentative map

before approval of the final map and issuance of
building permits for all project phases, or their
financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of
the City.

3A 15-L

All Final Maps shall show easements or other
mapped provisions for the placement of
centralized mail delivery units. The

owner/applicant shall provide a concrete base for
the placement of any centralized mail delivery
unit. Specifications and location of such base shall
be determined pursuant to the applicable
requirements of the U. S. Postal Service and the
City of Folsom Community Development
Department, with due consideration for street
light location, traffic safety, security, and
consumer convenience.

113

1,1.4.

Page 121 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 206

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoF*GHwAYs0LH?l'?"ilf"fHl!-+.=^[?+ilJ3,H5,9,''Hfi 

'il=^SocKR'AD

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe Final Map for the Phase 3A subdivision
contains street names chosen from the
approved list for the entire Russell Ranch

development which incluCes Phases L, 2

and 3.

cD (E)M
ine

€€rnmissisnr
The street names identified in the small lot
tentative map area approved, except as

amended:
Rustic Ridse Drive shall be replaced with Treasure
Ridee Drive.
Treasure Ridee Loop shall be replaced with
Highgate Terrace Loop
Scenic Vista Court shall be replaced with Hillerass
Court
Russell Ranch Road shall be reolaced with Rustic

Ridge Ceu+FRood
Auburn Court Leaf shall be replaced with Auburn
Leaf Court
Highgate Terrace Drive shall be replaced with
Climbine Vine Drive
Hillgrass Court shall be replaced with Amaro
Court

Additionallv, the Alternative Street Names
identified on the small lot tentative map shall be
as follows:
Pleasant Hill
Loma Rica

Via Rancho
Florasota
Rough Horse

115.

Page 122 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 207

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
De

WhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELLFINAL CONDITIONS OF

YesThe required Open Space easement is

included on the Final Map for the Phase 3A

subdivision. The area witrin the easement

will be maintained by the Homeowne/s
Association (HOA). Funding for the
maintenance of the Open Space easement

will be through the HOA.

cD (P)

cD (E)

M

M

The owner/applicant shall record an Open Space

Easement in favor of the Homeowner's

Association over the portion of the rear of each

lot from the top of the graded slope to the rear

property line within each lot as shown on the
Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision Map. The

easement shall be for the purpose of maintaining

the area as a landscaped slope. The easement

shall prohibit any removal or addition of soil; any

change to the terrain of any kind; the construction

of any structure(s), including retaining walls; the

construction of fencing anywhere within the
easement except on the property lines; the
dumping of lawn clippings or any other debris; the
removal of landscaping except when the plant has

no life. The property owner shall maintain living,

irrigated landscaping within the easement and

shall not permit bare exposed soil' Only open

style, tubular steel fencing shall be permitted on

the property lines. Final language of the Easement

shall be approved by the Community Development

Department prior to recordation.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission

Meeting on 4ltSlL5

Revision was made at the Planning Commission

Meeting on 4ltslLs
Revision made by Stoff suhsequent to the

Commission4/ls/1s

1L5.

Cont.

116.

Page 123 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 208

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

tr7

118

The City is considering the closure and re-

alignment of Old Placerville Road between US

Highway 50 and future Easton Valley Parkway as

part of Phase 3 of the project, consistent with the
project ElR. The removal of the existing asphalt

concrete will not be permitted without prior
approval of the City.

Prior to the issuance of building permits, the
owner/applicant shall provide a digital copy of the
recorded Final Map (in AutoCAD format) to the
Community Development Department.

G,l cD (E),

FD, PW

MISCELLANEOUS UIREMENTS
B cD (E) The Community Development Department

will require the copies of the recorded
Phase 34 final map to be submitted prior
to approval of the first building permit in
the subdivision.

The closure, subject to future City

approval, of Placerville Road between US

Hwy 50 and Alder Creek Parkway will be

considered during future development of
the Folsom Plan Area. The Phase 3A

subdivision does not include any proposal

to close this roadway segment.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
with

future
developm
ent in the

FPA.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building

rmit
Condition

willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

The Community Development Department
will require the copies of the recorded
final map to be submitted to the Folsom-

Cordova Unified School District prior to
approval of the first building permit in the
Phase 34 subdivision.

The owner/applicant be required to obtain
Design review approvalfrom the City

Planning Commission for the proposed

residential units in the subdivision,

cD (P)

FCUSD

cD (P)

B

B

Prior to issuance of building permits, the
owner/applicant shall provide the Folsom-Cordova

Unified School District with a copy of the recorded

Final Map.

Prior to issuance of building permits for any

residential units or the private recreation center,

the owner/applicant shall obtain Design Review

approval from the Planning Commission for all

buildings to be constructed within the subdivision

119

120

Page 124 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 209

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDtvrsroN PRoJEGT (PN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Yes

Yes

All required drains and sub drains will be

designed by a Civil Engineer and/or
Geotechnical Engineer and submitted to
the City. Any required drains and sub

drains will be shown on the development
plans for all future buildirgs in the Phase 1

subdivision. Compliance will be monitored
through construction inspection.

The owner/applicant has constructed and

completed the Private Recreational

Amenity, The private arnenity was

completed in 2020 and is currently open to
the residents in the Russell Ranch

subdivision.
The owner/applicant obtained approval of
both of the public water facilities (Zone 4-5

Water BPS & the Zone 5 Tank/Zone 6

cD (P)

cD (B)

cD (B)

cD (P) (E)

B

B

B,O

lf the proposed architecture is not consistent with
the Planned Development Design Guidelines, the
owner/applicant may modify the plans or apply for
a modification to the Planned Development
Design Guidelines to be approved by the Planning

Commission.

Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from Building

Foundations.

The owner/applicant(s) shall either install

subdrains (which typically consist of perforated

pipe and gravel, surrounded by nonwoven
geotextile fabric), or take such other actions as

recommended by the geotechnical or civil

engineer for the project that would serve to divert
seasonal flows caused by surface infiltration,
water seepage, and perched water during the
winter months away from building foundations.
3A 7-5

The private recreational amenity shall be

constructed and a Certificate of Occupancy on the
building obtained on Lot 14 of the Vesting Large

Lot Tentative Subdivision Map no later than
issuance of the 439th building permit in the
project.

The owner/applicant shall submit a Site Design

Review Application for all above ground utility
installations (water tanks, booster pumps stations,

120.
Cont

121-.

r22.

L23

Page 125 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 210

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

N/A

Water BPS) by the City Planning

Commission in 20L8. The public water
facilities are currently in operation and

being maintained by the City.

The Community Development Department
has reviewed and approrrcd the Phase 3A

subdivision C.C. & R.'s. The C.C. & R.'s

include the required provisions to satisfy
this condition of approval.

This condition was deleted by the Planning

Commission and the City Council. The

owner/applicant has coordinated the
grading and construction of the future
Joint Powers Authority (JPA) Connector
project with the future Russell Ranch

Phase 2 subdivision. The vesting tentative
subdivision map for the Phase 2

subdivision approved by the City Council

includes the condition to provide the
roadway right of way for the JPA

Connector project.

cD (P), PW

€D{fJ+}

€D{€xP}

M

+

+

etc.) to the Community Development Department
to ensure these facilities are adequately screened.

These above ground utility installations shall be

designed to be adequately screened and/or
blended into the hillsides through use of berming,

landscaping or through the use of walls or fences

to the satisfaction of the Community Development
Department.
The Russell Ranch Design Guidelines shall include a

provision that all trash bins in residential areas

shall be enclosed and screened from view. Truck

access to the bin shall be subject to approval by

the City.

invelved in the Cenneeter prejeet, Seetien 2,2'3 ef
the Amendment te the Amended and Restated

ewne/apptieant as

124.

#

+2+
Cont.

Page 126 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 211

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDTVTS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Phase 3 marhe scbieG

thevalue ef lanCs licati€n€r
the prepeseC Cenne

unentitleC lanC'b
lP at thetimethe lffi
€F€IYI

trreveeable effer o

in

ie'n'

ewner/applieant aeknewledges the final design;
leeatien; grade and eenfiguratien ef the €enneeter
Prejeet is net knewn, As sueh; ewner/applieant
will inelude a reeerded diselesure te be previded
te all petential buyers ef hemes near the petential

apprev€+

Page 127 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 212

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VTS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

BUILDING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS
Condition

willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Yes

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

All foundation plans will be included in the
building plans submitted by the
owner/applicant to the City for review and
approval. The City building division will
review all foundation plans to verify
compliance with this condition.

Overland release has been designed into
the Phase 1 subdivision grading plans. The
overland release design and the grading
plans have been approved by the City.
The owner/applicant will submit plans to
the City building division for review and
approval. The City building division will
review and approve all building plans to
verify compliance with this condition,

cD (B)

cD (E)

cD (P)

B

G,I,B

B

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4lt5lL5

Condition deleted in its entirety by Staff
subsequent to the 4ltilLs Planning Commission
Meeting

All foundation plans shall be reviewed and

approved by the Building Safety Division,

respectively, prior to issuance of building permits

to ensure that all geotechnical recommendations
specified in the geotechnical report are properly
incorporated and utilized in the design.
vt-2

Final lot and building configurations may be
modified to allow for overland release of storm
events greater than the capacity of the
underground system.

Final exterior building and site lighting plans shall
be submitted for review and approval by
Community Development Department for
aesthetics, level of illumination, glare and trespass
prior to the issuance of any building permits. The
exterior building and site lighting will be required
to achieve energy efficient standards by installing
high-intensity discharge (mercury vapor, high

L26.

L27

r28.

Page 128 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 213

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourHoFH,GH*AY50tft 

?r'-3triT,-"f ffl!"==^[i+lJJ3.lJ5,9,''Hil'ffi 
RocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

TRAFFIC, ACCESS, CIRCULATION, AND PARKING REQUIREMENTS

It should be noted that many of the Transportation, Traffic, and Circulation mitigation measures identified below will be satisfied through the

payment of fees. Below is a brief summary of the fee types and their purpose. The acronyms for each fee type notec below are further noted in the

lmplementation Schedule column of each applicable mitigation measure to clarify how each mitigation measure is articipated to be satisfied.

The owner/ applicant agrees to pay all fees

established bythe Folsom Cordova Unified
School District prior to building permit
issuance.

cD (P)

cD (P)

B

B

pressure sodium, or similar) lamps. ln addition,
lighting shall be equipped with a timer or photo

condenser. Lighting shall be designed to be

directed downward onto the project site and away

from adjacent properties and public rights-of-way.
Building-attached light fixtures shall be subject to
review and approval by the Community
Development Department to ensure that they
have an architecturally consistent and appropriate

design.
The owner/applicant agrees to pay to the Folsom-

Cordova Unified School District the maximum fee

authorized by law for the construction and/or
reconstruction of school facilities. The applicable

fee shall be the fee established by the School

District that is in effect at the time of the issuance

of a building permit. Specifically, the
owner/applicant agrees to pay any and all fees

and charges and comply with any and all

dedications or other requirements authorized
under Section 1752O of the Education Code;

Chapter 4.7 (commencing with Section 65970) of
the Government Code; and Sections 65995,

65995.5 and 65995.7 of the Government Code.

129.

I29.
Cont

Page 129 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 214

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP):

ln January of 2Ot4, the City of Folsom adopted the PFFP for the Folsom Plan Area which detailed all the infrastructure components to address full
build out of the Plan Area. The PFFP includes various techniques including development fees to fund the necessary infrastructure. The City is

currently in the process of preparing and adopting implementing ordinances and a nexus study required by State law to impose the associated

development fees.

lncluded in the PFFP are a number roadway projects including the Highway lnterchanges that the Russell Ranch project will have cumulative
impacts on within the Folsom Plan Area. The PFFP was designed to satisfy the "fair share" financing of all the Plan Area's backbone roadway
system. Participating in this fee program will satisfy numerous roadway mitigation measures as shown in the MMRP table.

Sacra mento Cou nty Tra nsportation Development Fee (SCTDF) contri bution :

The City is establishin g a "fair share" fee to mitigate roadway impacts outside the project boundaries and within unincorporated Sacramento

County. This fee will be included in the City Facilities portion of the Public Facilities Financing Plan program and will be collected at the time of
building permit issuance. The basis for the calculation of the fee is a report entitled, "Fair Share Cost Allocation Sacramento County & City of
Folsom" dated January 2,2O1,4.

Cal Trans/ City Memorandum of Understanding (Cal Trans MOU):

The City of Folsom and Cal Trans entered into an MOU on December 17,201.4 to establish a fee mechanism to address the "fair share" impacts to
Highway 50. The MOU identifies all the highway improvements for which there are mitigation measures and potential construction projects to
address them. The City will establish a fee in the City Facilities portion of the Public Facilities Financing Plan and it will be collected at the time of
building permit issuance.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition will be satisfied with the
payment of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure
Fee (SPIF).

PWBEast Bidwell/lron Point
Prior to issuance of a building permit, the
owner/applicant shall pay a fair share fee to the
City of Folsom towards the modification to the
westbound approach to the East Bidwell
Street/lron Point Road intersection to include
three left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and one
right-turn lane.

130

Page 130 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 215

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied

The condition will be satisfied with the
payment of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure
Fee (SPIF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment

of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The condition will be satisfied with the
payment of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure
Fee (SPIF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee

(sPrF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

B

(pay SCTDF)

B

(pay PFFP

fee)
B

(pay PFFP

fee)

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

4.8-2a

White Rock Rood / Placeruille Road

Prior to issuance of a building permit, the
owner/applicant shall pay a fair share through the
Public Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP) fee to the
City of Folsom towards the addition of a
westbound right-turn lane to the White Rock

Road/Placerville Road intersections.
4.8-2b
Scott Road (West)/White Rock Road

To ensure that the Scott Road (West)/White Rock

Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, a

traffic signal shall be installed.
3415-1c

Serpa Way/ lron Point Road

To improve LOS at the Serpa Way/ lron Point Road

intersection, the northbound approaches shall be

restriped to consist of one left-turn lane, one

shared left-through lanes, and one right-turn lane.

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements.
3A 15-4e

Empire Ronch Roadfiron Point Road Intersection

131.

732.

133.

133.
Cont.

134.

Page 131 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 216

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourHoF*c'wAYs'r,ft 

?l-Stt"frlt$ltiE^fi?itJJ3,lJ5,9,5,Hil['^FooR'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PWB

(Caltrans

MOU)

To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road / lron Point
Road intersection operates at a LOS D or better, all
of the following improvements are required:
. The eastbound approach shall be

reconfigured to consist of one left-turn
lane, two through lanes, and a right-turn
lane.

. The westbound approach shall be

reconfigured to consist of two left-turn
lanes, one through lane, and a through-
right lane.

. The northbound approach shall be
reconfigured to consist of two left-turn
lanes, three through lanes, and a right-turn
lane.

. The southbound approach shall be
reconfigured to consist of two left-turn
lanes, three through lanes, and a right-turn
lane.

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements.
34 15-4f
US 5O from Sunrise Boulevard to Edst Bidwell
Street/Scott Road
Participate in Fair Share Funding of lmprovements
to Reduce lmpacts on Eastbound U.S. 50 between
Sunrise Boulevard to East Bidwell Street/Scott
Road (Freeway Segment 4). To ensure that
Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS

135.

Page 132 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 217

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTV|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the ttighway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road

an auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This

improvement was recommended in the Traffic
Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50
Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is

included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee

Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements,
as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Sunrise Boulevard to
East Bidwell Street/Scott Road (Freeway Segment

4l'.
4.8-3
34 15-1s

Westbound U.S. 5A hetween Prairie City Road
and Folsom Boulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and

Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane shall be
constructed. This improvement was
recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis
Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This
improvement is included in the proposed 50
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by

136

136.
Cont.

Page 133 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 218

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTV|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to
Westbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and
Folsom Boulevard,
3A 15-1,u

U,S. 50 Eastbound/Proirie City Road Diverge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road off-ramp
diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom
Boulevard merge shall be constructed. This
improvement was recommended in the Traffic
Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50
Auxiliary Lane Project. This auxiliary lane
improvement is included in the proposed 50
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts
to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road diverge.
3A 15-1x

U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road Direct Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road on-ramp
direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell
Street - Scott Road diverge shall be constructed.
This auxiliary lane improvement included in the
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share

137

138.

Page 134 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 219

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFH.GH*AYs0irft?lr3'rilT,-t1tl+5rH+',JJ3,lJ5,9,''Hil'illRocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(PFFP)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts
to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road direct
merse. 3A 15-1v

U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Rood Flyover On-
Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off-Ramp Weave

To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road flyover on-
ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave, an

improvement acceptable to Caltrans shall be

implemented to eliminate the unacceptable
weaving conditions. Such an improvement may

involve a "braided ramp". The owner/applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to reduce the impacts to the U.S.

50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp
to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave.
3A 15-12

U.S. 50 Eastbound/Oak Avenue Parlcway Loop
Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Oak Avenue Parkway loop
merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street

- Scott Road diverge shall be constructed. This
auxiliary lane improvement is included in the
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share

139.

r40.

Page 135 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 220

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourH oF HrcHwAYi0i,ft?lr31t"?,-"f$itt'==rfi?+",JJ3.H5,9,5,Hfi'il=^FocK R.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa

The condition is satisfied with the payment

of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment

of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts
to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/ Oak Avenue Parkway

loop merge (Freeway Merge 9).

3A 15-1aa

U.S. 50 Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop

Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch

Road loop on ramp should start the westbound
auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street -
Scott Road off ramp. The slip on ramp from
southbound Empire Ranch Road would merge into

this extended auxiliary lane. lmprovements to this
freeway segment shall be implemented by

Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements
to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50

Westbound/Empire Ranch Road loop ramp merge.

3A 1s-1"dd

U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue Porlcutay Loop

Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Oak Avenue

Parkway loop on ramp should start the westbound
auxiliary lane that ends at the Prairie City Road off

t4I

L41..

Cont.

t42

Page 136 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 221

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANGH SUBD|V|SION PROJECT (pN {6-122}
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprwement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

ramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Oak

Avenue Parkway would merge into this extended
auxiliary lane. lmprovements to this freeway
segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The

owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share

of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts
to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway
loop ramp merge.
3A 15-1ee

U.S.50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Loop Ramp
Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road loop ramp
merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard
off ramp diverge shall be constructed. This

auxiliary lane improvement is included in the
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program, The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to reduce the impacts
to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Loop
Ramp Merge.
3A 15-1ff

U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City Rood Direct Ramp
Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road direct
ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom
Boulevard off ramp diverge shall be constructed.

1.43.

't43.

Cont.

144.

Page 137 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 222

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
red

WhenGondition / Mitigation Measure

FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

2216.11(PN
ROADROCK

PROJECT
WHITEOF

suBDrvtstoN
NORTH

RANCH
ROAD,RVILLE

RUSSELLTHE
PLACE

building
permit.

This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements, to reduce the
impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Prairie City
Road direct ramp merge.
3,A.-15-1gg

Page 138 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 223

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(pay PFFP/

lnterchange
fee)

Eastbound US 5O betuteen Folsom Boulevard and
Prairie City Road
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and
Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiliary lane
should be converted to a mixed flow lane that
extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway
off ramp. lmprovements to this freeway segment
shall be implemented by Caltrans.

Construction ofthe Capitol South East Connector,
including widening White Rock Road and Grant
Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could
divert some traffic off of U.S. 50 and partially
mitigate the project's impact.

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and
Prairie City Road.

34 15-4s

Eastbound US 5O between Prairie City Road and
OokAvenue Parlcway
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and Oak
Avenue Parkway, the northbound Prairie City Road

L45

146.

Page 139 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 224

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL 2216-11(PN
ROAD

PROJECTsuBDlvtstoNRANCHRUSSELLTHEFOROFoNs
OF

CONDITI
SOUTH

FINAL

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay PFFPl

lnterchange
fee)

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

slip on ramp should merge with the eastbound
auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak
Avenue Parkway off ramp and the southbound
Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be
braided over the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp
and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East
Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp.
lmprovements to this freeway segment shall be
implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus
study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce
the impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Prairie
City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway.
3A 15-4t
U.S. 50 Eostbound / Prairie City Road Slip Ramp
Merge.
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an
acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road
slip on ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary
lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue
Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-
4u, w and x), and the southbound Prairie City Road
flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak
Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended
full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott
Road off ramp. lmprovements to this freeway
segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The
owner icant shall its share

1.46

Cont.

t47

Page 140 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 225

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE

RANCH SUBD|VISION PROJECT (pN 16.1221
ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S

50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road slip ramp merge.
34 15-4u

U,S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On
Ramp to Oak Avenue Pa*way Olf Ramp Weave
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road

slip on ramp should start the eastbound auxiliary
lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue
Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-
4u, v and x), and the southbound Prairie City Road

flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak

Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended
full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street - Scott
Road off ramp. lmprovements to this freeway
segment shall be implemented by Caltrans. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S.

50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp

to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp Weave.
3A 15-4v

147
Cont.

r48

Page 141 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 226

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

U.S. 50 Eastbound / OakAvenue Parkway Loop
Ramp Merge
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an
acceptable LOS, the southbound Oak Avenue
Parkway loop on ramp should merge with the
eastbound auxiliary lane that starts at the
southbound Prairie City Road braided flyover on
ramp and ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott
Road off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u,
v and w). lmprovements to this freeway segment
shall be implemented by Caltrans. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to U.S. 50
Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp
Merge.
3A 15-4w
U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road Loop
Ramp Merge
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an
acceptable LOS, the northbound Empire Ranch

Road loop on ramp should start the westbound
auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street -
Scott Road off ramp. The slip on ramp from
southbound Empire Ranch Road slip ramp would
merge into this extended auxiliary lane.
lmprovements to this freeway segment shall be
implemented by Caltrans. The owner/applicant

L49.

150

Page 142 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 227

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus
study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce
the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire
Ranch Road loop ramp merge.
3A 15-4x

U.S. 50 Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp
Merge.
To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road

loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary
lane that continues beyond the Folsom Boulevard
off ramp. The slip on ramp from southbound
Prairie City Road slip ramp would merge into this
extended auxiliary lane. lmprovements to this
freeway segment shall be implemented by
Caltrans. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements,
as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S.

50 Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp

Merge.
34 15-4y

1s0.
Cont.

1s1

Page 143 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 228

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VTS|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Transit Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee

(sPrF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee

(sPrF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay PFFP

fee and
Transit fee)

B

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

Provide O ptions for Altemative Transportation
Modes.
The owner/applicant for any particular
discretionary development application shall
participate in capital improvements and operating
funds for transit service to increase the percent of
travel by transit. The project's fair-share
participation and the associated timing of the
improvements and service shall be identified in
the project conditions of approval and/or the
project's development agreement. lmprovements
and service shall be coordinated, as necessary,
with Folsom Stage Lines and Sacramento RT.

34 15-2a

Scott Roa d / E a sto n Va I I ey P a rkway i nte rs e cti o n.
The owner/applicant shall pay a fair share fee to
the City of Folsom towards the addition of a
channelized westbound right-turn lane to the
Scott Road/Easton Valley Parkway intersection.
4.8-6

Folsom Boulevard/Blue Rovine Road I ntersection
To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine
Road

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the
eastbound approach shall
be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes,

one through lane, and

rs2

153.

Is4.

Page 144 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 229

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL 2216-11(PN
ROAD

ECTPROJBDIVtStONSURANCHRUSSELLTHEFOROF
OF

DITIONSNco
SOUTH

NALFI

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee
(sPrF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

B

(pay PFFP

fee)

B

(pay SCTDF)

one right-turn lane. The owner/applicant shall pay
its proportionate share of
funding of improvements, as may be determined
by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the
impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine
Road intersection.
3A 15-1a

Sibley Street/ Blue Ravine Road Intercection
To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the
northbound approach
shallbe reconfigured to consist of two left-turn
lanes, two through lanes,

and one right-turn lane. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements, as may be
determined by a nexus study or
other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for
by owner/applicant, to
reduce the impacts to the Sibley Street/Blue
Ravine Road intersection.
3A L5-1b

Hazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard I ntersection
To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/Folsom
Boulevard intersection operates at an acceptable
LOS, this intersection shall be grade separated
including 'jug handle" ramps. No at grade
improvement is feasible. Grade separating and

L54.
Cont.

155

156.

Page 145 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 230

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDIflONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|SION PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay SCTDF)

B

(pay SCTDF)

extended (south) Hazel Avenue with
improvements to the U.S. SO/HazelAvenue
interchange is a

mitigation measure for the approved Easton-
Glenbrough Specific Plan

development project. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of
funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for im provements,
based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to the Hazel Avenue/Folsom
Boulevard.

34 15-1h

Grant Line Roadfitlhite Rock Road lntersection
and to White
Rock Road widening between the Rancho
Cordova City limit to Prairie
City Road
lmprovements shall be made to ensure that the
Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection
operates at an acceptable LOS. The currently
County proposed White
Rock Road widening project will widen and realign
White Rock Road

from the Rancho Cordova City limit to the El

Dorado County line (this
analysis assumes that the Proposed Project and
build alternatives will
widen White Rock Road to five lanes from Prairie
City road to the El

156.

Cont.

157

Page 146 ot 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 231

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN r6-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WH]TE ROCK

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP
ROAD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay SCTDF)

B

(pay SCTDF)

Dorado County Line). This widening includes
improvements to the Grant
Line Road intersection and realigning White Rock
Road to be the through
movement. The improvements include two
eastbound through lanes, one
eastbound right turn lane, two northbound left
turn lanes, two northbound
right turn lanes, two westbound left turn lanes
and two westbound
through lanes. This improvement also includes the
signalization of the
White Rock Road and Grant Line Road
intersection. With
implementation of this improvement, the
intersection would operate at an
acceptable Los A. The owner/applicant shall pay
its proportionate share of
funding of improvements to the agency
responsi ble for improvements,
based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to
the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road
intersection.
3A.15-1i

Hazel Avenue between Madison Avenue and
Curragh Downs Drive
To ensure that Hazel Avenue operates at an
acceptable LOS between Curragh Downs Drive and
Gold Country

157.
Cont.

1s8.

Page 147 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 232

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE

RANCH SUBDTVTS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-1221
ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

ofa
building
permit.

Yes

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

These roadway improvements have been
constructed and the intersection is

currently in operation with the required
mitigation measures.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(pay SCTDF)

B

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

Boulevard, Hazel Avenue shall be widened to six
lanes. This improvement
is part ofthe County adopted Hazel Avenue
widening project.
34.1s-1j

White Rock Road/Windfield Woy Intersection
To ensure that the White Rock Road/Windfield
Way intersection operates at an acceptable LOS,

the intersection shall be signalized and separate
northbound left and right turn lanes shall be
striped. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements
to the agency responsible for improvements,
based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to the White Rock Road/Windfield Way
intersection.
3A.15-11

Eqstbound U.S. 50 as on alternative to
improvements dt the Folsom
Boulevard/U.5. 50 Eastbound Ramps Intersection
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements to the
agency responsible for improvements, based on a

program established

1s8.
Cont.

159

150

Page 148 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 233

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|SION PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU/)
SCTDF

by that agency to reduce the impacts to the
Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps

intersection (Caltrans lntersection 4).
To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/U.S. 50
eastbound ramps intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, auxiliary lanes should be

added to eastbound U.S. 50 from Hazel Avenue to
east of Folsom Boulevard. This was recommended
in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the
U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project.
3A.15-1o

Grant Line Road/ State Route 76 lntersection
To ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the
northbound and
southbound approaches shall be reconfigured to
consist of one left-turn lane and one shared
through/right-turn lane. Protected left-turn signal
phasing shall be provided on the northbound and
southbound approaches.
lmprovements to the Grant Line Road/State Route
16 intersection are
contained within the County Development Fee

Program, and are
scheduled for Measure A funding. lmprovements
to this intersection shall be implemented by
Caltrans, Sacramento County, and the City of
Rancho Cordova.

160.

Cont.

161.

Page 149 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 234

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD {E), PW

cD {E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

Mou/)
SCTDF

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to the Grant
Line Road/State Route 15 intersection.
3A.1-5-1p

Eostbound U.S. 5O between Zinfandel Drive and
Sunrise Boulevard
To ensure that Eastbound U.S.50 operates at an
acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and
Sunrise Boulevard, a bus/carpool
(HOV) lane shall be constructed. This
improvement is currently
planned as part ofthe Sacramento 50 Bus-Carpool
Lane and Community Enhancements Project. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a
program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Zinfandel
Drive and Sunrise Boulevard
3A.15-1q

Eastbound U.S. 5O befipeen Hazel Avenue and
Folsom Boulevard
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an
acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and Folsom
Boulevard, an

I6'J..

Cont.

762.

163.

Page 150 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 235

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION PROJECT (PN 16-1221
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY fl}, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This
improvement was recommended
in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the
U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane

Project. This improvement is included in the
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Hazel

Avenue and Folsom Boulevard
3A.15-1r

Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and
Sunrise Boulevard
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Hazel Avenue and
Sunrise Boulevard, an

auxiliary lane shall be constructed. This
improvement was recommended
in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the
U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane

Project, and included in the proposed Rancho

Cordova Parkway interchange project.
lmprovements to this freeway segment shall be
implemented by Caltrans.
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share offunding of

163.
Cont.

164.

Page 151 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 236

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATTVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL 2216.{1(PN
ROADROCK

PROJEGT
WHITEOF

suBDrvtsroN
NORTH

RANCH
ROADRVILLE

RUSSELLETH
PLACEOF

FOR
EAST50,Y

OF
HIGHWAOF

CONDITIONS
SOUTH

FINAL

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD {E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Westbound
U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise
Boulevard
3A.15-1v

U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramp
Merge
To ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an
acceptable LOS at the Folsom Boulevard merge, an
auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge to
the Prairie City Road diverge shall be constructed.
This improvement was recommended in the
Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50
Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is

included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee
Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements
to
the agency responsible for improvements, based
on a program established by that agency to reduce
the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound/Folsom
Boulevard Ramp Merge
3A.15-1w
U.S. 50 Ea stbou n d/ Fol som Bou leva rd
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an
acceptable LOS at the Folsom Boulevard Diverge,
an auxiliary lane from the Prairie City Road loop
ramp merge shall be constructed. lmprovements

164
Cont.

15s.

L66

Page 152 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 237

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Highway 50 lmprovement Fee.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Transit Fee.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

to this freeway segment shall be implemented by
Caltrans. This auxiliary lane improvement is

included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee

Program. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements,
as may be determined by a nexus study or other
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by
owner/applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S.

50 Eastbound / Folsom Boulevard diverge
3A.1s-1hh
U.S. 50 Westbound/Hazel Avenue Direct Ramp
Merge
To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS at the Hazel Avenue direct ramp
merge, an auxiliary lane to the Sunrise Boulevard
off ramp diverge shall be constructed. This
auxiliary lane improvement is included in the
proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to the U.S. 50
Westbound/Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge.
3A.15-1ii

Participate in the Citt's Transportdtion System
Manogement Fee Program
The owner/appl icant(s)for any particular
discretionary development application shall pay an
appropriate amount into the City's existing

166.

Cont.

L67

158.

Page 153 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 238

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTV|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFHrGHwAYs'Lft 

?li-3'Jrt'?=f,1+E^Fi+",tJ3,H5,9,','Hil'IlRocKR'AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

ofa
building
permit.

Yes

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa

The owner/applicant has satisfied this
condition by participating in the payment
of a Hwy 50 Corridor TMA payment
through the established Community
Facilities District (CFD) 18. City Council has
approved this update to the existing CFD

18 Assessment.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF) and the Specific
Plan lnfrastructure Fee (SPIF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee
(sPrF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

B

B

(Caltrans

MOU, PFFP

fee, SCTDF)

B

Pay PFFP

fee

Transportation System Management Fee Program
to reduce the number of single-occupant
automobile travel on area roadways and
intersections.
3A.15-2b

Participate with the 50 Corridor Transportation
M a n a g e m e nt Associ ati o n
The owner/applicant for any particular
discretionary development application shall join
and participate with the 50 Corridor
Transportation Management Association to
reduce the number of single occupant automobile
travel on area roadways and intersections,
3A.15-2c

Pay Full Cost oI ldentified lmprovements that Are
Not Funded by the City's Fee Program.
ln accordance with Measure W, the
owner/a pplica nt for a ny particular discretionary
development a p plication sha I I provide fair-sha re
contributions to the City's transportation impact
fee program to fully fund improvements only
required because of the Specific Plan.

3A.15-3

Sibley Street/Blue Rsvine Road Intersection
To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road
intersection operates at a LOS D with less than the
Cumulative No Project delay, the northbound
approach shall be reconfigured to consist of two
left-turn lane, two through lanes, and one
ded icated right-tu rn la ne. The owner/a pplica nt

158.

Cont.

159.

170.

171

Page 154 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 239

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL coNDlfloNs oF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTV|SION PROJECT (pN 16.122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PI.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee
(sPrF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Specific Plan lnfrastructure Fee

(sPrF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

Pay PFFP

fee

B

Pay PFFP

fee

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

shall pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus
study or other appropriate and reliable
mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce
the impacts to the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road

intersection
3A.15-4a

East Bidwell Street/College Street
To ensure that the East Bidwell Street/College
Street intersection operates at acceptable LOS C

or better, the westbound approach shall be
reconfigured to consist of one left-turn lane, one
left / through
lane, and two dedicated right-turn lanes. The
owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements, as may be

determined by a nexus study or other appropriate
and reliable
mechanism paid for by owner/applicant, to reduce
the impacts to the East

Bidwell Street/Nesmith Court intersection
3A.15-4c

Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley Porkway
To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton
Valley
Parkway intersection operates at an acceptable
LOS the southbound
approach shall be reconfigured to consist of two
left-turn lanes, two

171.
Cont.

172.

173.

Page 155 ol 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 240

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDIilONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VTSTON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFHrGHwAY€'Lft 

?h3Tnlf'",-=Sjlt"'nF??R;J3.lJ5,fi !'Hil'I=^RocKRoAD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

through lanes, and two right-turn lanes. The
owner/applicant shall fund and
construct these improvements
3A.15-4e

Gront Line Rood/White Rock Rood Intersection
To ensure that the Grant Line Road/White Rock

Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS E

or better this intersection should be replaced by
some type of grade separated intersection or
interchange. lmprovements to this intersection
are
identified in the Sacramento County's Proposed

General Plan. lmplementation of these
improvements would assist in reducing traffic
impacts on this intersection by providing
acceptable operation. lntersection improvements
shall be implemented by Sacramento County.
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road

lntersection
3A.15-4j

6rant Line Rood between White Rock Rood and
Kiefer Boulevard
To improve operation on Grant Line Road between
White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard, this
roadway segment shall be widened to six lanes.

This improvement is proposed in the Sacramento

173.
Cont.

L74.

775

Page 156 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 241

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VTS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoF*cHwAY50i,S?li-31'"Tr..'St'==^F?+iJJ3.lJS,9,!,Hil[iSocKR.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

County and the City of Rancho Cordova General
Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP.

lmprovements to this roadway segment shall be
implemented by Sacramento County and the
City of Rancho Cordova. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by
that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line

Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer
Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway
Segments 5-7). The identified improvement would
more than offset the impacts specifically related
to the Folsom South of U.S. 50 project on this
roadway segment.
3A.1s-4j
6rant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and
lackson Highway
To improve operation on Grant Line Road between
Kiefer Boulevard Jackson Highway, this roadway
segment could be widened to six lanes. This
improvement is proposed in the Sacramento
County and the City of Rancho Cordova
General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP.
lmprovements to this roadway segment shall be
implemented by Sacramento County and the
City of Rancho Cordova. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by

175.
Cont.

176

Page 157 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 242

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PTACERVILLE

RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-1221
ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line

Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson
Highway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment
8). The identified improvement would more than
offset the impacts specifically related to the
Folsom South of U,S. 50 project on this roadway
segment.
3A.15-4k

Hozel Avenue between Currogh Downs Drive snd
U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps
To improve operation on Hazel Avenue between
Curragh Downs Drive and the U.S. 50 westbound
ramps, this roadway segment could be widened to
eight lanes. This improvement is inconsistent with
Sacramento County's general plan because the
county's policy requires a maximum roadway cross
section of six lanes. Analysis shown later indicates
that improvements at the impacted intersection in
this segment can be mitigated (see Mitigation
Measure 3A.15-4q). lmprovements to impacted
intersections on this segment will improve
operations on this roadway segment and,
therefore; mitigate this segment impact. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs
Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps.
3A.1s-41

t76.
Cont.

177

Page 158 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 243

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

White Rock Rood between Grant Line Road and
Prairie City Road
To improve operation on White Rock Road

between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road,

this roadway segment shall be widened to six

lanes. This improvement is included in the 2035
MTP but is not included in the Sacramento County
General Plan. lmprovements to this roadway
segment shall be implemented by Sacramento
County. The identified improvement would more
than offset the impacts specifically related to the
Folsom South of U.S. 50 project on this roadway
segment. However, because of other development
in the region that would substantially increase
traffic levels, this roadway segment would
continue to operate at an unacceptable LOS F

even with the capacity improvements identified to
mitigate Folsom South of U.S. 50 impacts. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to White Rock Road between Grant Line

Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento

County Roadway Segment 22).
3A.15-4m

White Rock Road betln een Empire Ranch Road
and Carson Crossing Road
To improve operation on White Rock Road

between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing

\78.

t79.

Page 159 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 244

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
PT.ACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

issuance
ofa

building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

B

Road, this roadway segment shall be widened to
six lanes. lmprovements to this roadway segment
shall be implemented by Sacramento County. The
owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate share
of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to White Rock Road between Empire
Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road.

3A.L5-4n

White Rock Road/Carcon Crossing Road
Intercection
To ensure that the White Rock Road/Carson
Crossing Road intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the eastbound right turn lane
shall be converted into a separate free right turn
lane, or double right. lmprovements to this
intersection shall be implemented by El Dorado
County. The owner/applicant shall pay its
proportionate share of funding of improvements
to the agency responsible for improvements,
based on a program established by that agency to
reduce the impacts to the White
Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road lntersection.
34.15-4o

r79.
Cont.

180.

Page 160 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 245

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVTSTON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourHoF*GH*AY50irH?l'-frt"t-1=3+t+EF?+",JJ3,1J5,fi 

5,Hil'il=^SocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

Pay SCTDF

fee

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

Hazel Avenue/U.S. 5O Westbound Ramps
Intersection
To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50
westbound ramps intersection operates at an

acceptable LOS, the westbound approach shall be

reconfigured to consist of one dedicated left turn
lane, one shared left- through lane and three
dedicated right-turn lanes. lmprovements to this
intersection shall be implemented by Caltrans and
Sacramento County. The owner/applicant shall
pay its proportionate share of funding of
improvements to the agency responsible for
improvements, based on a program established by
that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel

Avenue/U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps lntersection
(Caltrans lntersection 1).

3A.1-5-4p

Eastbound US 5O betvtteen Zinlandel Drive and
Sunrise Boulevard
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an

acceptable LOS between Zinfandel Drive and
Sunrise Boulevard, an additional eastbound lane
could be constructed. This improvement is not
consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans
State Route 50 Corridor System Management
Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented
by Caltrans by 2030.
3A.15-4q

181

!82.

Page 161 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 246

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The condition is satisfied with the payment
of the Sacramento County Transportation
Development Fee (SCTDF).

The Community Development Department
will review and approve all future building
permits to verify compliance with this
condition of approval. Future sound walls
will be required along those lots closest to
the US Hwy 50 alignment in the Phase 3A
subdivision.

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

cD (E), PW

B

(Caltrans

MOU)

B

B

Eostbound US 5O between Rancho Cordova
Parkway and Hozel Avenue
To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an
acceptable Los between Rancho cordova Parkway
and Hazel Avenue, an additional eastbound lane
could be constructed. This improvement is not
consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans
State Route 50 Corridor System Management
Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented
by Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the Capitol
South East Connector, including widening
White Rock Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes
with limited access, could divert some traffic off of
U.S. 50 and partially mitigate the project's impact.
The owner/applicant shall pay its proportionate
share of funding of improvements to the agency
responsible for improvements, based on a

program established by that agency to reduce the
impacts to Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho

Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue.
34.15-4r
lnte rior Noise Analysis
ln conjunction with submittalof the euilding
Permit for the residential uses with direct
exposure to US 50 traffic noise, the
owner/applicant shall provide detailed analysis of
interior noise levels conducted by a qualified
acoustical consultant recognized by the City of
Folsom. The analysis shall include detailed noise
control measures that are required to achieve

183

L84.

Page 162 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 247

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



F|NAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANGH SUBDTVTS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
sourHoFHTGHwAY50LS?l*3t$lf'".tS'll""nfi??t'JJ3,1J5,9'!,Hil[lRocKR.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Deoartment

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

The Community Development Department
will review and approve allfuture building
permits to verify compliance with this
condition of approval.

cD (E), PWB

compliance with the City of Folsom. The analysis
shall include detailed noise control measures that
are required to achieve compliance with the City

of Folsom 45 dB Ldn interior noise level standard.
The noise control measures may include, but are
not limited to, installing windows with an STC

rating of 35 to 38 for second floor facades and the
use of resilient channels for walls parallel to US 50.

The construction drawing for the residential uses

with direct exposure to US 50 traffic noise shall

denote any recommended noise control measures

resulting from the analysis, subject to review and

approval by the City Community Development
Director.
4.6-3b
M e ch a n i ca I V e nti I ati o n
ln conjunction with submittal of Building Permits,

the owner/applicant shall show on the plans that
mechanicalventilation shall be installed in all

residential uses to allow residents to keep doors

and windows closed, as desired for acoustical
isolation. The building plans shall be subject to
review and approval by the City Community
Development Department.
4.6-3c

I84.
Cont.

185.

Page 163 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 248

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIV|S|ON PROJECT (pN 16.122)
sourH oF *cHwAYi0l$?t"?"'nlf'",-tff'ltt"=nf,?tftJ3,1J5,9,[,Hil'liFocK R.AD

Gondition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

ARCHITECTURE/SITE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS
Condition

willbe
satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to
issuance

ofa
building
permit.

Yes

The Community Development Department
will review and approve all future building
permits to verify compliance with this
condition of approval.

The Community Development Department
will review and approve all future building
permits to verify compliance with this
condition of approval.

The Community Development Department
has reviewed and approved the Phase 3A
subdivision C.C. & R.'s and verified that the
disclosure for the Mather Over Flight Noise
is included and verified that all provisions
of the Amended and Restated Tier 1

Development Agreement have been
satisfied.

cD (P)(B)

cD (P) (E)

cD (E)

B

l,B,o

G, l,M,B

All mechanical equipment shall be ground-
mounted and concealed from view of public and
private streets, neighboring properties and nearby
higher buildings. For lots abutting the open space

areas, mechanical equipment shall be located out
ofview or screened from open space areas.

Owner/applicant shall submit a landscape plan for
all areas (by phase or subdivision) of the project
where Owner/applicant proposes to install
landscaping on residential lots. The landscape
plan shall take into account the then existing state
or local rules and regulations related to landscape
water usage and water wise landscape
principles. The landscape plans shall be

submitted and approved by the Community
Development Director prior to the issuance of a

building permit in the phase or subdivision.

The owner/applicant shall comply with all
provisions of the Tier 1 Amended and Restated
Tier 1 Development Agreement and any approved
amendments by and between the City and The
New Home Company Russell Ranch LLC relative to
this project. The owner aoolicant shall disclose to
homebuvers that the proiect site is located
within close proximitv to the Mather Airport

186.

187

L88

Page 164 ol 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 249

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL GONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISTON PROJECT (PN 16-122)
sourHoFHrctrwAYi'vft 

?l"?1i'Tff i,Jl""'.F?l",tJ3.lJ5'9,5'Hil'il15ocKR.AD

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe owner/applicant has dedicated an

lrrevocable Offer of Dedication (lOD)to
the City for the Russell Ranch portion of
the future Park Site in the Phase 1 portion
of the subdivision. ln addition the owner
applicant had dedicated this portion of the
park site in fee title to the City and the
owner/applicant has agreement to
maintain the park site until such time the
park site is graded. These requirements
are included in the fully executed Park Site
Maintenance Agreement between the
owner/applicant and the City executed in
2020.

cD (E)

CD, PR

G, l,M,B

l,B

flight path and that overflight noise mav be
present at various times.

Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4lt5lt5
The following measures shall be implemented to
the satisfaction of the Parks and Recreation

Department:
r Dedication of the park site in fee title shown

as Lot 10 on the Vesting Large LotTentative
Subdivision Map to the City no later than
issuance of the 250th building permit.

r Rough grading of the park parcel consistent
with the conceptual site diagram
(Attachment 8 - Conceptual School & Park

Site Diagram as prepared by MacKay &
Somps dated February 27,2015) prior to
dedication, or as such other earlier or later
time as aooroved bv the Parks and

Recreation Director.
Owner/applicant shall provide to the City

an "As-Built" topographic survey in an

electronic file compatible with AutoCAD

upon completion of the rough grading.

All subdivision utilities (i.e. Water, Sewer,

Storm Drain, Public Utilities, etc.) shall be

brought into the park site by

owner/applicant at a location coordinated
with Parks and Recreation staff and

a

a

188.
Cont.

189

Page 165 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 250

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|VIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD, PRl,Bapproved by the Parks and Recreation

Director.
The proposed park consists of 70.3 ates
in the Folsom PIan Area Soecific Plan, and

a

is bisected by two development properties
with different ownerships. The
owner/applicant provided staff with
written {€mail} documentation that it has

confirmed with owners of the adjacent
property (Gragg Ranch) that future
dedication by that land owner will provide
5.7 acres of the proposed park site, the
owner/applicant providina the remainina
5.2ocres@

ef+ar*land as identified in the FPASPz !g
omendedffi

@
@

iffifer100%efthe
10,3 aere parkland dedieatien.

Revision was made at the Planning
Commission Meeting on 4lL5lt5

Revisions made by stafl Subsequent to the
4/75/75 Planning Commission Meeting

189.
Cont.

Page 166 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 251

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVTS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROGK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

YesThe Reclaimed Water Master Plan has

been revised to include the installation of
the backbone reclaimed water
infrastructure east of Placerville Road

which also includes the Russell Ranch

Phase 3A subdivision. The owner/applicant
has installed all of the required backbone
pipeline network for reclaimed water
transmission in Alder Creek Parkway,
Grand Prairie Road and within the entire
Russell Ranch subdivision. The reclaimed
water system (purple pipe) will be
temporarily served with City potable water
until such time there is a source of
reclaimed water secured and conveyed to
the Folsom Plan Area. ln the future after
the source is secured, the reclaimed water
will replace the potable water in the
pipelines that are already purple.

cD (E) (P)

EWR, PK

lrBipe
irrieatien svstem for
the preieet inelsd

readwavs' fsture par

maintained bY the ew

iPe
irrieatien systems
mei

irigatien svstem

with the f0f4 FPA Re

The ewner/applic i€e
irrieatien system
within the ereiect

The Woter Svstem Master PIan (Master Plonl
approved bv the Citv Council on Februarv 24, 2075
does not extend purole-ipe reclaimed/recvcled
irriaation svstems into anv portion of the Russell
Ranch Proiect. The Citv mav amend this Master
Plan to reauire the extension and installation of o
pu+ple+ipe recl a i med/recvcled irzqotion systent
into all portions of the FPASP, includina Zones4,5.
and 6, which serues the Russell Ranch Proiect. If
the Master Plan is uodated, the Citv mav. in its

190

Page 167 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 252

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-122)
PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Condition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (Pl

EWR, PK

lrBdiscretion, propose amendments to the PFFP

and - other financina mechanisms to fund the
pur+le+ipe recl a i m ed/recvcl ed i rrieatio n svste m
ond other reauired infrastrudure within the
Backbone infrastructure, with the intent of
achievina oaritv for pavment for M
reclaimed/recvcled irriootion in Backbone
lnfrastrudure east of Placeruille Road in liqht of
owner' ^nlican{s obliaation to fund pu+ple+iipe

reclalmedlrecvcled irriaation west of Placeruille
Rood throuah the PFFP. If the Master PIan
amendment occurs. the ownerlaoolicant shall
thereafter be required to install a M
reclaimedlrecvcled irriaation svstem for all
proposed public or privatelv maintoined open
soace landscopina for the proiect includina, but
not limited to, Iondscape corridors olona
roadwavs. median islands within roadwavs, future
public or private park sites, school sites, and public
or privatelv maintained open spoce parcels. lf a
final decision on or amendment to the Master Plan
has not been mode reoardino o pu+ple-pipe
reclaimed/recvcled system ot the time
ownertapplicont is readv to install irriaation pipes

to those areos thot could he covered bv this
section- owner' aoplicant will install M
recla i med/recvcled i rrigation svste m for irraoation
(but not the balonce of the M
reclaimed/recvcled irrisation svstem- bockbone.
booster pumos etcJ so that svstem could be

190.
Cont.

Page 168 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 253

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE RUSSELL
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE

RANCH SUBDTVIS|ON PROJECT (pN 16-1221
ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

cD (E) (P)

EWR, PK

l,Bconverted at d ldter time. Anv patgle+lipre
reclaimedlrecvcled irriaation svstems that mav be
installed sholl be desianed ond<onstructed bv the
owner- ^^licant to accommodate the future
conversion of these irriaation svstems from
potahle water to non-potahle water at such time
the non-potable water svstem is constructed and
installed in accordance with the 2074 FPA Recvcled
Water Analvsis 2.0. Owner-opplicant mav
propose alternatives to the instollation of the
pr#ple+ipe recl a i m ed/recvcl ed irriqotion svstern
within the proiect which shall achieve equal to or
qreoter potohle wdtet sovinos than the potable
water savinas that would be achieved bv the
installotion of o arrple#reclaimed/recvcled
irriaation svstem as specified herein, and the
approvol of such alternotive water conseruation
medsures shall be dt the discretion of the Citv.
tdkina into account the cost of alterndtives
available for achievina eoual or better water
conseruation results.
Revision was made at the Planning Commission
Meeting on 4ltslts
Revision made by staff after the 4/15/15
Pl a n ning Co mmi ssio n Meeti ng
Revision was made at the Sltzlt5 City Council
Meeting

190.
Cont.

Page 169 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 254

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBD|V|SION PROJECT (pN 16-122)
PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsible
Department

When
Required

Gondition / Mitigation Measure

Condition
willbe

satisfied
prior to

approval
of the first
small lot
finalmap

in the
Russell

Ranch

Phase 2

subdivisio
n

This condition of approval is not required
for the Phase 34 subdivision. The
condition is required to be satisfied prior
to approval of the first small lot final map
in the Russell Ranch Phase 2 subdivision
approved by the City Council on March 13,
2018. (PN17-288)

cD (E) {P)
PW

OGThe owner/applicant sholl construct shoulder
improvements alona the proiec(s entire frontaae
of westbound White Rock Road to the
satisfaction of the Citv prior to approval of the
proiec{s Phase 4 finol map or upon the
construdion of the future Empire Ranch Road
connedion to White Rock Road, whichever occurs
first. ln lieu of construdino the aforementioned
inte ri m should e r i m provements, the
owner nolicont mav enter into a Subdivision
lmprovement Aareement with the Citv and post
adequate securiff to the Citv's satisfaction to
ensure construction of said improvements; the
securiil shall be for o minimum period of 70
vears.

lf constuction of the Capital Southeast Connector
Proied between Scott Road and the EI Dorado
Countv line has commenced durina the term of
the Subdivision Improvement Aareement, then
the shoulder improvement condition will be
deemed satisfied ond the securitv shall be
released to the owner/applicont.

Added by Staff subsequentto the 4-75-75
Pl a n n i ng Commi ssio n meeti ng

191

Page 170 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 255

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



FTNAL CONDTTTONS OF APPROVAL FORTHE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDTVISION PROJECT (PN 16-122)
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PIACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK ROAD

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
Department

When
Reouired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

Yes

Yes

The Community Development Department
has reviewed and approved the Phase 3A
subdivision C.C. & R.'s and verified that the
disclosures have been included.

The owner/applicant has recorded the
required Boundary Line Adjustment (BLA)

The BLA recorded in Book 2OL7O41O at
Page O77O in the Official Records of
Sacramento County.

cD (E) (P)

CD

M

M

The owner/applicant shall require that the CC&R

for the homeowners' association (HOAI contain a
provision requiring the HOA to enforce the
maintenance standards for the sloped open
space easement areas. owner/applicant shall
provide disclosure to potential purchasers of the
maintenance and enforcement requirements for
the sloped open space easement areas. The

languase of such disclosure shall be provided to
the Citv for approval.

Addition was made at the Slt2ltS City Council

Meeting

Boundary Line Adjustment
Within 60 days of the approval by the City Council

of the Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision

Map, the owner/applicant shall file a Boundary
Line Adjustment (BLA) to change the northern
property line between the Russell Ranch

subdivision and the Broadstone Estates property
currently owned by Elliott Homes. The BLA shall

reflect the design as shown on the vesting small

lot tentative subdivision map. The BLA shall be

approved by the City and recorded with the
Sacramento County Recorder prior to submittal of
the project's Large Lot Final map. Upon

determination by the Community Development
Director that the owner/applicant has undertaken
substantial work to pursue the BLA in good faith,

t92.

193

Page 171 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 256

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
De

WhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROC
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL 2216-11(PN
ROADK

ECTPROJtvtstoNDBSUHRANCRUSSELLTHEFOROFs
OF

ITIONDcoN
SOUTH

FINAL

Yes

Yes

The owner/applicant has recorded the
required lrrevocable Offer of Dedication
(lOD). The IOD recorded in Book 2O!6t2I5
at Page 0626 in the Official Records of
Sacramento County.

The City has completed the annexation
process with LAFCO to add the future
corporation site to the City of Folsom
Limits. The grant deed for the transfer of
the Corporation Yard to the City has
recorded in the Official Records of
Sacramento County and LAFCO has
recorded the Certificate of Completion in
Book 20181207 at Page 0779 in the Official
Records of Sacramento County completing
the annexation process.

CD

CD

CD

M

M

M

the Community Development Director may grant a

reasonable extension to the 60-day deadline.
lrrevocable Offer of Dedication
Within 50 days of the approval by the City Council
of the Vesting Small Lot Tentative Subdivision
Map, the owner/applicant shall provide an
lrrevocable Offer of Dedication (lOD)for Hinsdale
Drive, Dewy Oaks Drive, Dehone Drive, Purple
Sage Drive and Easton Valley Parkway between
Placerville Road and Purple Sage Drive which will
provide public access and public utility access for
the future development of the adjoining
Broadstone Estates project. Upon determination
by the Community Development Director that the
owner/a pplicant has underta ken su bstantial work
to pursue the IOD in good faith, the Community
Development Director may grant a reasonable
extension to the 50-day deadline.
Corporation Yard
The location tentatively identified for acquisition
by the City for the City's new Corporation Yard in
Section 2.2.3.4 of the First Amended and Restated
Tier I Development Agreement (ARDA) between
the City and the project developer may not be
feasible for use as a Corporation Yard due to
challenges in obtaining County entitlements and
utility services. Subject to the application of this
condition to other Participating Landowners (as

defined in the ARDA) as provided herein, the

193.

Cont.

r94.

195.

Page 172 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 257

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL 2216.11(PN
ROAD

PROJECTsuBDrvrstoNRANCHRUSSELLTHEFOROF
OF

CONDITIONS
SOUTH

FINAL

CDMfollowing condition is added with respect to
resolution of the location of the corporation yard:

Prior to approval of First Final Small Lot Map in the
FPA (or first building permit if development may
occur without any subdivision), a site consistent
with the requirements of Section 2.2.3.4 of the
ARDA, as may be amended or as otherwise agreed
to between the City and the Participating
Landowners, shall be identified as acceptable to
the City as suitable and feasible for use as the new
Corporation Yard, with access to sewer, water and
all required utility services. The City's
determination of feasibility may include the
identification of an alternative site consistent with
the forgoing, as a back-up for the primary site, as
well as an evaluation of the time, cost and
likelihood of obtaining any necessary entitlements
or other governmental approvals for use of the
land as a corporation yard, with the final
determination of feasibility subject to the sole and
reasonable discretion of the City Council.

The City intends to impose this condition equitably
throughout the Plan Area as and to each and every
Participating Landowner who seeks any future
specific plan amendment, tentative subdivision
map or ARDA amendment in connection with its
proposed development. lf the City fails to impose
such a condition, when required, with at least

19s.
Cont.

Page 173 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 258

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsible
red

WhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

FINAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR
SOUTH OF HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF

THE RUSSELL RANCH SUBDIVISION
PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WH

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

PROJECT (PN 16.122)
ITE ROCK ROAD

CDMsu bstantia lly sim ila r terms, a lthough precise
language may differ (whether through a tentative
subdivision map condition of approval,
amendment to the specific plan or to a

development agreement, or other agreement
between the City and a Participating Landowner),
this condition of approval shall be null and void as
to Owner/Applicant's Project, and shall not be
used as a reason to prevent approval of any final
small lot map for Owner/Applicant's project. lf the
City approves any other final small lot map for a
project within the Plan Area and the Corporation
Yard site has not been approved as provided for
herein, Owner/Applicant may seek relief from the
terms of this condition by appeal to the City
Manager, with the right to review by the City
Council.

lf and when the City amends the ARDA for any
other Folsom Plan owner to include the language
described below, in addition to the above and
subject to the paragraph below, Applicant agrees
to a future modification of Section 2.5.38 of the
Amended and Restated Development Agreement
(ARDA) as follows: Prior to Approval of First Final
Small Lot Map in the FPA (or first building permit if
development may occur without any subdivision)
or as otherwise specified below:
....(9)A site consistent with the requirements of
Section 2.2.3.4, as may be amended or as

195

Cont.

Page 174 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 259

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL
HIGHWAY

2216.11(PN
ROADROCK

ROJECTPtoN
WHITEOF

suBDrvts
NORTH

RANCH
ROAD,

LL
LLE

RUSSE
LACERVI

THE
POF

FOR
EAST50

OF
OFUTH

CONDITIONS
so

FINAL

CDMotherwise agreed to between the City and the
Participating Landowners, shall be identified as
acceptable to the City as suitable and feasible for
use as the new Corporation Yard with access to
sewer, water and all required utility services. The
City's determination of feasibility may include the
identification of an alternative site, consistent with
the forgoing, as a back-up for the primary site, as
well as an evaluation of the time, cost and
likelihood of obtaining any necessary entitlements
or other governmental approvals for use of the
land as a corporation yard, with the final
determination of feasibility subject to the sole and
reasonable discretion of the City.

lf Owner/Applicant proposes final maps in phases,
Owner/Applicant may apply to the City Manager
to permit individual phases to move forward to
final map if substantial progress is being made to
identify an acceptable site as described above. The
City Manager's determination of substantial
progress shall be in his/her sole discretion.

The City will be proposing the amendment to
Section 2.5.3B as described above as to other
Folsom Plan Area landowners seeking future
specific plan amendment, tentative subdivision
map or ARDA amendments. lf and when the City
modifies the ARDA for any other Folsom plan Area
landowner to add this section, then Applicant will

19s.
Cont.

Page 175 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 260

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL
HWAY

2216-l1(PN
ROAD

ECT
ROCK

PROJ
WHITEOF

lvtstoNDBSU
NORTH

RANCH
ROAD,

RUSSELLTHE
PLACERVILLEOF

FOR
EAST50,

OFS
HIGOF

ITIONDcoN
SOUTH

NALFI

YesThe City, the Folsom Cordova Unified
School District (FCUSD) and the
Landowners in the Folsom Plan Area
successfully negotiated the proposed
locations of the combined middle
school/high school site. The City Manager
informed the Landowners that this
condition of approval has been satisfied
with a letter dated June 12, 2018. The
letter is on file with the City.

CD

CD

M

M

agree to a modification of its then existing ARDA
or amendment thereto. lf the City does not amend
the ARDA with respect to any other landowner to
include the provision set forth above prior to City
Council's consideration of a final map, then this
requirement shall be null and void as to
Owner/Appl ica nt's project.

New Middle School and High Schoolsite
The locations of the elementary school sites and
the combined middle school/high school were
initially established during the City's processing
and approval of the Folsom Specific Plan, at which
time all Plan Area participants were engaged in
the review of land planning and land uses. ln
2015, the Folsom Cordova Unified School District
raised concerns that the planned location of the
future combined middle school/high school site
may not be preferred.

Prior to approval of First Final Small Lot Map in the
FPA (or first building permit if development may
occur without any subdivision), the site(s) for the
future high school and middle school in the
Folsom Plan Area will be identified and approved
by the City, in consultation with the Folsom
Cordova Unified School District.

The City intends to impose this condition equitably
t the Plan Area as and to each and eve

195.

Cont.

r_96

Page 176 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 261

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

CommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

HIGHWAY 50, EAST OF PLACERVILLE ROAD, NORTH OF WHITE ROCK
AMENDED VESTING SMALL LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP

APPROVAL 2216.1I(PN
ROAD

PROJEGTsuBDtvrsroNRANCHLLRUSSETHEFOROF
OFUTH

CONDITIONS
so

FINAL

CDMParticipating Landowner who seeks any future
specific plan amendment, tentative subdivision
map or ARDA amendment in connection with its
proposed development. lf the City fails to impose
such a condition, when required, with at least
substantially similar terms, although precise
language may differ {whether through a tentative
subdivision map condition of approval,
amendment to the specific plan or to a

development agreement, or other agreement
between the City and a Participating Landowner),
this condition of approval shall be null and void as
to Owner/Applicant's Project, and shall not be
used as a reason to prevent approval of any final
small lot map for Owner/Applicant's project. lf the
City approves any other final small lot map for a

project within the Plan Area and the high school
and middle school site(s) has not been approved
as provided for herein, Owner/Applicant may seek
relief from the terms of this condition by appeal to
the City Manager, with the right to review by the
City Council.
lf Owner/Applicant proposes final maps in phases,
Owner/Applicant may apply to the City Manager
to permit individual phases to move forward to
final map if substantial progress is being made to
identify an acceptable site(s) as described above.
The City Manager's determination of substantial
progress shall be in his/her sole discretion.

196.
Cont.

Page 177 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 262

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Gondition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhenCondition / Mitigation Measure

APPROVAL
HIGHWAY

2216.11(PN
ROADROCK

PROJECT

MAP
WHITEOF

BDtVtStON

suBDtvtstoN

SU
NORTH

TIVEA

RANGH
ROAD,

LL

TENT
LLE

LOT

RUSSETHE
PLACERVI

SMALL
OF

NG

FOR
EAST

VESTI
50

DED

OF

AMEN
OFUTH

CONDITIONS
so

FINAL

CDMlf and when the City amends the Amended and
Restated Development Agreement ("ARDA,') for
any other Folsom Plan owner to include the
language described below, in addition to the
above and subject to the paragraph below,
Applicant agrees to a future modification of
Section 2.5.38 of the ARDA as follows:

Section 2.5.38 Prior to Approval of First Final Small
Lot Map in the FPA (or First Building permit if
Development May Occur Without Any Subdivision)
or as otherwise specified below:

....(10) A site or sites identified as suitable by the
City, in consultation with the Folsom Cordova
Unified School District, for use as the future high
school and middle school in the Folsom plan Area
shall be identified and approved by the City in
consultation with the Folsom Cordova Unified
School District. lf a supplemental fee is required
to support the development of such identified
site(s), the applicant agrees to support the
establishment of such fee in accordance with the
Mitigation Fee Act and to pay such fee, so long as
such fee is equitably shared by all similar
development within the plan Area.

The City will be proposing the amendment to
Section 2.5.38 as described above as to other
Folsom Plan Area landowners see future

196.
Cont.

Page 178 of 179
Resolution No.9783

Page 263

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Condition
Satisfied?

GommentsResponsibleWhen
uired

Condition / Mitigation Measure

TENTATIVE

APPROVAL 2216.11(PN
ROADROCK

PROJECT

MAP
ITE

N
WH
loN

OF
uBDtvtstoS

suBDrvrs
NORTH

RANCH
ROAD,

SSELL
RVILLE
LOT

RUETH
PLACE

SMALL
OF

FOR
EAST

VESTING
50,Y

DEDEN

OF

AM
HIGHWAOF

CONDITIONS
SOUTH

FINAL

YesThe Developer Cooperation Agreement
between the owner/applicant (successor
to The New Home Company) and Elliott
Homes, lnc. has been executed. The
Community Development Department has
verified compliance for the phase 34
subdivision.

CD

CD

M

M

specific plan amendment, tentative subdivision
map or ARDA amendments. lf and when the City
modifies the ARDA for any other Folsom plan Area
landowner to add this section, then Applicant will
agree to a modification of its then existing ARDA
or amendment thereto. lf the City does not amend
the ARDA with respect to any other landowner to
include the provision set forth above prior to City
Council's consideration of a final map, then this
requirement shall be null and void as to
Owner/Appl ica nt's project.

The owner/applicant shall comply with the
Developer Cooperation Agreement between The
New Home Company and Elliott Homes.

195.
Cont.

L97

Page 179 of 179
Resolution No. 9783

Page 264

09/28/2021 Item No.8.



Folsom City Council
Staff

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Police Department requests the City Council approve Resolution No. 10710 - A
resolution authorizing the Police Department to Accept a Selective Traffic Fnforcement

Program Grant in the Amount of $63,000 from the State of California Offrce of TraJIic

Safety and Appropriation of funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The goal of the California Offrce of Traffic Safety's statewide Selective Traffic Enforcement

Program (STEP) is to reduce the number of people killed and injured in taffic collisions
caused by driving under the influence, speed, red-light running, and other primary collision
factors. Through a partrrership with law enforcement, funding is provided to local
jurisdictions to identi$ primary collision factors, conduct education and enforcement to
reduce the number of fatal and injury related fiaffic collisions.

In an application to the State of California Offrce of Traffic Safety (OTS), the Folsom Police

Deparfinent has requested overtime funding for conducting DUI, speed, right-of-way, taffic
signals and signs, improper turning, pedestrian and bicycle violations to reduce or prevent

iqiury and fatal collisions in the City of Folsom.

By acceping this grant, the Police Departrnent agrees to participate and report data (as

required) in the following campaigns; National Walk to School Day, National Teen Driver

I

MEETING DATE: 9t28/202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10710 - A Resolution Authorizing the Police
Deparfinent to Accept a Selective Traffic Enforcement Program
Grant in the Amount of $63,000 from the State of California
Office of Traffic Safety and Appropriation of Funds

F'ROM: Police Department

Page 265

09/28/2021 Item No.9.



Safety Week, NHTSA Winter Mobilization or Summer Mobilization, National Distacted
Driving Awareness Month, National Motorcycle Safety Montb National Child Passenger
Safety Week, and California's Pedestrian Safety Month.

The Police Department will also send ofiicers to training programs including NHTSA
Advanced Roadside Impaired Driving Enforcement (ARIDE), Standardized Field Sobriety
Testing (SFST), Drug Recognition Expert (DRE), and SFST instructor.

POLICY / RULE

This grant acceptance and appropriation of funds requires City Council Approval.

ANALYSIS

The California OTS provides grant funding to reimburse law enforcement agencies for the
cost of conducting selective enforcement geared at reducing fatal and injury collisions.

Since 2012, the Folsom Police Deparfrnent has applied for grant funding from California
OTS to provide directed enforcement towards the primary collision factors that have been the
cause of injury and fatal traffic collisions in our community. These grants have provided
additional officers in the field for enforcement of speed, rights-of-way, unsafe turning, DUI,
and distracted driving violations, as well as education efforts in Folsom schools. By
participating in the Califomia OTS Selective Traffic Enforcement hogram, the Folsom
Police Departnrent intends to continue its work in bringing awareness of the primary causes

of collisions through enforcement and education in an effort to reduce the number of fatal
and injury related fiaffic collisions in the City of Folsom.

rr[dNcrAr LMPACT

There is no General Fund fiscal impact associated with this grant. The State of California
OTS will reimburse all overtime expenses generated by the Selective Traffic Enforcement
Program. The Folsom Police Departnaent estimates overtime costs to be approximately
$63,000. The grant funding will require an appropriation in FY 2021-22 General Fund (Fund
2010) Budget in the Police Department.

ENVIRONMENTAL REYIEW

nla

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10710 - A resolution authorizing the Police Department to Accept a Selective
Traffic Enforcement Program Grant in the Amount of $63,000 from the State of California
Ofhce of Traffic Safety and Appropriation of Funds

2

Page 266

09/28/2021 Item No.9.



Submitted,

Rick Police Chief

3 Page 267

09/28/2021 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10710

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE POLICE DEPARTMENT TO ACCEPT A
SELECTIVE TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF'

$63,000 FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OF'F'ICE OF TRAFFIC SAF'ETY AND
APPROPRIATION OF F'UNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom Police Department is requesting the City Council
authorize the acceptance of a grant titled "Selective Traffic Enforcement Program" for the Period

of October 1,2021through September 30,2022, from the California Office of Traffic Safety, in
the amount of $63,000; and

WHEREAS, selective enforcement of the primary causes of collisions are an effective
way to deter motorists would speed, drive while under the influence, or otherwise drive unsafe,

thereby reducing fatal and injury collisions; and

WHEREAS' the grant monies will be used to reimburse personnel overtime costs

associated with selective traffrc enforcement and the training of offrcers in the detection,
apprehension, and prosecution of impaired drivers;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby authorizes the acceptance of a grant titled ooSelected Traffic Enforcement Program" from
the State of California Office of Traffic Safety, which will provide funding to conduct selective
traffic enforcement geared at reducing the number of fatal and injury collisions in the City. The

City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized and empowered to accept and execute in the
name of the City of Folsom all necessary contracts, agreements, amendments, and payment

requests hereto for the purposes of accepting and fulfilling the requirements of the grant titled
"Selected Traffi c Enforcement Program."

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the
City of Folsom authorizes to the Finance Director to appropriate the grant amount of $63,000 to
the Police Department Fiscal Year 2021-22 Generul Fund Budget (Fund 010) to be reimbursed
by the California Office of Traffic Safety.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28ft day of September 202l,by the following roll call
vote:
AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10710
Page I of 1

Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:
Councilmembers:

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 268

09/28/2021 Item No.9.



h
i 4-i.t ,:"i ,{ j'l\11

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 10711 - A Resolution
Authorizing the Cify Manager to Execute an Agreement with Caldwell Country Chevrolet for
the Purchase of Three Chevrolet Police Vehicles.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The City of Folsom strives to provide police officers with mechanically sound and safe marked
patrol vehicles capable of emergency responses. The Service Delivery Plan adopted by the
City Council calls for the replacement of marked police cars at 75,000 miles. The Police
Department is currently utilizing 17 vehicles with mileage exceeding 75,000 miles; eleven of
them are marked patrol vehicles. 8 vehicles have been ordered but finding vehicles available
immediately has been challenging.

Nationwide, the supply of vehicles is limited. This is disproportionately affecting SUV's,
including vehicles for police service. We have been incredibly fortunate to find three 2021
Chevrolet Tahoe Police package vehicles, available for upfitting and delivery right away.

POLICY / RULE

Section 236.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code requires that contracts in excess of $62,657
be awarded by the City Council.

1

MEETING DATE: 91281202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10711 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Caldwell Country
Chevrolet for the Purchase of Three Chevrolet Police Vehicles

FROM: Police Department

Page 269

09/28/2021 Item No.10.



Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements
for the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service or construction with one or more
public procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the
participants. Such cooperative purchasing may include, but is not limited to, joint or multiparty
contracts between public procurement units and open-ended state public procurement unit
contracts which are made available to the city.

ANALYSIS

Sport Utility Vehicles (SUVs) have become an industry standard for law enforcement use since
their introduction in 2013. This purchase of three Chevrolet Tahoe police vehicles will reduce
the number of marked patrol vehicles exceeding 75,000 miles to eight, with 8 more on order
for next year from prior authorized purchases.

ANALYSIS

The last vendor for Chevrolet Tahoes was Folsom Lake Chevrolet, who was initially unable to
provide the vehicle this year, but then offered Tahoe's at a significantly increased price versus
the last purchase. After an extensive search, we finally found a dealer with a small stock of
these vehicles.

The cost of these vehicles is $55,864.67 each, fully equipped. The base price of the vehicle is
$38,5000. The last offer from Folsom Lake Chevrolet for a similar vehicle was $51,446.215,
prior to the addition of emergency equipment.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Fiscal Year 2021-22Budget was recently amended to include an additional $497,000 of
American Rescue Plan Act funding for the purchase of police vehicles. The cost to purchase

three Chevrolet police vehicles is $ 1 67,594.01 . Once these new vehicles are placed in service,
three police vehicles will be disposed of in accordance with City Policy.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10711 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement
with Caldwell Country Chevrolet for the Purchase of Three Chevrolet Police Vehicles.

2

Hillman, Chief of Police

Page 270

09/28/2021 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. IOTII

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH CALDWELL COUNTRY CHEVROLET FOR THE PURCHASE

OF THREE CHEVROLET POLICE VEHICLES

WHEREAS, the City has elected to purchase three Chevrolet police vehicles for the

Folsom Police Department; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2021-22
General Fund (Fund 010) Budget for the purchase of these vehicles; and

WHEREAS, this purchase is through Caldwell County Chevrolet, the only vendor
currently able to supply these vehicles at fleet pricing.

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a format acceptable to the City Attorney

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement with Caldwell County
Chevrolet for the purchase of three Chevrolet police vehicles in the amount of $ 1 67,594.01 .

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September 2021, by the following roll
call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers(s)

Councilmembers (s)

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No 10711
Page I of I Page 271

09/28/2021 Item No.10.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 272

09/28/2021 Item No.10.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 912812021

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10708 - A Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Folsom Approving the Issuance by the California Public
Finance Authority of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds in an

Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $34,000,000 for the

Purpose of Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition and

Construction of Mangini Place Apartments and Certain Other
Matters Relating Thereto

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to Adopt Resolution No. 10708 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Approving the Issuance by the California Public Finance Authority of Multifamily Housing
Revenue Bonds in an Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $34,000,000 for the Purpose

of Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition and Construction of Mangini Place Apartments
and Certain Other Matters Relating Thereto.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Mangini Place Apartments is a highly amenilized master planned community comprised of
152 income restricted family rental housing residences. The proposed Mangini Place

Apartments project ("Project") is located on the northwest corner of Savannah Parkway and

Mangini Parkway within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. The Project fronts directly onto
Mangini Parkway and will have access to a master planned system of trails, parks and bicycle
paths and will be within walking proximity to Mangini Ranch Elementary school, Mangini
Park (a planned and funded public park) and a master planned Transit Corridor with a fully
planned dedicated Bus Rapid Transit System.

1

Page 273

09/28/2021 Item No.11.



FIGURE 1: MANGINI PLACE PROJECT SITE

The proposed project was approved by the Planning Commission on August 18,2021 and
includes development of six three-story apartment buildings, featuring 89 one-bedroom,24
two-bedroom, and 39 three-bedroom units. With more than25 percent of the units designated

as three-bedroom, this project is categorized as 'ol-arge Family" and targets family households.

All units will be income and rent restricted to households with incomes between 30 percent
and70 percent of the Area Median Income for Sacramento County.

On January 26,2021the City Council was presented with two affordable housing (Sage Senior
Apartments and Mangini Place Apartments) loan requests. Staffpresented project information,
financial analysis, and other considerations with preliminary recommendations. Based on the
information provided and favorable preliminarily analyses for both affordable housing funding
requests by the City's housing loan consultant, TDA Consulting,Inc. (TDA), the City Council
gave their support to provide funding for both projects. However, given that the total funds
requested for both projects exceeded the City's housing fund balance and given that Sage

Apartments had approved entitlements and was further along in the process, City Council
approved the Sage Apartments funding request of up to $4.5 million and directed staff to come

back to City Council at a future date with a funding plan for Mangini Place.

At the time of this staff report, an updated project pro forma for Mangini Place is being
reviewed by TDA. In addition, since January the housing fund balance has grown steadily.
As such, staff anticipates that the Mangini Place funding request will be presented to the City
Council in October or November of this year.

2

resolution

Park

Elementary
School

Page 274

09/28/2021 Item No.11.



The City Council is being asked to adopt a resolution that would approve the issuance of
multifamily housing revenue bonds by the California Public Finance Authority ("CalPFA") for
the purpose of financing the acquisition and construction of the Mangini Place multifamily
residential housing project to be located in the City.

The Project received "private activity bond" allocation from the California Debt Limit
Allocation Committee ("CDLAC") on August 11, 2021 and prior to closing, CaIPFA will be

required to adopt a resolution which would approve the execution and delivery of certain bond
documents that would reflect the terms of the bonds.

In order for all or a portion of the bonds to qualiff as tax-exempt bonds, the City of Folsom
must conduct apublic hearing underthe Tax and Equity Fiscal Responsibility Act ("TEFRA")
to allow members of the community an opportunity to speak in favor of or against the use of
tax-exempt bonds for the financing of the Project.

POLICY / RULE

Section I47(D of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") requires that the "applicable
elected representatives" of the jurisdiction in which a project is to be financed with "private
activity bonds" is situated, adopt a resolution approving the issuance of such "private activity
bonds" after holding a public hearing which has been noticed in a newspaper of general

circulation in such jurisdiction.

ANALYSIS

This public hearing by the City Council is held pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal
Revenue Code in order to comply with the statutory requirements prior to CaIPFA issuing the
multifamily housing revenue bonds. CaIPFA is not permitted to issue bonds for the Project
without first conducting a public hearing and obtaining permission from the governing board
of the jurisdiction in which the project is located, which in this case is the City Council of the
City of Folsom.

CaIPFA is a political subdivision ofthe State of Califomia established under the Joint Exercise
of Powers Act for the purpose of issuing tax-exempt conduit bonds for public and private
entities throughout California. CaIPFA was established to promote economic, cultural, and

community development opportunities that create temporary and permanent jobs, affordable
housing, community infrastructure and improve the overall quality of life in local communities.
As of 2017, the City of Folsom is an additional member of CalPFA, which allows CaIPFA to
issue bonds and finance the Project.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

As set forth in the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement of CalPFA, the debt from bonds issued

by CaIPFA would not be a debt or financial obligation or liability of the City. Pursuant to the

J
Page 275

09/28/2021 Item No.11.



governing California statutes and the JPA Agreement, members of CaIPFA are not responsible
for the repayment of obligations incurred by CalPFA. The debt from the bond issuance would
be payable solely from amounts received pursuant to the terms and provisions of financing
agreements to be executed by the Project developer and CalPFA. In the financing documents,
the Project developer will be required to provide comprehensive indemnification to CaIPFA
and its members, including the City of Folsom. The City's membership in the Authority bears
no cost or financing obligation.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The Mangini Place Apartments project is exempt from environmental review under
Government Code Section 65457 and Section 15182 of the California Environmental Quality
Act Guidelines.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10708 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving the
Issuance by the California Public Finance Authority of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds
in an Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $34,000,000 for the Purpose of Financing or
Refinancing the Acquisition and Construction of Mangini Place Apartments and Certain Other
Matters Relating Thereto

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

4
Page 276

09/28/2021 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION 10708

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF'THE CITY OF FOLSOM APPROVING
THE ISSUANCE BY THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY OF'

MULTIFAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $34,000,000 F'OR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING OR
REFINANCING THE ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF MANGINI PLACE

APARTMENTS AND CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO

WHEREAS, Mangini Place Affordable, LP or a partnership of which St. Anton
Communities, LLC (the "Developer") or a related person to the Developer is the general partner,
has requested that the California Public Finance Authority (the "Authority"; adopt a plan of
financing providing for the issuance of exempt facility bonds for a qualified residential rental
project pursuant to Section U2(a)(7) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") in one or
more series issued from time to time, including bonds issued to refund such exempt facility bonds
in one or more series from time to time, and at no time to exceed $34,000,000 in outstanding
aggregate principal amount (the "Bonds") for the acquisition, construction, improvement and
equipping of a multifamily rental housing project located at Northwest corner of Mangini Parkway
and Savannah Parkway (formerly Placerville Road), Folsom, California (the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code, the issuance of the Bonds by the
Authority must be approved by the City of Folsom (the "City") because the Project is located
within the territorial limits of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "City Council") is the elected legislative
body of the City and is the applicable elected representative under Section 147(t) of the Code; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that the City Council approve the issuance of the
Bonds by the Authority in order to satisfu the public approval requirement of Section 147(D of the
Code and the requirements of Section 12 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to
the California Public Finance Authority, dated as of I|l4ay 12,2015 (the'oAgreement"), among
certain local agencies, including the City; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(D of the Code, the City Council has, following
notice duly given, held a public hearing regarding the issuance of the Bonds, and now desires to
approve the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the City Council understands that its actions in holding this public hearing
and in approving this Resolution do not obligate the City in any manner for payment of the
principal, interest, fees or any other costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds, and said City
Council expressly conditions its approval of this Resolution on that understanding.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Folsom
as follows:

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the issuance of the Bonds by the
Authority for the purposes of financing the Project. It is the purpose and intent of the City Council

Resolution No. 10708
Page 7 of2

Page 277

09/28/2021 Item No.11.



that this Resolution constitute approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority, for the
purposes of (a) Section 147(f) of the Code by the applicable elected representative of the
governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in which the Project is located, in accordance
with said Section 147(f) and (b) Section 12 of the Agreement.

Section 2. The officers of the City Council are hereby avthorized and directed, jointly
and severally, to do any and all things and execute and deliver any and all documents, certificates
and other instruments which they deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to
and comply with the terms and intent of this Resolution and the financing transaction approved
hereby. Any actions heretofore taken by such officers are hereby ratified and approved.

Section 3. The City Council expressly conditions its approval of this Resolution on its
understanding that the City shall have no obligation whatsoever to pay any principal, interest, fees
or any other costs associated with the Authority's issuance of the Loan for the financing of the
Project.

Section 4. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10708
Page 2 of.2

Page 278

09/28/2021 Item No.11.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 912812021

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10709 - A Resolution of the City Council of the
City of Folsom Approving the Issuance of the California
Municipal Finance Authority Revenue Bonds in an Aggregate
Principal Amount not to Exceed $20,000,000 to Finance a 111-
unit Affordable Rental Housing Facility for Low-income and
Very Low-income Seniors, for the Benefit of an Entity Io be

Created by USA Properties Fund, Inc., or an Affiliate, and Other
Certain Matters Relating Thereto

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to adopt ResolutionNo. 10709 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom
Approving the Issuance of the California Municipal Finance Authority Revenue Bonds in an
Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $20,000,000 to Finance a 11l-unit Affordable
Rental Housing Facility for Low-income and Very Low-income Seniors, for the Benefit of an
Entity to be Created by USA Properties Fund, Inc., or an Affiliate, and Other Certain Matters
Relating Thereto.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Sage at Folsom Apartments (a.k.a. Scholar Senior Apartments) received Planning
Commission Planned Development approval on November 18, 2020. The project is a new
construction, 100 percent affordable multifamily rental development proposed on the 4.6-acre
site located at 75 Scholar Way at the northeast corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street
and Scholar Way within the Broadstone Unit No. 3 Specific Plan Area. The Sage project will
consist of 111 (originally 110) one-bedroom units affordable to low-, very-low-, and
extremely-low-income senior households. On January 26,2021, the City Council adopted
Resolution No. 10583, approving an affordable housing loan, in the amount up to $3,500,000,
to construct the Sage at Folsom Apartments project. On April 28th Sage at Folsom was

1

Page 279

09/28/2021 Item No.12.



successful in obtaining an allocation of tax-exempt bond cap from California Debt Limit
Allocation Committee and reservation of 4 percent low-income housing tax credit and State

tax credits from Tax Credit Allocation Committee.

FIGURE 1: SAGE PROJECT SITE AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

The City Council is being asked to adopt a resolution that would approve the issuance of
revenue bonds by the California Municipal Finance Authority ("CMFA"), a joint exercise of
powers authority and public entity of the State of California, in an amount not to exceed

$20,000,000, (the "Bonds"), to finance the acquisition, construction, improvement and
equipping of a multifamily rental housing project located at the northeast comer of the
intersection of East Bidwell Street and Scholar Way, Folsom, California (the "Project"). The
City Council previously held a public hearing and approved Resolution No. 10639 related to
this Project on June 8,2021. Following approval of Resolution No. 10639, the Project address

changed to 75 Scholar Way (previously 89 Scholar Way) and the unit number increased from
110 units to 111 units. As such, a new TEFRA hearing and adoption of a new resolution that
reflects the 75 Scholar Way address and the 1 1 1-unit count is necessary.

POLICY / RULE

Section 147(D of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") requires that the "applicable
elected representatives" of the jurisdiction in which a project is to be financed with "private
activity bonds" is situated, adopt a resolution approving the issuance of such "private activity
bonds" after holding a public hearing which has been noticed in a newspaper of general

circulation in such jurisdiction.

2
Page 280

09/28/2021 Item No.12.



ANALYSIS

USA Properties Fund, Inc. has requested that the CMFA adopt a plan of financing providing
for the issuance of exempt facility bonds for a qualified residential rental project pursuant to
Section Ia2@)(7) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the o'Code") in one or more series in
an amount not to exceed $20,000,000 to finance the acquisition, construction, improvement
and equipping of a multifamily rental housing project located at 75 Scholar Way at the
Northeast corner of Scholar Way & East Bidwell Street, Folsom, California.

The CMFA was created on January 1,2004 pursuant to a joint exercise of powers agreement
to promote economic, cultural and community development, through the financing of
economic development and charitable activities throughout California. To date, over 300
municipalities, including the City of Folsom, have become members of CMFA.

In order for all or a portion of the Bonds to quali$ as tax-exempt bonds, the City of Folsom
must conduct a public hearing under the Tax and Equity Fiscal Responsibility Act ("TEFRA")
to allow the members of the community an opportunity to speak in favor of or against the use

of tax-exempt bonds for the financing of the Project.

It is important to note that holding a public hearing under the Tax and Equity Fiscal
Responsibility Act ("TEFRA") does not obligate the City in any way and has nothing to do
with potential funds that the City may or may not contribute to the project.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Bonds to be issued by the CMFA for the Project will be the sole responsibility of USA
Properties, Inc., and the City will have no financial, legaI, or moral obligation, liability or
responsibility for the Project or the repayment of the Bonds for the financing of the Project.
All financing documents with respect to the issuance of the Bonds will contain clear
disclaimers that the Bonds are not obligations of the City or the State of California but are to
be paid for solely from funds provided by USA Properties, Inc.

The Board of Directors of the California Foundation for Stronger Communities, a California
non-profit public benefit corporation (the "Foundation"), acts as the Board of Directors for the
CMFA. Through its conduit issuance activities, the CMFA shares a portion of the issuance
fees it receives with its member communities and donates a portion of these issuance fees to
the Foundation for the support of local charities. With respect to the City of Folsom, it is
expected thataportion of the issuance fee attributable to the City will be granted by the CMFA
to the general fund of the City. Such grant may be used for any lawful purpose of the City.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

An Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program for the Project have been previously approved in accordance with the requirements
of the California Environmental Quality Act. No additional environmental review is required.

J
Page 281

09/28/2021 Item No.12.



ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 10709 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving
the Issuance of the California Municipal Finance Authority Revenue Bonds in an Aggregate
Principal Amount not to Exceed $20,000,000 to Finance a 1 1 l-unit Affordable Rental Housing
Facility for Low-income and Very Low-income Seniors, for the Benefit of an Entity to be

Created by USA Properties Fund, Inc., or an Affiliate, and Other Certain Matters Relating
Thereto

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

4
Page 282

09/28/2021 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. IO7O9

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF'THE CITY OF FOLSOM
APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF THE CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL
FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE BONDS IN AN AGGREGATE

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $20,0000000 TO X'INANCE A
lll.UNIT AFFORDABLE RENTAL HOUSING FACILITY F'OR LOW.

INCOME AND VERY LOW-INCOME SENIORS' FOR THE BENEFIT OF
AN ENTITY TO BE CREATED BY USA PROPERTIES F'UND,INC., OR

AN AF'FILIATE, AND CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS RELATING
THERETO

WHEREAS, USA Properties Fund, Inc, (the ooSponsor"), on behalf of an entity to be
created by the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor (such entity, the ooBorrower"), has requested
that the California Municipal Finance Authority (the "Authority") issue one or more series of
revenue bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $20,000,000 (the "Bonds"),
including but not limited to revenue bonds issued as part of a plan to (1) finance and refinance the
acquisition, construction, improvement and equipping of a lll-unit affordable rental housing
facility for low-income and very low-income seniors (the "Project") to be owned and operated by
the Borrower and located at 75 Scholar Way within the City of Folsom (the "City"), and (2) pay
certain expenses in connection with the issuance of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, an'oapplicable elected representative" of a jurisdiction in which the Project
is to be located is required to approve the issuance of the Bonds under Section I47(f) of the Code;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "City Council") is the elected legislative
body of the City and is an "applicable elected representative" for purposes of Section 147(D of the
Code; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has requested that the City Council approve the issuance of the
Bonds by the Authority in order to satisff the public approval requirement of Section I47(D of the
Code and the requirements of Section 4 of the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement Relating to the
California Municipal Finance Authority, dated as of January 1,2004 (the "Agreement"), among
certain local agencies, including the City; and

WHEREAS, pursuantto Section 147(D ofthe Code, the City Council has, followingnotice
duly given, held a public hearing regarding the issuance of the Bonds, and now desires to approve
the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Folsom
as follows:

Section l The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

Section 2. This Resolution supersedes and replaces Resolution No. 10639

Resolution No. 10709
Page I of2

Page 283

09/28/2021 Item No.12.



Section 3. The City Council hereby approves the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority,
including but not limited to Bonds issued as part of a plan to finance and refinance the facilities
described herein. It is the purpose and intent of the City Council that this resolution constitute
approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority for the Project, for the puqposes of
(a) Section 147(f) of the Code by the applicable elected representative of a govemmental unit
having jurisdiction over the area in which the Project is to be located, in accordance with said
Section 147(D and (b) Section 4 of the Agreement.

Section 4. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally,
to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents which they deem
necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of
this resolution and the financing transaction approved hereby.

Section 5. The Clerk shall forward a certified copy of this Resolution to the Authority in
care of its counsel:

Ronald E. Lee, Esq.
Jones Hall, APLC
475 Sansome Street, Suite 1700
San Francisco, CA 94IIl

Section 6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10709
Page2 of2

Page 284

09/28/2021 Item No.12.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 9/2812021

AGENIIA SECTION: Old Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10707 - A Resolution of the City Council
Establishing a Temporary Residential Permit Parking Program in
the Folsom Historic District

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10707 - A Resolution of the City Council Establishing a Temporary Residential Permit
Parking Program in the Folsom Historic Disfrict.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

At the August 24,2021 City Council meeting, saff provided the frrst of a series of quarterly
updates of progress on the recommendations ofthe Historic District Ad Hoc Parking Solutions
Committee ("Committeeoo). The Committee was formed by the City Council in 2019 to develop
a list of recommended parking improvements and submitted their recommendations in2020.
During the August 24 update, staff called attention to several specific objectives that the
Committee had recommended and identified these as important objectives to implement in the
near term. These objectives were:

Enhanced Wayfinding Signage
Pilot Residential Parking Program
Coordinate shuttle and/or valet services
Prking enforcement
Parking Management Consultant

The City Council indicated support for the first four objectives but did not provide staff with
direction to engage a parking management consultant. While the focus of this staffreport and

1.

2.

3.

4.
5.

1

Page 285

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



resolution is the pilot residential permit parking progrzrm, it should be noted that the success
of the pilot program is directly linked to the proper implementation of enhanced wayfinding
and consistent parking enforcement.

POLICY / RULE

Section 22507(a) ofthe Califomia Vehicle Code authorizes local goveming bodies to prohibit
or restrict the parking ofvehicles on certain streets, or portions ofthereof, during all or certain
hours of the day, and to designate certain streets upon which preferential parking privileges are
given to residents adjacent to the streets for their us and the use of their guests, under which
the residents may be issued a permit that exempt them from the parking restrictions.

ANALYSIS

Staff worked with Historic District residents to create apilot program that addresses their most
significant concerns. The proposed pilot program is described in the attached Exhibit A and
includes the following key aspects:

o The boundaries of the pilot are limited to Figueroa Street between Scott Street and
Reading Street, including each of the intersecting half-blocks between Figueroa Street
and Sutter Street.

o The permits would be required to parking within the parking boundaries on Fridays and
Saturdays between 6 p.m. and2 a.m. Parking would not be restricted at any other time.

o A maximum of four permits would be issued to each property within the parking
boundary; there would be no sost to the permit holder for the pilot program.

o Additional guest permits will be issued to permit holders; these guest permits can be
used by short-term guests and/or service vehicles.

r The permits will be enforced on a regular basis.
o Performance measures will be tracked during the pilot and will be reported back to the

City Council at the end of the pilot to measure the success of the program.
r The pilot would last for six months; it is assumed that the program could be launched

in November 2021and would end in April2022.

It will be important to the success of this pilot that we also implement some form of wayfinding
to direct motorists to available public parking, and that parking enforcement is done
consistently to ensure compliance. Staff also recommends that the amount of a parking fine be
increased to at least $75 per violation to discourage scofflaws.

FINAI\ICIAL IMPACT

Staff estimates that implementing the pilot program would cost approximately $10,000 to
install and maintain signs and to purchase and issue permits and guest passes. An additional
$15,000 may be required if the city opts to hire a parking enforcement firm or part-time
employee, These costs are not accounted for in the City's current fiscal year budget. Staff has

2

Page 286

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



r€commended that this program would be avalid use ofAmerican Recovery Plan Act (ARPA)
funding.

This program is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA).

ATTACHMENTS

1. ResolutionNo. 10707 -A Resolution ofthe City Cormcil Establishing a Temporary
Residential Permit Parking Program in the Folsom Historic Distict.

2. Exhibit A- Residential Permit Parking Program (2020/2lPilot)

Submitted,'

DaveNugen, Public

3

Page 287

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



Attachment I

Resolution No. 10707

Page 288

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. TO7O7

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PILOT RESIDENTIAL PERMIT PARKING
PROGRAM IN THE FOLSOM HISTORIC DISTRICT

WHEREAS, in 2019, the City Council established and directed the Historic District Parking
Solutions Ad Hoc Committee ("Committee") to explore possible solutions for parking challenges in
the Folsom Historic District; and

WHEREAS, the Committee met monthly for approximately one year to identify issues,

evaluate potential solutions and provided recommendations to the City Council in 2020 for
consideration; and

WHEREAS, upon receiving, reviewing and discussing the Historic District Parking Solutions

Quarterly Report at its regular meeting on August 24,2021, the City Council directed staff to prepare
a temporary residential permit parking program; and

WHEREAS, local governments are authorized pursuant to Section22507(a) of the California
Vehicle Code to prohibit or restrict the parking of vehicles on certain streets, or portions thereof, during
all or certain hours of the day, and to designate certain streets upon which preferential parking
privileges are given to residents adjacent to the streets for their use and the use oftheir guests, under
which the residents may be issued a permit that exempt them from the parking restrictions; and

WHEREAS, the purpose and intent of establishing the residential permit parking program on
a temporary basis is to give the City an opportunity to evaluate the effectiveness and challenges
associated with limiting and restricting the ability of the general public to park on certain designated
public streets so that at the end of the test period, the City Council can evaluate and decide whether to
modiff, terminate or make permanent the residential permit parking program in the Folsom Historic
District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes a pilot residential permit parking program in the Folsom Historic District, as described in
Exhibit A affached to this Resolution.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September, 202I,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10707
Page I of I

Page 289

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



Attachment 2

Page 290

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



EXHIBIT A
City of Folsom

Historic District
Residential Permit Parking Program Q021122 Pilot)

Project Boundaries. The proposed limits of the permit parking zone are Figueroa Street between Scott
Street and Reading Street, including the intersecting blocks (Scott, Decatur, Wool) between Figueroa
Street and Sutter Street.

Clty of Folsom Hlstorlc District Resldential Permlt Pa*lng Pllot Pmgram - ProJect Boundary

Posted restrictions. No Parking Friday/Saturday 6pm - 2am, Except by Permit. Signs will be posted at

end of each block plus one additional sign mid-block. Signs will be reflective coated for improved night-
time visibility. Only affects on-street parking; parking in driveways, private property, or alleys is not
subject to this restriction.

FRI.SAT 6PMTO2AM
EXCEPT BY PERMIT

Page 291

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



Permits. Permits will be issued by City to requesting vehicle owners who can provide proof of residence
within the project boundary, up to a maximum of four permits per property. For pilot project, permits
will be at no cost to the permit holder. Permit must be placed in rear, driver-side window to be valid;
improperly placed or missing permits could be a violation and subject to citation.

202L-2022

Logo?

HD-0001

Guest permits. Residents living within the project boundary can have two methods of obtaining guest
passes:

1. Up to four, rearview mirror hanger-style guest passes issued to each property address at outset of
pilot.

2. May request up to five temporary guest parking passes (per address) which will be limited term
(maximum duration 72 hours); temporary passes will be randomly numbered and valid permit
numbers will be provided to FPD, including the dates that each permit number is valid.

Guest passes must be placed on driver side dashboard to be considered valid. Improperly placed guest
permits could be a violation and subject to citation.

Enforcement. Consistent enforcement throughout duration of pilot. Could be performed by Folsom
Police Department (FPD), or consider hiring parl-time staff with parking/code enforcement experience.

Duration. Proposed 6-month duration (assumed to be November 202I through April2022)

Performance Measures. Metrics used to determine response to, and success of, pilot program.

L Public parking occupancy: Determine if there is an increase in parking at the parking structure
and light rail lots (an increase indicates success)

2. Citations issued: Tabulation of weekly citations issued (a decreasing number of citations
indicates success, assuming enforcement is consistent)

3. Resident survey: qualitative measure of satisfaction of affected property owners (consider
including residents living near the project boundary to measure any issues associated with
displaced parking).

Estimated Cost elements:

1. Signs: 36 signs and posts at a unit cost of $200 per sign/post = $7 ,200
2. Permits: 35-40 residential properties within project boundary times 4 permits per property: 160

permits; at $5/permit total cost comes to $800.
3. Guest permits: 35-40 residential properties within project boundary times 4 hangers per property

: 160 hangers; at $2/hanger total cost is $320

Page 292

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



4. Enforcement: Cost could be minimal if performed by FPD. If part-time employee is retained,
cost is estimated to be $15,000 (could be partially offset by district-wide citation revenues)

5. Staff time: Undetermined (will be tracked and reported)

Schedule:

September 2021 Public outreach prior to Sep. 28 City Council action to approve pilot

October 2021 Distribute notifications to affected property owners/tenants, detailing the reasons
for the pilot and how to obtain permits

November 2021 Issue permits and begin 6-month period

May 2022 Report back to City Council regarding outcomes of pilot

Page 293

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 294

09/28/2021 Item No.13.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to adopt Resolution No. 10712 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Rescinding
Resolution No. 10583, Approving an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount up to
$2,750,000 from the City's Housing Fund to Folsom 670,LP., and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Loan Agreement and Related Documents for the Construction of 1 1 1

Affordable Senior Housing Units at the Sage at Folsom Multifamily Affordable Housing
Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Sage at Folsom Apartments (a.k.a. Scholar Senior Apartments) received Planning Commission
Planned Development approval on November 18, 2020. The project is a new construction,
100 percent affordable multifamily rental development and is proposed on the 4.6-acre site

located at 75 Scholar Way, which is at the northeast corner of the intersection of East Bidwell
Street and Scholar Way within the Broadstone UnitNo. 3 Specific Plan Area. The Sage project
will consist of 111 one-bedroom units affordable to low-, very-low-, and extremely-low-
income senior households.

1

MEETING DATE: September 28,202I

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10712 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom
Rescinding Resolution No. 10583, Approving an Affordable
Housing Loan in the Amount up to $2,750,000 from the City's
Housing Fund to Folsom 670,L.P., and Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute aLoan Agreement and Related Documents
for the Construction of 111 Affordable Senior Housing Units at

the Sage at Folsom Multifamily Affordable Housing
Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 295

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



FIGURE I: SAGE PROJECT SITE AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

On January 26,2021, staff requested City Council direction regarding affordable housing loan

funding requests for two separate projects: USA Properties, Inc. (USA) Sage at Folsom

Multifamily Senior Affordable Housing Development Project and the proposed St. Anton

Mangini Place Affordable Housing Project. Historically, the City had received affordable

housing fundrequests sequentially andthus hadanalyzed andbroughtthose individual requests

forward for City Council consideration. In each circumstance, the available funds exceeded

the individual requests. In2020,the City had two requests for affordable housing funds, which
collectively exceeded the available housing fund balance which at the time was approximately

$7,437,000. As such, staff provided information, analysis by TDA Consulting, Inc. (a national

provider of affordable housing consulting services), and a preliminary recommendation to the

City Council regarding the two affordable housing Projects' funding requests for consideration

and direction. Given that USA had entitlements in place and was further along in the process,

the City Council reviewed and approved the funding requests for USA's Sage project and

directed staff to come back with a specific funding plan for the St. Anton Mangini Place project

once additional housing funds became available.

Under the USA funding request there were two alternative funding strategies proposal

presented by USA. As such, two separate resolutions (Resolution No. 10583 and Resolution

No. 10584) were adopted by City Council. ResolutionNo. 10583 authorized a loan amount of
$3,500,000 under the preferred alternative that the Project secures State of California tax credit
funding. Since the application for State tax credits is highly competitive, ResolutionNo. 10584

authorized a City loan amount of $4,500,000 and receipt of federal HOME funds from the

Sacramento Housing Redevelopment Agency (SHRA) and provided a "contingency" funding
source in the event that the Project was unable to secure the State tax credits.

2 Page 296

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



On April 28,2018, the Sage at Folsom project was successful in securing State tax credits.

And, in July of 2021, USA notified the City that Banner Bank and Bank of America had been

selected as debt and equity partners for the project. USA further informed the City that some

underwriting terms were different than originally anticipated. Two of the terms that most

significantly impact the original project proforma include limiting the permanent loan to
$10,440,000 and the requirement that the deferred developer fee be repaid by the end of year

thirteen. As are result, USA provided an update pro forma.

Due to competing requests for the limited amounts remaining in the City's Housing Fund, the

approved City's Term Sheet (dated January 2021) for the Project included a Net Cost Savings

Provision that made the City loan closing contingent upon further review by the City and its
determination that the borrower had reasonably maximized the permanent loan and tax credit
equity within current market conditions. In order to evaluate the developer's updated proforma
projections and project funding information for Sage Apartments, the City once again engaged

the services of TDA Consulting, Inc. to provide technical assistance related to determining

whether or not the Project's updated proforma projections were reasonable, and if based on
current conditions, the City loan commitment of $3,500,000 could be reduced.

In conformance with the Net Cost Savings Provision and based on the in-depth analysis by
TDA and follow-up conversations with USA, City staff is recommending that City Council
Rescind Resolution No. 10583 and approve an affordable housing loan for Sage Apartments

in an amount up to $2,750,000 from the City's Housing Fund.

POLICY / RULE

Financial support of affordable housing projects is consistent with the City's Housing Element

Goals of facilitating affordable housing.

ANALYSIS

Affordable Housing Needs Analysis

The Sage Apartment project is a lll-unit 100 percent affordable senior multifamily rental

development proposed on the 4.6-acre site located at 75 Scholar Way. The Sage project will
consist of 111 one-bedroom units affordable to low-, very-low-, and extremely-low-income
senior households. The Crty's recently adopted (August 24,202I) Housing Element, which
implements the City's "fair share" of the regional affordable housing needs allocated to the

City by SACOG, calls for 2,226 very low-income units and 1,341 low-income units over the

eight-year period ftom 2021 to 2029 . This Proj ect will provide 1 1 0 units toward meeting that
goal. In addition, the project furthers Housing Element Goal H-5 which call for the City to
provide a range of housing services for Folsom residents with special needs, including seniors,

persons with disabilities, single parents, large families, the homeless, and residents with
extremely low incomes. Not only does the project provide housing for 110 low-income senior

households, under the updated pro-forma, eleven of these units will be for seniors with
extremely low incomes.

a
J Page 297

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



X'unding Analysis

As previously indicated in the background section of this report, USA notified the City in July
that Banner Bank and Bank of America had been selected as debt and equity partners for the
project. USA further informed the City that some underwriting terms were different than
originally anticipated. Two of the terms that most significantly impact the original project
proforma include limiting the permanent loan to $10,440,000 and the requirement that the
deferred developer fee be repaid by the end of year thirteen, resulting in the fee being reduced

to $I,466,337. As such, USA provided an updated pro forma which included the
aforementioned underwriting requirements from Bank of America and also updated sources

and uses. The original City loan amount of $3,500,000, however, remained the same.

The approved City's Term Sheet (dated January 202I) included a net cost savings provision
that made closing contingent upon further review by the City and its determination that
Borrower has reasonably maximized the permanent loan and tax credit equity within then
current market conditions. The provision also spelled out that in the event that project sources

are in excess of project costs and to the fullest extent allowed by applicable CDLAC and

CTCAC Regulations and the Project's award of Bond Volume Cap and Tax Credits, the first
$1,000,000 of any such excess shall be used to reduce the City's loan and then any remaining
excess shall thereafter be used 50 percent to further reduce the City's loan and 50 percent to
reduce defened developer fee.

In order to evaluate the applicant's updated project information and loan request for in the
amount of $3,500,000 to facilitate the development of the lll-unit affordable multifamily
housing project, the City once again engaged the services of TDA Consulting, Inc. TDA
conducted a detailed review of the developer's updated financial pro forma. The Project's
assumptions, methodologies, and calculations were reviewed and evaluated for reasonableness

and accuracy. In addition, secondary sources of information were consulted to confirm or
validate the pro forma and additional information was requested of the Project developer to
clariff or support specific items in the updated pro forma. Based on TDA's analysis, they
determined that compared to the proforma upon which the City's Term Sheet (dated January

2021) was based, there has been a net increase in sources (excluding the City loan and defened
fee) of approximately $2,100,000 with a little less than $500,000 in cost increases. As a result,
TDA, the USA team and City staff met to discuss TDA's findings, clariff project assumptions

and discuss areas where TDA believed USA could structure the project to reduce the City's
loan amount by an amount of up to $1,000,000.

Following the meeting with City staff and TDA, USA submitted an updated proforma (dated

September 9,2021) to the City. Although USA's September 9,2021pro forma reduced the
City's loan commitment by $500,000 (from $3.5 million to $3 million), TDA presented City
staff with additional analysis and identified several potential scenarios that would allow USA
to furtheroosharpen the pencil" and reduce the City loan. As such, City staff continued to work
with USA to find ways to further reduce the City loan amount and ultimately finalized the loan
amount of $2.75 million. An updated pro forma (dated September 17,202I) confirming the

$2.75 million City loan amount was provided to the City on September 20,2021.

4 Page 298

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



The total project development costs are estimated to be approximately $31.8 million with the

majority of the funding to come from the noncompetitive four percent Tax Credit Equtty
program and a permanent loan. The developer proposes that the City loan carry athree percent

simple interest rate for a35-year term. Furthefinore, the developer proposes that the loan be

repaid with 50 percent of residual cash flows, beginning in year 13 from permanent loan

conversion. See summary below.

Loan Terms

A term sheet outlining the conditions of the loan has been prepared and is included in the staff
report (Attachment 3). Key specifics of this term sheet include:

1. Loan amount of $2,750,000
2. 3% simple interest
3. 35-year repayment term
4. Defened repayment of the principal amount of the loan with accrued interest will be

equal to 50% of Residual Cash Flow
5. At expiration of the loan term, 100% of the principal balance of the loan and all

accrued interest willbe due and payable.

6. Includes Net Cost Savings provisions.

The City loan will be in second place, behind the permanent construction loan.

Overall, TDA's in-depth analysis of the Project financial proformas and Project details

indicates that the loan amount of $2,750,000 loan is reasonable.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Funding for the requested affordable housing loan for this project is available from the City's
Housing Fund (Fund 238). An appropriation will be required in the amount of $2,750,000.
This funding source does not impact the City's General Fund.

ENVIRO AI, REVIEW

An Initial Study, Mitigated Negative Declaration, and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting

Program for the Sage at Folsom project was prepared in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). With mitigations, the Sage at Folsom project will not
have a significant effect on the environment. A Mitigated Negative Declaration was prepared

and adopted by the City, and mitigation measures have been included in the
project's Conditions of Approval.

5
Page 299

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENTS

1. ResolutionNo. 10712 - A Resolution ofthe City of Folsom Rescinding ResolutionNo.
10583, Approving an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount up to $2,750,000 from
the City's Housing Fund to Folsom 670,L.P., and Authorizing the City Manager to
Execute a Loan Agreement and Related Documents for the Construction of 111

Affordable Senior Housing Units at the Sage at Folsom Multifamily Affordable
Housing Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds

2. Loan Term Sheet
3. Site Plan and Project Rendering
4. Resolution No. 10583 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an Affordable

Housing Loan in the Amount of $3,500,000 from the City's Housing Fund to USA Properties
Fund, Inc. and Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Loan Agreement and Related
Documents for the Construction of i 10 Affordable Senior Housing Units at the Sage at
Folsom Multifamily Affordable Housing Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

6 Page 300

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. 10712 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Rescinding Resolution No.
10583, Approving an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount up to $2,750,000 from the
City's Housing Fund to Folsom 670L.P., and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Loan Agreement and Related Documents for the Construction of 111 Affordable Senior

Housing Units at the Sage at Folsom Multifamily Affordable Housing Development
Project, and Appropriation of Funds

Page 301

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. IO7I2

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO.
105830 APPROVING AN AFF'ORDABLE HOUSING LOAN IN THE AMOUNT UP TO

$2,750,000 F'ROM THE CITY'S HOUSING FUND TO FOLSOM 670, L.P., AND
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A LOAN AGREEMENT AND

RELATED DOCUMENTS FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 111 AFFORDABLE
SENIOR HOUSING TINITS AT THE SAGE AT F'OLSOM MULTIF'AMILY

AF'FORDABLE HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROJECT, AND APPROPRIATION OF'
FUNDS

WHEREAS, USA Properties Fund, Inc. is the developer of the proposed Sage at Folsom

project, located at the northeast comer of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Scholar Way
within the Broadstone Unit No. 3 Specific Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, USA Properties Fund, Inc. is in the process of securing funding necessary

to build the Sage at Folsom project consisting of I ll-unit multifamily 100% affordable
(excluding one employee unit) senior housing affordable to extremely low, very-low and low
income senior households; and

WHEREAS, Folsom 670,L.P. is the project partnership comprised of USA Folsom 670,

Inc. (a wholly owned subsidiary of USA Properties Fund, Inc.) as its Administrative General

Partner, Riverside Charitable as its Managing General Partner, and Bank of America as its
limited partner; and

WHEREAS, at the developer's request, the City Council passed Resolution No. 10583

on January 26,2021and approved an affordable housing loan in the amount of $3,500,000 to
assist with the project's financing; and

WHEREAS, the project qualified for additional financing from the California Debt Limit
Allocation Committee and Tax Credit Allocation Committee programs; and

WHEREAS, due to competing requests for the limited amounts remaining in the City's
Housing Fund, the City Council deems appropriate to adjust the affordable housing loan to assist

the Sage at Folsom project to an amount up to $2,750,000; and

WHEREAS, providing financial assistance to affordable housing projects is consistent

with the Goal H-3: Facilitating Affordable Housing in the City's Housing Elemen! and

WHEREAS, funding for the affordable housing loan is available from the City's
Housing Fund (Fund 238); however, an appropriation will be required; and

WHEREAS, the primary term of the affordable housing loan will be 35 years at three
percent simple annual interest, to be repaid with a share of residual cash flow to be generated

from the project with repayment terms subject to approval by the Finance Director; and

Resolution No. 10712
Page I of2 Page 302

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



WHEREAS, receipt of all loan repayments will be deposited into the City' s Housing
Fund (Fund 238) and will be used to provide future assistance for affordable housing.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Folsom

that Resolution No. 10583 is hereby rescinded in its entirety.

BE IT FURTHRE RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby approve an

affordable housing loan in an amount up to $2,750,000, to Folsom 670,LP., a California limited
partnership to construct the 11l-unit affordable senior multifamily project known as Sage at

Folsom located at the northeast corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Scholar Way
within the Broadstone Unit No. 3 Specific Plan Area, subject to the borrower entering into an

affordable housing loan agreement in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute an

affordable housing loan agreement, and other related documents, eonsistent with and in
furtherance of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is directed to appropriate up

to $2,750,000 from the City's Housing Fund (Fund 238) to provide an affordable housing loan
for the construction of the Sage at Folsom project.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of September 2021by the following vote, to
wit:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10712
Page2 of2 Page 303

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 2

Loan Term Sheet

Page 304

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



Loan Term Sheet

Sage at Folsom

City of Folsom

September 21,2021.

t. Lender: City of Folsom, a municipal corporation

2. Borrower: Folsom 670,L.P., a California limited partnership, composed of
a. USA Folsom 670,\nc., a California corporation, Administrative General Partner, a wholly owned

entity of USA Properties Fund, lnc.

b. Riverside Charitable Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, Managing

General Partner

c. BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., a national banking association, as lnvestor Limited Partner (the "lnvestor

Limited Partner"); BANC OF AMERICA CDC SPECIAL HOLDING COMPANY, lNC., a North Carolina

corporation, as Special Limited Partner (the "Special Limited Partne/')- Tax Credit lnvestor,

Limited Partner

3. Loan Amount: 52,750,000

4. Purpose: Construction and operation of a 1LL-unit senior rental housing community of which all units

(excluding one management unit) will be affordable and deed restricted for 55 years. The planned

affordability mix varies between 30% and 80% AMI using TCAC income and rent limits.

5. Timing of Fundins: The City's loan will be funded upon closing of the primary construction loan.

6. lnterest Rate: 3% simple per annum

a. Annual Pavments: Repayment of the principal amount of the loan together with accrued interest

will be to the extent "Residual Cash Flow" exists. Principal and interest payments equal to fifty
percent (50%) of "Residual Cash Flow" are due beginning on May l't of each year until the loan is

fully repaid. Notwithstanding, annual payments on the City's loan will be deferred until the earlier

of i) 15 years following Permanent Loan Conversion or ii) repayment of the Deferred Developer

Fee, provided further that the Deferred Developer Fee note shall carry no interest.

7. Residual Cash Flow: Residual Cash Flow is identified as all income generated by the project after:

a. Payment of typical operating expenses for the project, including:

i. Property management fee not to exceed 5%

ii. Advertising, legal, accounting, security, and other general office administration expenses

iii. Payroll, benefits, and payrolltaxes

iv. All utilities

v. All repair and maintenance costs

vi. Property insurance

vii. Property taxes, business licenses and permits

viii. Resident social and tenant service costs

b. Replacement reserve replenishment: cash deposited into a reserve for capital replacements of

project improvements in such reasonable amounts as are required by the project lenders,

including the City, and/or tax credit investor

c. Senior amortizing debt service agreed to by the City as of initial closing.

Page 1 of 3 Page 305

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



For purposes of the Borrower's accounting and tax records, distributions of Residual Cash Flow may be

characterized pursuant to the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement as may be

amended on project financing.

Notwithstanding, for the purpose of determining the deferral of annual payments on the City's loan,

Residual Cash Flow shall be characterized as follows:

a. First, for payment of an Asset Management Fee to the Limited Partner in the amount of no more

than S7,5OO for the first year and escalating at no more than 3o/o per year thereafter;

b. Second, for payment of a Partnership Management Fee to the non-profit Managing General

Partner for their management duties in an amount equal to 514,562 and increasing annually at a

rate of 2%;

c. With all remaining Residual Cash Flow used as payment toward any outstanding Deferred

Developer Fee.

Upon distribution of 5I,326,448 (or such deferred developer fee evidenced by the final cost certification

prepared by a CPA and implementation of the net cost savings/increased sources provision herein) in

excess of any amounts related to items (a) and (b) above, the deferral period shall end, and annual

payments shall begin.

These categories as listed above shall not materially change without written approval of the City for the

purposes of calculating the annual payment.

8. Term: 35 years from Permanent Loan Conversion. Balance of loan will be due on sale.

9. Balloon Pavment: At the expiration of the loan term, IOO% of the principal balance of the loan and all

accrued interest will be due.

10. Refinancine: ln the event of refinancing, the City will subordinate to the new senior loan on substantially

similar terms as the original financing.

11. Conditions: The funding of the City loan is conditioned on the following:

a. The project has secured the unconditional commitment of all funding sources necessary to

develop the project pursuant to the proforma, including the construction loan, the permanent

loan, and 4%federal and state tax credit equity

b. The Borrower has fee ownership of the land (the developer currently holds fee simple title of the

land)

c. The project has secured all building permits or permit-ready letters and is ready to begin

construction

d. ln the event of cost overruns in development of the project, the Developer will defer as much of

its estimated developer fee as IRS requirements permit prior to requesting any additional funding

from the City.

12. Net Cost Savings/lncreased Sources:

a. Following completion of construction Borrower shall submit to City a cost certification prepared

by a qualified independent auditor acceptable to City setting forth the total sources and uses for

the Project. To the extent the Cost Certification shows that project sources are in excess of project

Page 2 of 3 Page 306

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



costs (assuming a deferred developer fee of $L,326,448), to the fullest extent allowed by

applicable CDLAC and CTCAC Regulations and the Project's award of Bond Volume Cap and Tax

Credits, 50% of such an amount shall be used to reduce the City's loan and SO%to reduce deferred

developer fee.

13. Reporting: Developer will provide the City with annual audited financial statements for the project

demonstrating compliance with the formula for the distribution of cash flow.

14. Securitv: City's loan will be secured by a deed of trust junior to construction and permanent financing

sources set forth.

Page 3 of 3 Page 307

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 3

Site Plan and Project Rendering

Page 308

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



I
ll
II

I

#rl affip
:PRO"H|E

PROJECISUtlll RY

P nKNo tuilfil^iY

.J!ei46a@
(

:EE-
knhman

-r 1-
I
I

I

I
I

IL1

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

-J

f'

ll

o

Page 309

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



NOFTHwEA1V|EW toutHE^stuil,

NORn|EASIVTEW

lEafw
PFoERIiE

Page 310

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



ATTACHMENT 4

Resolution No. 10583 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an Affordable Housing

Loan in the Amount of $3,500,000 from the City's Housing Fund to USA Properties Fund, Inc.

and Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute aLoanAgreement and Related Documents for the

Construction of 110 Affordable Senior Housing Units at the Sage at Folsom Multifamily
Affordable Housing Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds

Page 311

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



RESOLUTION NO. 10583

A RESOLUTION OF TIIE CITY OF FOLSOM APPROVING AIY AFFORDABLE
HOUSING LOAni IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,500,000 FROM THE CrrY'S HOUSING

FUND TO USA PROPERTIES FIIND, INC. AI\D AUTHORTZTNG TIm CITY
IT{ANAGER TO EXECUTE A LOAN AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS
tr,OR TIIE CONSTRUCTION OF 110 AT'FORDABLE SENIOR HOUSING UNITS AT

TIIE SAGE AT FOLSOM MI]LTIFAMILY AIT'ORDABLE IIOUSING
DEVELOPMENT PRO.IECT, AND APPROPRHTTON OF F'UNDS

WHEREAS, the developer of the proposed Sage at Folsom project, located at the
northeast corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Scholar Way within the
Broadstone Unit No. 3 Specific Plan Area" is in the process of securing the majority of funding
necessary to build the 1lO-unit multifamily 100% aflordable senior housing project in which
units will be affordable to extemely low, very-low and low income households; and

WHEREAS, the developer has requested an affordable housing loan from the City of
Folsom in the amount of $3,500,000 in order to assist with project financing; and

WI{EREAS, the Crty's commifinent to provide the requested affordable housing loan to
the project will help the project qualift and compete for additional financing from the California
Debt Limit Allocation Committee and Tax Credit Allocation Committee programs; and

WHEREAS, providing financial assistance to affordablb housing projects is consistent
with the Goal H-3: Facilitating Affordable Housing in the City's Housing Element; and

WIIEREAS, the request for an'affordable housing loan of $3,500,000 is appropriate
grven the project's costs and development expenses; and

WIIEREAS, fi.rnding for the requested affordable housing loan is available from the
City's Housing Fund (Fund 238); however, an appropriation will be required; and

WTIEREAS, the terms of the affordable housing loan are outlined in the term sheet dated
January 21,2021; and

WHEREAS, the term of the affordable housing loan will be 35 years at three percent
simple annual interest, to be repaid with a share of residual cash flow to be generated from the
project with final repayment terms subject to approval by the Finance Director; and

WHEREAS, receipt of all loan repayments will be deposited into the Crty's Housing
Fund (Fund 238) and will be used to provide future assistance for affordable housing.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Folsom does hereby
approve an af,fordable housing loan, in the amount of $3,500,000 to USA Properties Fund, [nc. or
a related affiliate to construct the 1lO-unit affordable senior multifamily project known as Sage
at Folsom, located at the northeast corner of the intersection of East Bidwell Street and Scholar

Resolution No. 10583
Page I of2

Page 312

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



Way within the Broadstone Unit No. 3 Specific Plan Are4 subject to the developer entering into
an affordable housing loan agleement in a form acceptable to the City Auomey.

BE IT X'URTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to execute an
affordable housing loan agreement, and other related documents, consistent with and in
firtherance of this Resolution.

BE IT F'URTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is directed to appropriate
$3,500,000 from the Crty's Housing Fund (Fund 238) for purpose of providing the affordable
housing loan for the construction ofthe Sage at Folsom project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLYED that, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, this
Resolution shall be null and void and shall have no force or effect in the event the Sage at
Folsom project fails to quali$ for financing from the California Debt Limit Allocation
Committee and Tax Credit Allocation Committee pro$ams.

PASSED AltD ADOPTED this 26s day of January 202lby the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski

NOES: Councilmember(s): None

ABSENT: Councitnember(s): None

ABSTNN: Councilmember(s): None

Michael D.

ATTEST:

0 i-.,'-, ^t7\ 
-|4, r a r.\'Y\l:r nt [; .

C-hrista Freentrsitle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10583
Page2of 2

Page 313

09/28/2021 Item No.14.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 314

09/28/2021 Item No.14.


	Top
	09/28/2021 Item No.1.	Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming October 2021 as National Arts and Humanities Month
	9-28 Proclamation - National Arts and Humanities Month

	09/28/2021 Item No.2.	Approval of August 24, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	9-28 Minutes from Aug 24 2021 Meeting

	09/28/2021 Item No.3.	Ordinance No. 1317 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Section 16.16.120(D) of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps (Second Reading and Adoption)
	9-28 Staff Report Ord 1317 Amending Section 16.16.120D re Extension of Tentative Subdivision Maps

	09/28/2021 Item No.4.	Resolution No. 10702 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Contracts with Motorola Solutions and Delta Wireless in an amount not to exceed $190,000 to Add Encryption Capabilities to City of Folsom Radios
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10702 - Agreement with Motorola and Delta for Police Radios

	09/28/2021 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10703 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Superior Automotive Group for the Purchase of Three Ford Police Vehicles
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10703 - Agreement with Superior Automotive Group to Purchase Three Ford Police Vehicles

	09/28/2021 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10704 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Joint Community Facilities Agreement with the Sacramento Municipal Utility District to allow for the Financing of SMUD Facilities under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 in Community Facilities District No. 23
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10704 - Agreement with SMUD re CFD No 23

	09/28/2021 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10705 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Water Works Engineers, LLC for Design and Engineering Services During Construction for the Water System Rehabilitation Project No. 1
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10705 - Agreement with Water Works Engineers for Water System Rehab Project No. 1

	09/28/2021 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10706 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Accept Offers of Dedication for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision, and Approval of the Final Map for the Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10706 - Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Offers of Dedication for Russell Ranch Phase 3A Subdivision

	09/28/2021 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 10710 – A Resolution Authorizing the Police Department to Accept a Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Grant in the Amount of $63,000 from the State of California Office of Traffic Safety and Appropriation of Funds
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10710 - Authorizing Police Dept to Accept Selective Traffic Enforcement Program Grant of $63,000

	09/28/2021 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 10711 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Caldwell Country Chevrolet for the Purchase of Three Chevrolet Police Vehicles
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10711 - Agreement with Caldwell Country Chevrolet for Purchase of Three Chevrolet Police Vehicles

	09/28/2021 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 10708 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving the Issuance by the California Public Finance Authority of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds in an Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $34,000,000 for the Purpose of Financing or Refinancing the Acquisition and Construction of Mangini Place Apartments and Certain Other Matters Relating Thereto
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10708 - CA Public Finance Auth Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds NTE $34M for Mangini Place Apts

	09/28/2021 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 10709- A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Folsom Approving the Issuance of the California Municipal Finance Authority Revenue Bonds in an Aggregate Principal Amount not to Exceed $20,000,000 to Finance a 111-unit Affordable Rental Housing Facility for Low-income and Very Low-income Seniors, for the Benefit of an Entity to be Created by USA Properties Fund, Inc., or an Affiliate, and Other Certain Matters Relating Thereto
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10709 - CA Municipal Finance Auth Revenue Bonds NTE $20M

	09/28/2021 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 10707 – A Resolution of the City Council Establishing a Temporary Residential Permit Parking Program in the Folsom Historic District
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10707 - Temporary Residential Permit Parking Program in Historic District

	09/28/2021 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 10712 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Rescinding Resolution No. 10583, Approving an Affordable Housing Loan in the Amount up to $2,750,000 from the City’s Housing Fund to Folsom 670, L.P., and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Loan Agreement and Related Documents for the Construction of 111 Affordable Senior Housing Units at the Sage at Folsom Multifamily Affordable Housing Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds
	9-28 Staff Report Res 10712 - Rescind Res 10583 Approving Afford Hsg Loan NTE $2,750,000 for Sage at Folsom

	Bottom

